NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING & VOTE TO
CLOSE PART OF THE MEETING
AGENDA
COUNCIL MEETING
City of Moberly
City Council Room — Moberly City Hall
101 West Reed Street
January 06, 2020
6:00 PM

Posted:

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call
Approval of Agenda

Recognition of Visitors

Communications, Requests, Informational I1tems & Consent Calendar

1.

Report from Williams Keepers on the City of Moberly Audit Report

Public Hearing and Receipt of Bids

Ordinances & Resolutions

2.

3.

|

|

|

|~

9.

An Ordinance Approving A Development Agreement; Making Certain Findings And Ratifying
Prior Acts; And Providing Further Authority.

An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager Of Moberly, Missouri To Execute A Cooperative
Agreement For Tourism Promotion Services With The Moberly Chamber Of Commerce.

An Ordinance Approving A Change Order To The Willis Bros., Inc., Harrison Ave. And Garfield Ave.
CDBG Infrastructure Project.

An Ordinance Ordering That Assessments Be Made Against Benefited Properties Situated Within
The Downtown Moberly Public Facilities Neighborhood Improvement District Based Upon
Revised Estimated Costs Of Proposed Improvements Within Such District; Ordering Preparation Of
An Assessment Roll; And Calling For A Public Hearing And Providing Direction For The Giving
Of Notice Thereof, All Pursuant To The Neighborhood Improvement District Act

A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An Agreement For Professional Services
With Kim Hoskins Environmental Consulting, LLC, D/B/A KIMHEC

A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri To Execute A
Fireworks Display Agreement With J & M Displays, Inc.

A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Letter Agreement With Howe
Company, LLC For Platting Of The Moberly Industrial Park.

A Resolution To Publish A Proposed Street Name Change Pursuant To Section 36-40 Of The
Moberly City Code

10. A Resolution appropriating money out of the Treasury of the City of Moberly, Missouri.
Official Reports

Anything Else to Come Before the Council

11. Appointment to the Downtown CID Board

12. Consideration of a Motion to move the January 20, 2020 Council meeting to January 21, 2020
13. Consideration of a Motion to move the February 17, 2020 Council meeting to February 18, 2020

1




14. Consideration of a Motion to adjourn to a Work Session followed by a Closed Session to discuss the
status of pending negotiated contract (Closed Statutes 610.021) (12)

Adjournment

The public is invited to attend the Council meeting. Representatives of the news media may
obtain copies of this notice by contacting the City Clerk. If a special accommodation is needed as
addressed by the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the City Clerk twenty-four (24)
hours in advance of the meeting.




City of Moberly Agenda Number: #2,
. . Department: City Manager
City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 6, 2020
Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Development Agreement; Making Certain

Summary:

Findings And Ratifying Prior Acts; And Providing Further Authority.

Since its creation in 2017, the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement
District (the “District”) and the City of Moberly (the “City”) have worked
cooperatively to improve the physical and economic environment and to
alleviate blighted conditions extant within the City’s Central Business District.
In furtherance of these goals, the City entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding dated as of September 11, 2019 (the “MOU”’) with Mashburn
Development, LLC (the “Developer”) respecting the redevelopment of certain
centrally located downtown properties for use as a boutique destination
“Merchants’ Hotel” containing lodging, fine dining restaurants, convention
and meeting areas, and retail space, all bringing increased patronage and
enhancing the Moberly downtown area.

The Developer has over thirty years’ experience in the design, development,
construction and management of over 200 large hotel, convention center,
resort and mixed use projects nation-wide totaling over $3,000,000,000 in
development costs. The Developer’s principals have held senior level
positions with major regional hotel and resort developers and destination
retailers including John Q. Hammons Hotels and Resorts, Bass Pros Shops,
True North Hotel Group and Leisure Hotels and Resorts. The MOU called for
the negotiation of a definitive development agreement among the Developer,
the City and the District respecting redevelopment the site of the City’s
Municipal Auditorium and the structure formerly known as the “Kelly Hotel,”
the adjacent City parking lot; and the commercial building known and
numbered as 220 West Reed Street (the “Smith Building” and together with
the Municipal Auditorium, the Kelly Hotel and the parking lot, the
“Hotel/Convention Center Properties™).

The proposed Purchase and Development Agreement (the “Development
Agreement”) calls for the rehabilitation and reuse of the Hotel/Convention
Center Properties by the Developer and the construction of a new multi-story
hotel building replicating the look of the historic “Merchants Hotel” and
containing approximately 68 sleeping rooms, together with a 150 seat
restaurant with ancillary dining and lounge facilities; remodeling of the Kelly
Hotel building as a hotel annex to provide approximately 32 additional
sleeping rooms; construction of a two story open roofed parking garage (the
“Parking Garage”); and improvements to the Municipal Auditorium. Under
the Development Agreement, the City will convey the Kelly Hotel and the
Smith Building to the Developer and the Developer will additionally acquire
the parking area between the Smith Building and the Commerce Bank
building. The Developer will expend approximately $14 Million to develop
the Merchants’ Hotel and Kelly Hotel building as a high-quality boutique
destination hotel and convention venue (the “Project”). The City will utilize
Neighborhood Impro Ent District financing to construct the Parking Garage




and make improvements to the Municipal Auditorium at an approximate

#2.
estimated total cost of $1,668,000.

The City and the District will additionally provide to the Developer in
consideration of the financing and development of the Project the following
economic development and financing incentives. These will be limited to and
derived solely from incremental revenues generated by the Project:

e 1% of the City Sales Tax on all taxable “sales at
retail” occurring within the one block Project
area;

o the District’s 1.0% Sales Tax on all taxable
“sales at retail” occurring within the Project
area;

e one half of the City’s 4% lodging tax applicable
to sales of sleeping rooms at the completed
Project; and

o franchise fees received by the City for electric
power and other utility usage at the completed
Project site.

Moreover, the foregoing revenues shall be paid over only from amounts
remaining after the allocation and use in the first instance of the portions of
these revenues required to pay special assessments representing annual debt
service on the NID Parking Garage financing.

Recommended
Action: Approve this ordinance

Fund Name: N/A
Account Number: N/A

Available Budget $: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Roll Call Aye Nay

_____Memo ____ Council Minutes Mayor

__ Staff Report __x Proposed Ordinance M__ S__ Jeffrey _
__ Correspondence __ Proposed Resolution

____Bid Tabulation ___ Attorney’s Report Council Member

__ PI/IC Recommendation __ Petition M__ S Brubaker o
____P/C Minutes ____ Contract M__ S___ Kimmons _
__ Application __ Budget Amendment M___ S__ Davis _
__ Citizen __ Legal Notice M__ S Kyser

__ Consultant Report Other Passed  Failed




EXHIBIT A
PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement') ismade
and entered into as of this __ day of 52019 (the "Effective Date") by
and among the CITY OF MOBERLY, a city of the third classification and Missouri municipal
corporation located in Randolph County, Missouri and having a principal office at 101 West
Reed Street - City Hall, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the "City"); the DOWNTOWN MOBERLY
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a community improvement district and Missouri
political subdivision established pursuant to the CID Act located within the corporate limits of
the City and having a principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the
"District"); and MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company in
good standing having a principal place of business at 1704 NW 450 Road, Kingsville, Missouri
64061 (the "Developer"). Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Agreement shall have
the meanings respectively ascribed to them in Article I of this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. The City is the fee owner of certain improved real properties including the Kelly Hotel,
the Parking Lot, and the Smith Building which are located within a designated redevelopment
area determined by the City Council to be a "blighted area" (as that term is used and defined in
Chapter 353 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) and which are currently
economically underutilized and, to address current conditions and to remediate blighted
conditions within the aforesaid redevelopment area, the City and the District have entertained
proposals from interested persons to rehabilitate, improve and reuse the Hotel/Convention Center

Properties.

B. In response, the Developer has prepared and submitted to the City the Minimum
Development Program for the rehabilitation and reuse of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties
and in connection therewith desires to have the City convey or cause to be conveyed to the
Developer fee title to each of the Developer Acquired Properties and, together with the District,
take certain actions and make available certain economic development and financing incentives
available under Missouri law, all in consideration for the development by the Developer of the

Project.

C. To facilitate the foregoing, the Developer and the City with the concurrence of the
District have entered into the Memorandum of Understanding which the parties acknowledge is
intended to serve as the basis of this Agreement and in furtherance of the understandings and
commitments set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding, the City, the District and the
Developer each now desire to enter into and be bound by the terms and conditions of and

respective obligations imposed by this Agreement.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and the mutual covenants
set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and

5

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City, the District and the Developer each
hereby agrees as follows:

ARTICLE 1.
MEANINGS OF TERMS

Section 1.1.  Definitions. Except as otherwise defined, as used in this Agreement, the
following words and terms shall have the following meanings: :

“Affiliate” shall mean an individual, corporation, association, partnership, limited
liability company, joint venture, trust, estate, or other entity or organization, or any other such
person or entity which, directly or indirectly, is Controlled by or is in common Control by the
Developer and/or owners of membership interests of Developer.

“Applicable Regulations” shall mean, collectively, all federal, state and local laws,
statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, executive orders and codes applicable to or affecting the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties or the Project including, without limitation, the Building
Regulations and all applicable federal and state environmental laws and regulations.

“Approving Ordinance” shall mean Ordinance No. ___ of the City adopted and
approved by the City Council on »20___ approving this Agreement.

“Approving Resolution” shall mean Resolution No. ___ of the District adopted and
approved by the Board of Directors of the District on » 20__ approving this

Agreement.

“Building Regulations” shall mean, collectively, those codes, ordinances, regulations
and policies of the City including, without limitation, Chapter 6 of the Moberly City Code or
subsequent successor enactments, now or at any subsequent time applicable to or governing the
construction and maintenance of buildings and structures within the City.

“Bond Counsel” shall mean Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C, or other firm of
nationally recognized bond counsel selected by the City. '

“Certificates of Occupancy” shall mean one or more certificates of occupancy for any
of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties properly and lawfully issued by the City in
accordance with the Building Regulations.

“Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs” shall mean a document,
substantially in the form of Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement,
provided by the Developer to the City evidencing reimbursable costs incurred by the Developer of
constructing the Parking Garage and making improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium, all
subject to the terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement.

“CID Act” shall mean the Community Improvement District Act, sections 67.1401 to
67.1571 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.

2
E i
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Ce roperties (v.4)

#2.




“City” shall mean the City of Moberly, a Missouri municipal corporation and city of the
third classification located in Randolph County, Missouri and having a principal office at 101
West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270.

“City Council” shall mean the duly elected and serving governing body of the City.

“City Sales Tax” shall mean the combined tax levy by the City pursuant to applicable
Missouri law on all taxable “sales at retail” (as that term is defined and used in chapter 144 of the
Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) at the current combined rate of 2.50%.

“Closings” shall mean the contemporaneous closings on the City’s acquisition of the
West Parking Lot Area and the City’s conveyance to the Developer of the Developer Acquired
Properties, all in accordance with Article IT of and as further contemplated in this Agreement.

“Closing Date” shall mean the date provided in Section 2.3 of this Agreement for the
Closings.

“Commerce Bank Property” shall mean the portions of the former Commerce Bank
property situated at 208 West Reed Street, Moberly Missouri, designated as lots 7 through 12,
inclusive, all as further depicted on Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated by reference in this

Agreement.

“Construction Contractors” shall mean those principal or general contractors (other
than the Developer), if any, contractually obligated to undertake the construction of any portions
of the Project with each designated in a writing to the City and the District by the Developer.

“Construction Plans” shall mean plans, drawings, specifications, and related documents,
and construction schedules for the construction of the entire Project, together with all supplements,
amendments or corrections, submitted by the Developer and approved by the City in accordance

with this Agreement.

“Control” shall mean, as applied to any Affiliate, with respect to: (a) a corporation
having stock, the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the securities (as defined
in Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or classes, the holders of
which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a majority of the governing
or directing body of such corporation; (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, having
the power to elect or appoint, directly or indirectly, at least a majority of the members of the
governing or directing body of such corporation; or (c) any other entity, the power to direct the
management of such entity through the ownership of at least a majority of its voting securities or
the right to designate or elect at least a majority of the members of its governing or directing

body, by contract or otherwise.

“Developer” shall mean Mashburn Development, LLC, a Missouri limited liability
company in good standing having a principal place of business at 1704 NW 450 Road,
Kingsville, Missouri 64061 or any Affiliate in accordance with Section 6.1 of this Agreement.

3
. | 7 .
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Ce Foperties (v.4)

#2.




“Developer Acquired Properties” shall mean the Kelly Hotel, the West Parking Lot
Area, and the Smith Building to be acquired in fee by the Developer from the City in accordance
with Article IT of this Agreement in furtherance of the implementation of the Project.

“District” shall mean the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District, a
community improvement district and Missouri political subdivision established pursuant to the
CID Act located within the corporate limits of the City and having a principal office at 101 West
Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270.

“Effective Date” shall mean the date first above written.

“Feasibility Period” shall mean the One Hundred Fifty (150) day period following the
Effective Date.

“Force Majeure” shall mean actions or inactions not within the reasonable control of the
Developer, including, without limitation, construction delays due to sustained inclement weather
conditions, delays caused by competent legal authority, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, riots,
fire or other casualties, tornadoes, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, accidents, governmental
restrictions, unanticipated or unusual site conditions, priorities regarding acquisition of or use of
materials, litigation challenging any of the rights of the Developer under this Agreement, or
delays caused by local, state or federal governments.

“Hotel/Convention Center Properties” shall mean, collectively, certain improved real
properties situated in the City’s central business district and including: (i) the lot containing the
structure formerly known as the “Kelly Hotel” and known and numbered as 109 North Clark
Street (the “Kelly Hotel”); (ii) the adjacent City parking lot (the “Parking Lot”); (iii) numbered
lots 5 and 6 of the former Commerce Bank building located at 28 West Reed Street together with
any easement appurtenant thereto (the “West Parking Lot Area”); and (iv) the commercial
building and lot known and numbered as 220 West Reed Street (the “Smith Building”), together
with the City’s Municipal Auditorium located at West Rollins and North Clark Streets, all as
further depicted and legally described in Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated by reference in

this Agreement.

“Investigations, Tests and Surveys” shall mean, without limitation, the following: (a)
inspecting, surveying, making engineering, environmental and architectural studies, testing the
soil (including borings) and any portion or element of any of the Hotel/Convention Center
Properties (including lead paint testing) and otherwise determining the condition of the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties or any of them; (b) reviewing all documents received from
the City, all applicable subdivision, zoning, and building code ordinances, rules and regulations
of the City, and of the State of Missouri; (c) determining that utilities, including, but without
limitation, water, gas, electricity, telephone and cable television services, can be made available
to adequately serve the improvements which are intended to be constructed on the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties; and (d) determining all other matters regarding the physical
condition of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties and the development thereof which the

Developer deems appropriate.

4
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Ce operties (v.4)

#2.




“IRC” shall mean shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the
applicable regulations of the Treasury Department proposed or promulgated thereunder.

“Memorandum of Understanding” shall mean that certain Memorandum of
Understanding dated as of September 11, 2019 by and between the City and the Developer
defining the roles and responsibilities of each in the joint planning, funding, conveyance, and
redevelopment of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties consistent with the Minimum
Development Program and the business and marketing plans of the Developer and employing
certain public incentives available from the City.

“Minimum Development Program” shall mean, collectively, construction of a new
multi-story hotel building replicating the look of the historic “Merchants Hotel” and containing
approximately 68 sleeping rooms, together with a 150 seat restaurant with ancillary dining and
lounge facilities; remodeling of the Kelly Hotel building as a hotel annex to provide
approximately 32 additional sleeping rooms; construction of the Parking Garage; and the
improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium listed on Schedule 1, attached to and
incorporated by reference in this Agreement, all as further depicted and described in schematic
drawings prepared by » attached as Exhibit D to and incorporated by

reference in this Agreement.

“NID Act” shall mean the Missouri Neighborhood Improvement District Act, sections
67.453 through 67.475 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.

“NID Bonds” shall mean one or more series of neighborhood improvement district
limited general obligation bonds issued by the City pursuant to the NID Act and in general
accordance with and subject to limitations of this Agreement, the proceeds of which shall be
used to pay, among other things, the costs of constructing the Parking Garage and making
improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium.

“NID District” shall mean the “Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood
Improvement District” established pursuant to the NID Act and this Agreement encompassing
the property bounded by West Reed Street on the north, North Clark Street on the east, West
Rollins Street on the south and North Williams Street on the west and. containing the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties and the Commerce Bank Property.

“NID Petition” shall mean a proper petition for the establishment of the NID District
which meets the requirements of section 67.457.3 of the NID Act and in substantially the form of
Exhibit E, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement.

“NID Project Fund” shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to an
ordinance of the City authorizing the issuance of the NID Bonds pursuant to this Agreement into
which shall be deposited the cash sale proceeds of the NID Bonds after payment of all reasonable
and customary costs of issuance of the NID Bonds, including, but not limited to underwriters’
discounts and fees, bond counsel and attorneys’ fees, financial advisor fees, bond registration
fees, prepaid interest, debt service reserves, costs of printing any NID Bonds and any offering

5
9
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Ce operties (v.4)

#2.




documents relating thereto, costs of credit enhancement, if any, and fees of any rating agency
rating the NID Bonds, together with any interest earned thereon.

“Parking Garage” shall mean an elevated two-story open roof public parking garage
constructed and located on the Parking Lot in accordance with this Agreement,

“Party” or “Parties” shall mean as applicable, the City, the District, and/or the
Developer.

“Project” shall mean, collectively, all demolition, site work, site improvements, utilities
installation, landscaping and new construction required for the redevelopment of the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties as a high quality boutique destination hotel and convention
venue in accordance with the Minimum Development Program or as such may be expanded
pursuant to provisions of Section 3.1 of this Agreement.

“Purchase Price” shall mean the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid in hand by the
Developer at or prior to closing on the transfer of the Developer Acquired Properties as set forth
in Section 2.3 of this Agreement which amount shall constitute the entire purchase price for the

Developer Acquired Properties.

“Third Party Action” shall mean any claim, action, proceeding or demand initiated at
any time by any party other than a named Party to this Agreement and directed to the City or the
District or any of their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, employees or
representatives arising out of this Agreement, the Hotel/Convention Center Properties or any of
them, the Commerce Bank Property, the Project, the Approving Ordinance, the Approving
Resolution, the conveyances contemplated by this Agreement, any amounts paid or rebated to
the Developer pursuant to Sections 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreement, the NID Bonds, the
commitments and allocations made under Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Agreement or any of them,
or any portion(s) of any of the foregoing or any actions taken pursuant to any of the foregoing,

“Title Commitments” shall mean written commitments to issue one or more Title
Policies for the Developer Acquired Properties provided by the Title Company in customary
form. ,

“Title Company” shall mean a title insurance company selected by the City and
reasonably acceptable to the Developer.

“Title Policies” shall mean one or more ALTA Owner’s Policies (6-17-06) of title
insurance for the Developer Acquired Properties each of which shall contain an additional
endorsement covering defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any,
created, first appearing in the public records or attaching subsequent to the date of the applicable

Title Commitment but prior to the Closing Date.

“Zoning Approvals” shall mean any and all plat approvals, re-zoning or other zoning
changes, site plan approvals, conditional use permits, design reviews, or other subdivision, zoning,

6

10
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention C pperties (v.4)

#2.




site plan review, architectural or historic district review, or similar approvals required under
Applicable Regulations for the implementation of the Project.

Section 1.2. Rules of Construction. Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context
shall otherwise indicate, the words importing the singular number shall include the plural and
vice versa, and words importing person shall include firms, associations and corporations,
including public bodies, as well as natural persons.

Section 1.3. Computation of Time. Wherever this Agreement calls for the performance of
any act by reference to a day or number of days, to a month or number of months or to a year or
number of years, each such computation shall be made based upon calendar days, calendar
months, and calendar years, as applicable, unless otherwise expressly provided.

ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND TRANSFER OF PROPERTIES

Section 2.1.  Feasibility Period and Investigations. The Developer shall have the right, but
only during the Feasibility Period, to investigate title and to make such investigations, studies and
tests with respect to the any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as the Developer deems
necessary or appropriate to determine the feasibility of acquiring the Developer Acquired
Properties and completing the Project. During the Feasibility Period, the Developer may make
Investigations, Tests and Surveys on any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as required to
satisfy the Developer that the properties comprising the Hotel/Convention Center Properties
including the Developer Acquired Properties are satisfactory for the Project. The City shall provide
to the Developer within Five (5) days after the Effective Date all documents and information
relating to the portions of the Hotel/Convention Properties which are in the City’s possession or
control, and other pertinent information in the City’s possession relating to the Hotel/Convention
Properties, if any. During the Feasibility Period, the City shall permit the Developer, its
employees, agents, contractors and subcontractors to enter upon real property comprising the Smith
Building, the Parking Lot, and the Kelly Hotel and shall use best efforts to cause the Developer to
be permitted to enter upon the Commerce Bank Property and the West Parking Lot Area to perform
Investigations, Tests and Surveys and the Developer shall indemnify and hold City and the District
harmless from any and all claims related to the Developer, its employees, agents, contractors and
subcontractors’ entry onto any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties or the Commerce Bank
Property to perform such Investigations, Tests and Surveys. The Developer shall have until
expiration of the Feasibility Period to satisfy itself, in its sole discretion, with respect to the
condition of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties. At any time prior to expiration of the
Feasibility Period, the Developer may, in its sole discretion, for any reason or for no reason,
terminate this Agreement by written notice to the City and the District. Upon any such termination
of this Agreement, no Party hereto shall have any further obligation or liability to any other with
respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Failure of the Developer to timely
exercise the aforesaid right to terminate this Agreement shall be deemed conclusive evidence of the
Developer’s satisfaction with the results of the Investigations, Tests and Surveys and with the
condition of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties including the Developer Acquired Properties.

7
11

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention C perties (v.4)

#2.




Section 2.2.  Title Issues. Within the first Twenty (20) days of the Feasibility Period the City
shall order the Title Commitments for the Developer Acquired Properties and promptly upon
receipt, the City shall transmit or cause to be transmitted to the Developer a copy or copies of the
Title Commitments showing merchantable title of the City in the Developer Acquired Properties
(other than the West Parking Lot Area) subject only to the following permitted exceptions: the
Title Company’s customary and standard exceptions; (b) all taxes and special assessments
credited to the Developer at the Closings; () building and building lines, use and occupancy
restrictions, conditions and covenants of record; (d) zoning laws and ordinances; (e) easements
for the use of public utilities; (f) roads and highways; (g) drainage ditches, feeders and laterals;
and (h) existing leases, if any, approved by the Developer. The Developer shall have Fifteen (15)
days after receipt of the last such Title Commitment to make any objections to any Title
Commitment by sending the City notice thereof; provided thar the Developer’s sole basis for any
such objection shall be a demonstrated material impairment of the Developer’s ability to
undertake the Project. In the event of such an objection, the City shall have Ten (10) days after
receipt of the Developer’s notice of objection to notify the Developer which objections the City is
willing to attempt to cure, if any, and in the event the City is willing to attempt to cure the
objection, the City shall have an additional Thirty (30) days to do so and the Feasibility Period
shall be extended by such time. If the City fails to so notify the Developer, then the City shall be
deemed to have refused to cure any such objections. To the extent that the City fails or refuses to
cure any such objections, the Developer shall have the right to: (i) cancel this Agreement; or (ii)
proceed to the Closings and accept title subject to the matters so objected to (which shall then
become permitted exceptions). At or before the Closings the City shall complete an ALTA
Statement (or such other similar affidavit as may be currently used by the Title Company) and
other documents required by the Title Company for clearance of all exceptions to title other than

the foregoing permitted exceptions.

Section 2.3.  Closing Date; Utility Services: City’s Purchase of West Parking Lot. The
Closing Date shall be Ten (10) days after the earlier of: (i) delivery of written notice by the
Developer to the City and the District of the Developer’s readiness to close; or (ii) the expiration of
the Feasibility Period or such other date as may be mutually agreed among the Parties. On or prior
to the Closing Date, the City, at the City’s sole cost, shall purchase and acquire in fee the West
Parking Lot Area at a purchase price not to exceed One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars
and no cents ($125,000.00). At all times prior to the Closing Date, the City shall maintain all
insurance coverage currently in place with respect to the Kelly Hotel and the Smith Building and
all utility services (including electrical, gas and water service) and City agrees to immediately
notify the Developer of any damage to or affecting any of the foregoing properties. At the
Closings the City shall take such steps as a reasonably necessary and the Developer shall
cooperate with the City to have all utility services at the Developer Acquired Properties
transferred to and registered in the name of the Developer.

Section 2.3.1. Events At Closings; Transfers by Deed. The Closings shall occur
at the offices of the Title Company during normal business hours or at such other location
as the Developer and the City with the consent of the District may mutually agree. At the
Closings, and upon payment of the Purchase Price by the Developer, the City shall transfer
and convey to the Developer and the Developer shall accept all of the City’s right, title and
interest in each of the Developer Acquired Properties. Transfer shall be by one or more

812

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CENereT perties (v.4)

#2.




Special Warranty Deeds, each in such form reasonably acceptable to the Developer, free
and clear of all tenancies, liens and encumbrances other than those created by this
Agreement, or that are set forth in the Title Commitment and accepted by the Developer;
provided that at the City’s discretion each such deed may contain a reverter or other
required re-conveyance to the City in the event the Developer does not satisfactorily
complete the Project. All Title Company closing costs and charges shall be shared equally
between the City and the Developer.

Section 2.3.2. Prorations. All real estate taxes, and all other public or
governmental charges and public or private assessments against the Property which are or
may be payable on an annual basis (including liens or encumbrances for sewer, water,
drainage or other public improvements whether completed or commenced on or prior to the
Effective Date or subsequent thereto), shall be prorated as of the day prior to the Closing
Date and shall be paid by the City (as a credit to the Developer), or if prepaid, credited to
the City, and shall from and after the Closings be assumed and paid by the Developer,
whether or not assessments have been levied as of the Closing Date, subject to
reimbursement in accordance with Section 4.1 of this Agreement. Any tax proration shall
be based upon the most recent assessment and shall be a final proration. Each such Party
shall execute, acknowledge, and deliver, after the Closings, such further assurances,
instruments and documents as the other may reasonably request in order to fulfill the intent
of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

BY CLOSING ON THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES, THE
DEVELOPER SHALL HAVE ACKNOWLEDGED AND HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES
THAT THE DEVELOPER HAS HAD ADEQUATE OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT,
REVIEW AND CONSIDER ALL MATTERS AFFECTING THE USE, OWNERSHIP AND
DEVELOPMENT OF THE HOTEL/CONVENTION CENTER PROPERTIES
INCLUDING THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES AND EACH OF THEM
AND THAT THE CONVEYANCE OF SAME BY THE CITY IS TO BE MADE ON AN

“AS IS/WHERE IS” BASIS AND WITHOUT RECOURSE TO THE CITY. THE

CONVEYANCE TO THE DEVELOPER OF THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED
PROPERTIES SHALL BE WITHOUT REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY
KIND OR NATURE WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION: (i) ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS OR
HABITABILITY, GOOD OR FAIR CONDITION OR REPAIR OR GOOD AND
WORKMANLIKE CONSTRUCTION AND (i) ANY WARRANTIES OR
REPRESENTATIONS WITH RESPECT TO SITE CONDITIONS AS OF THE
EFFECTIVE DATE AND OF THE CLOSINGS AND CONVEYANCES OF THE
DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES OR POTENTIAL LIABILITIES UNDER OR
WITH RESPECT TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL LAW
OR REGULATION, ALL OF WHICH WARRANTIES ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED
BY THE CITY AND EACH OF WHICH DISCLAIMERS IS HEREBY AGREED TO AND
ACCEPTED BY THE DEVELOPER. THE FOREGOING SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY
BREACH OR DEFAULT BY THE CITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR
INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT EXECUTED OR PROVIDED IN CONNECTION

HEREWITH.

9 H
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CeRTer Properties (v.4)

#2.




Section 2.4. Management Contract for Municipal Auditorium. The City and the Developer
hereby further agree and warrant each to the other to commence within Sixty (60) days of the
Closing Date good faith negotiations of a management contract for the City’s Municipal
Auditorium granting the Developer or the Developer’s designee “most favored nation” status with
respect to rentals and use of the facilities and space comprising the City’s Municipal Auditorium.
The foregoing negotiations shall continue until the terms of a management contract consistent with
the provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding are established by the City and the
Developer; provided that to the maximum extent feasible, the parties agree to incorporate such
limitations and provisions as may be required under the IRC to preserve the interest on portions of
the NID Bonds used to finance the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium exempt from
federal income taxation. The City and the Developer hereby further agree and warrant each to the
other to cooperate with one another in good faith to reduce such terms to a definitive management
contract and to promptly execute and deliver same.

ARTICLE IIL.
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROJECT

Section 3.1.  Applications for Zoning Reviews: City Approvals; Project Expansion. Not later
then Ten (10) days following expiration of the Feasibility Period, the Developer shall submit for
City approval all required applications and supporting materials for the Zoning Approvals. All plans
submitted by or on behalf of the Developer shall depict and describe the improvements to be made
to the Hotel/Convention Center Properties for the Project and shall reflect the provisions of the
Memorandum of Understanding and incorporate the requirements of this Agreement. The
Developer shall diligently pursue the Zoning Approvals in accordance with the City’s normal
procedures therefor. The City agrees to expeditiously process and timely review all applications for
the Zoning Approvals as received, all in accordance with the applicable City ordinances and laws of
the State of Missouri, and to take all further actions as are consistent with the Memorandum of
Understanding and this Agreement; provided that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to
require the City to grant any Zoning Approval, except in accordance with the City customary
exercise of its police powers; and provided further that at the discretion of the Developer in
consultation with the City and the District, the scope of the Project may be expanded beyond the
Minimum Development Program to include remodeling, conversion and reuse of a portion of the
Commerce Bank Property as a conference center or other annex to the Project. To the extent that
the Developer elects such an expansion, any Zoning Approvals or other approvals attending such
expansion may be pursued concurrent with those of the original Project and, upon the grant of
requisite Zoning Approvals or other approvals required under Applicable Regulations for such
expansion, the scope of the “Project” (as that term is defined and used in this Agreement) shall

be deemed to include such expansion.

Section 3.2. Developer to_Construct Project; Developer as City’s Limited Agent. The
Developer shall obtain requisite approvals and permits and commence construction of the Project in
accordance with the schedule provided in this Section 3.2, all subject to Force Majeure. As a
component of the Project, the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the
City’s Municipal Auditorium shall be undertaken by the Developer as limited agent for the City for
such purpose and the City shall promptly grant such rights of access and egress and use of the

10
14
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CEarerd perties (v.4)

#2.




Parking Lot and the City’s Municipal Auditorium as may be reasonably requested by the Developer
to facilitate construction of the Parking Garage, the improvements to the City’s Municipal
Auditorium, and the Project; provided that title to the Parking Lot shall at all times remain in the
City and, promptly upon satisfactory completion of the construction of the Parking Garage and the
improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium, the Developer shall execute or cause to be
execute such instruments and shall take or cause to be taken such actions as may be required totitle
all improvements, realty, and personalty at or serving the Parking Garage in the name of the City
and to assign all attendant equipment warranties and similar rights in connection with the
construction and installation of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal
Auditorium to the City; and provided further that the Developer shall cause the applicable
Construction Contractor to provide to the City a minimum One (1) year warranty against defects of
all work performed and materials used in connection with the construction and installation of the
Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium.

Section 3.2.1. Construction Plans. Within Thirty (30) days following the granting
by the City of Zoning Approvals for the Project, the Developer shall submit for approval by
the City Construction Plans in sufficient completeness and detail to show that construction
will satisfy the Minimum Development Program and be in conformance with the Zoning
Approvals and with the provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding and this
Agreement. The Construction Plans shall be prepared by a professional engineer or
architect licensed to practice in the State of Missouri. Construction Plans and all
construction practices and procedures with respect to the Project shall be in conformity with
all Applicable Regulations. The City hereby agrees to waive fees for building permits,
sewer and water tapping fees, and all similar fees customarily applicable to the development
and construction of the Project including any expansion thereof and the Hotel/Convention

Center Properties.

Section 3.2.2. City Review and Approvals. Upon submittal by the Developer of
the Construction Plans, the City shall expeditiously review and approve or reject same, in
writing within Thirty (30) days of receipt by the City of the Construction Plans. If the City
rejects any portion of the Construction Plans, said rejection shall specify any and all
deficiencies in the Construction Plans relating to lack of conformity with the Zoning
Approvals, the Memorandum of Understanding or this Agreement, the Minimum
Development Program or with Applicable Regulations; provided that the City’s failure to
specify deficiencies in the Construction Plans relating to Applicable Regulations shall not
relieve the Developer of the Developer’s obligations to perform all construction work
related to the Project in accordance therewith. Following receipt of any such rejection, the
Developer shall submit new or corrected Construction Plans within Thirty (30) days after
the date the Developer receives written notice of the City’s rejection of the Construction
Plans or portion thereof referred to in the latest such notice. The provisions of this Section
3.2.2 relating to approval, rejection and resubmittal of the Construction Plans shall continue
to apply to resubmittal of corrected Construction Plans until the Construction Plans have
been approved by the City; provided that the periods for each such subsequent review by the
City shall be reduced to Fourteen (14) days. The Developer agrees that all construction
work by or on behalf of the Developer or its Affiliates, agents or independent contractors

11
15

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Cormerer operties (v.4)

#2.




shall be in substantial conformity with the Construction Plans as finally approved by the
City.

Section 3.2.3. Time for Project Completion; Delays: Notification Required;
Developer’s Control Over the Project. Within Thirty (30) days of the City’s approval
of the Construction Plans and issuance of requisite permits, the Developer shall
commence or cause to be commenced and shall diligently pursue the construction and
development of the Project to completion, and shall substantially complete the Project
and obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for the Developer Acquired Properties not later
than the later of (i) Twenty-Two (22) months from the Effective Date; or (ii) Fifteen (15)
months from the date of receipt of the City’s approval of the Construction Plans and
issuance of requisite permits for the Project, all subject to Force Majeure as provided in
this Section 3.2.3. The times within which the construction of the Project is to
commence and be completed as set forth in this Section 3.2.3, shall be automatically
extended appropriately as a result of any event of Force Majeure; provided that in the
event of any such delays, the Developer shall promptly notify the City in writing stating
the nature of the delay which, in the reasonable opinion of the Developer, justifies the
extension. Any delay under this Section 3.2.3 shall result in a day-for-day extension of
any obligations, deadlines or dates set forth in this Agreement that are directly affected
by such delay. Other than time for completion requirements of this Section 3.2.3, the
Developer shall have complete and exclusive control over the implementation and timing
of the Project and the management and operation of the Project and the Hotel/Convention
Center Properties, subject to the further requirements of this Agreement.

Section 3.2.4. Construction _Contracts. In constructing or causing the
construction of the Project, the Developer may enter into one or more contracts with one or
more Construction Contractors. Prior to the commencement of construction, the Developer
shall obtain or shall ensure that any such Construction Contractor obtains workers’
compensation, comprehensive public liability and builder’s risk insurance coverage in
amounts customary in the industry for similar type projects. Prior to commencement of
construction, the Developer shall deliver to the City evidence of all insurance to be
maintained by such Construction Contractors as required by this Section 3.2.4. The
Developer shall ensure that the insurance required is maintained by any such Construction
Contractor for the duration of the construction of the Project. To the extent that payment
bond requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or
successor enactments or prevailing wage or other wage and hour statutes or requirements
apply to any portion of the Project, the Developer covenants and agrees on behalf of itself
and for any Construction Contractor to take all such actions as are necessary to obtain such
payment bonds, to apply for wage and hour determinations, and to otherwise comply with
all such laws, regulations or requirements.

Section 3.3.  Developer to Adhere to All Applicable Regulations. To the full extent that any
Applicable Regulation applies to any aspect of construction of the Project or any portion thereof,
the Developer for itself and for any Construction Contractor or sub-contractor as agent of the
Developer hereby covenants and agrees to take or cause to be taken all such actions as are
necessary to fully comply with such Applicable Regulation. The Project and any portions thereof

12
16

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CdrrerrT bperties (v.4)

#2.




shall be subject all lawful regulatory inspections and to periodic inspections by the City at
reasonable times with prior notice to the Developer to determine compliance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and the Developer shall promptly perform or cause to be performed
all such necessary acts as may be required by Applicable Regulations or this Agreement. With
respect to the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal
Auditorium, and any other portions of the Project to be conveyed or dedicated to the City or other
public entity, the Developer as limited agent for the City shall additionally comply with and
satisfy all requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended
regarding the obtaining of payment bonds; the laws of the State of Missouri relating to the
payment of prevailing wages; and the ordinances and purchasing policies of the City including
any requirement for competitive bidding of contractor and subcontractor services.

Section 3.4. Breach and Compliance: Right to Cure; Remedies Not Exclusive. In the
event of substantial non-compliance with any of the terms of this Article I, written notice of
same may be delivered to the Developer by the City or by the District, and, if the Developer shall
not have corrected such substantial non-compliance within Forty-Five (45) days after receipt of
such notice (unless the time for such correction is further extended in writing by the City or the
District, as applicable, or unless such correction reasonably requires more than 45 days to
correct; provided that, the Developer in each case diligently pursues such correction to
satisfactory completion), the City or the District may institute such proceedings as may be
necessary or desirable in the City’s or the District’s sole opinion to cure and remedy such default
including, without limitation, the remedy of specific performance. None of the foregoing
remedies shall be exclusive of any other remedy specified in this Section 3.4 or otherwise
available to the City or the District at law or in equity and any and all such remedies may be
exercised by the City or the District individually, sequentially, collectively, or in the alternative,
all at the City’s or the District’s sole discretion. :

ARTICLE IV.
CITY, DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS, COMMITMENTS AND IN CENTIVES

Section 4.1. Real Property Tax Relief. In consideration of the foregoing undertakings and
covenants of the Developer set forth in Article III of this Agreement, the District during the life
of the District, but in no event later than the period which is Twenty-Five (25) years from the
date of substantial completion of the Project in accordance with Section 3.3.3 of this Agreement
shall annually rebate to the Developer all amounts actually collected on behalf of and received
by the District (as verified by the District) in such year from levies of the District’s Special Real
Property Tax in respect of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties and, in the event that the
Project is expanded as provided in Section 3.1 of this Agreement, the portions of the Commerce
Bank Property included in such Project expansion. Rebates applicable to any tax year shall be
made not later than the last day of February of the succeeding tax year. All such payments by
the District shall be subject to annual appropriation by the Board of Directors of the District and
in each case shall be considered current year expenses in the year to which they apply. In
addition, to the extent that the District expires or is dissolved prior to the date which is Twenty-
Five (25) years from the date of substantial completion of the Project, the City agrees to use best
efforts to take such actions, hold such hearings, and grant such approvals under one or more then
applicable redevelopment statutes to provide for equivalent annual real property tax relief in

13
17

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Cormere operties (v.4)

#2.




respect of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties and, as applicable, the portions of the
Commerce Bank Property included in a Project expansion the for the period remaining of the

aforesaid 25 years.

Section 4.2. City Sales Tax. The City shall cause to be paid directly to the Developer from
lawfully available funds an amount equal to the revenue actually paid to and received by the City
(as verified by the City) as provided in this Section 4.2 by the Developer during the period
provided in this Agreement for completion of the Project which was generated by the levy of the
City Sales Tax on purchases by the Developer or on behalf of the Developer by a Construction
Contractor, but only from vendors or suppliers having a principal place of business within the
County of Randolph, of tangible materials and personal property actually incorporated into or
consumed in the construction of the Project; provided that in each case, any excess re-salable
tangible personal property or materials which were purchased for the Project by the Developer or
on behalf of the Developer by a Construction Contractor but which were not incorporated into or
consumed in the construction of the Project shall either (1) be returned to the supplier for credit
or the appropriate sales tax on such excess property; or (ii) be reported on a return and paid by
the Developer or a Construction Contractor and in either case shall be deducted from the
amounts due from the City; and provided further that notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, the parties hereto acknowledge that provision for amounts
constituting any portion of the payments made or to be made pursuant to this Section 4.2 which
extend for any reason beyond any calendar year in which such cost is incurred shall be subject to

annual appropriation by the City Council.

Section 4.2.1. Frequency of Pavments; Application and Verification
Required; Cooperation; Current Year Expenses. Payments as set forth in Section 4.2
of this Agreement shall be made, subject to annual appropriation by the City Council,
quarterly and upon written application by the Developer, together with submittal by the
Developer, of accompanying receipts and documentation as or similar to that required by
sections 144.635 and 144.640 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and
reasonably sufficient in content and detail (in the sole judgment of the City) to permit the
applicable officer of the City to reasonably verify the City Sales Tax amounts actually
paid by the Developer or on behalf of the Developer by a Construction Contractor for
purchases, but only from vendors or suppliers having a principal place of business within
the County of Randolph, of tangible materials and personal property actually
incorporated into or consumed in the construction of the Project during the period
provided in this Agreement for the completion of the Project. Payments as set forth in
Section 4.2 of this Agreement shall be deemed to be current expenses in the applicable

year to which such payments apply

Section 4.2.2. Exemption Certificate. The City shall prepare and furnish to
Construction Contractors a sales tax exemption certificate containing the information set
forth in section 144.062 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, authorizing tax-
exempt purchases of tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated into or
consumed in construction but only for those portions of the Project to be owned or held
by the City or the District and related to the City’s or the District’s exempt functions and
activities. Any excess resalable tangible personal property or materials which were

14
m
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CelTere operties (v.4)

#2.




purchased for the portions of the Project to be owned or held by the City or the District
and related to the City’s or the District’s exempt functions and activities by a
Construction Contractor or subcontractor under the aforesaid exemption certificate but
which were not incorporated into or consumed in the construction of such portions of the
Project shall either be returned to the supplier for credit or the appropriate sales or use tax
on such excess property or materials shall be reported on a return and paid by such
Construction Contractor or subcontractor not later than the due date of that Construction
Contractor’s or subcontractor’s Missouri sales or use tax return following the month in
which it was determined that the materials were not to be used in such portions of the
Project. In the event for any reason, (i) the City is found not to have had the authority to
issue the exemption certificate provided for in this Section 4.2.2, in whole or in part; or
(i) any Construction Contractor or subcontractor under color of the exemption certificate
shall make tax-exempt purchases of personal property and materials which are not
incorporated into or consumed in the construction of those portions of the Project to be
owned or held by the City or the District and related to the City’s or the District’s exempt
functions and activities, then the Developer shall be liable to the City for payments or
repayments of any tax found to be owed on such personal property and materials.

Section 4.3. NID Financing. The City and the Developer shall cooperate to obtain financing
under the NID Act for the construction of the Parking Garage and the installation of
improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium as provided in this Section 4.2.
Contemporaneous with the approval and execution of this Agreement, the City and the
Developer by preparing and filing with the Clerk of the City the NID Petition and will
expeditiously take such steps as are required under the NID Act to establish the NID District.
During and subject to the Feasibility Period, the City shall expeditiously cause preparation, in
cooperation with Developer, of plans and specifications describing the Parking Garage and the
improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium in detail sufficient in the determination of
Bond Counsel for inclusion in the ordinances approving the NID; cause preparation of requisite
assessment rolls; conduct required public hearings; order that improvements be made and that
associated assessments be levied. At the earliest feasible time consistent with market conditions
and the application of prudent public finance principles the City shall, subject to availability of
underwriting reasonably acceptable to the City, order and direct the issuance of the NID Bonds,

all in accordance with this Agreement.

Section 4.3.1. Terms of NID Bonds; Procedures for Issuance. The Developer
agrees to advance the costs of constructing the Parking Garage and the improvements to
the City’s Municipal Auditorium as set forth on Schedule 1 to this Agreement, subject to
reimbursement in accordance with Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement from monies
deposited in the NID Project Fund and the City agrees to issue the NID Bonds, all as
required by this Agreement, in an aggregate principal amount necessary to provide a
minimum NID Project Fund of $ - All costs of constructing the Parking
Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium shall be paid from NID
Project Fund. In conjunction with the issuance of the NID Bonds, the City shall select
one or more underwriters or purchasers of the NID Bonds. Each series of NID Bonds
shall bear interest at such rates, shall be subject to redemption, and shall have such terms
as the City, acting through Bond Counsel and the respective underwriter or purchaser,

15
m
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Cefrer operties (v.4)

#2.




shall determine. The City and the Developer hereby agree to assist and cooperate with
one another and with Bond Counsel, the underwriter(s) or purchaser(s), in the preparation
of offering statements, private placement memoranda or other disclosure documents and
all other documents necessary to market and sell the NID Bonds. The NID Project Fund
shall be held by the City in the custody of the City’s Director of Finance and amounts
therein shall be disbursed to the Developer as reimbursements upon satisfactory
completion of the portions of each improvement as further set forth in Section 4.3.2 of
this Agreement. The City shall retain interest on all amounts held in the NID Project
Fund. In the event that the NID Bonds have not been successfully marketed, underwritten
and sold by the City prior to construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to
the City’s Municipal Auditorium as set forth on Schedule 1 to this Agreement, the City
shall issue temporary notes to temporarily reimburse Developer for its costs upon
satisfactory completion of the portions of each improvement as further set forth in
Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement and the City shall be reimbursed and the temporary notes
retired upon receipt of the proceeds from the sale of the NID Bonds,

Section 4.3.2. Payment of NID Assessments: Reimbursements to Developer.
The City shall pay from lawfully available funds, subject to annual appropriation, all
assessments to be levied under the NID Act against any and all platted lots and parcels of
real property within the NID District, whether or not owned by the Developer or any
Affiliate or by any other party, on or before the date such assessments are due. Requests
for reimbursement of costs incurred by or on behalf of the Developer in connection with
the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City’s Municipal
Auditorium shall be submitted not more frequently than quarterly. Each request for
reimbursement shall be accompanied by a Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement
Costs and shall in each case be further evidenced by: (i) copies of each invoice prepared
by the applicable vendor, contractor or other supplier for which a reimbursement is
sought; and (ii) copies of cancelled check(s), front and rear, or other evidence of payment
of such invoice. The City reserves the right to reject and require resubmittal of any
request which does not satisfy the foregoing requirements, which determination of
sufficiency shall be in the City’s discretion, exercise of which discretion shall be
dispositive. Until the acceptance by the City of the Parking Garage and the improvements
to the City’s Municipal Auditorium, the Developer shall maintain each such improvement
in a first-class and workman-like manner in accordance with applicable City standards
and in a condition reasonably satisfactory to permit such acceptance by the City or other
applicable public entity. The City agrees to accept the aforesaid improvements (or
portions thereof) as soon as is reasonably practicable; provided that construction and
installation of each such improvement (or portion) to be accepted complies in all material
respects with provisions of this Agreement.

Section 4.4. Other Commitments and Contributions; Allocations. To further assist and
support the implementation and financing of the Project, the City and the District hereby agree,
subject to satisfactory completion by the Developer of the entire Project, to the full extent lawful
to pledge and utilize toward the payment or financing of Project costs certain portions of
revenues actually paid to and received by the City and the District, as applicable, but only from
economic activities at the completed Project and in amounts which are over and above such

16
20
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention C Operties (v.4)

#2.




amounts required to pay assessments levied under the NID Act and necessary to meet annual
debt service requirements on the NID Bonds so long as the NID Bonds or any portion thereof

remain outstanding, as follows:

() portions of the City Sales Tax allocable to capital improvements and
transportation improvements;

(if)  the District’s 1.0% sales tax on all taxable “sales at retail” (as that term is
defined and used in chapter 144 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended)
occurring within the area of the NID District;

(i)  one half of the City’s 4% lodging tax applicable to sales of sleeping rooms
at the completed Project; and

(iv)  franchise fees received by the City for electric power and other utility
usage at the completed Project.

The foregoing revenues shall be calculated by the City and the District on an annual basis for a
period coterminous with the term of the NID Bonds and shall be paid, subject to annual
appropriation by the governing bodies of the City and the District, respectively, to or to the order
of the Developer or Affiliate or their designee not later than the last day of February of the
succeeding year; provided that the City reserves the right to apply for and use such grant funds
as made be made available at any time during the period required for construction of the Project
and to substitute such amounts for any of the aforesaid revenue sources and in each such case,
the City shall continue to calculate annually amounts attributable to revenue sources identified in
clauses (i), (iii) and (iv) of this Section 4.4 and shall pay to the order of the Developer or
Affiliate or their designee, subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, such amounts
whether from such revenue sources, from grant funds received, or from any combination of the
foregoing; and provided further that any such amounts shall only be paid after and from amounts
remaining from the aforesaid sources after payments by the City from such sources of
assessments levied under the NID Act and necessary to meet annual debt service requirements on
the NID Bonds; it being understood and agreed by the parties to this Agreement that the revenue
sources identified in clauses (i) through (iv) of this Section 4.4 shall provide the source of
payment in any year of assessments levied under the NID Act on properties within the NID
District which payment shall be a pre-requisite in any year for any payments under this Section
4.4 to the Developer or Affiliate or their designee.. Monies paid to or to the order of the
Developer or Affiliate or their designee shall only be used and applied for lawful purposes.

Section 4.5. Further Cooperative Efforts. The City, the District, and the Developer each agree
to take such actions, including the execution and delivery of such documents, instruments, petitions
and certifications supplemental hereto as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the terms,
provisions and intent of this Article IV and the Agreement and which do not impair the rights of the
signing party as they exist under this Agreement, and to aid and assist each other in carrying out said
terms, provisions and intent. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the City and the
District each agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with and assist the
Developer (i) to identify and secure additional and complementary investment in or near the
Project and to identify potential end users of space within the Hotel/Convention Center
Properties; (ii) to obtain inclusion of the Kelly Hotel on the National Register of Historic Places
and in applications for historic preservation tax credits or other similar tax credits as and when

121

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CeTere perties (v.4)

#2.




available for the rehabilitation of the Kelly Hotel building; provided thar the Developer shall be
under no obligation to make applications to include the Kelly Hotel on the National Register of
Historic Places or for historic preservation tax credits or other tax credits; (iii) to secure such
additional private source funding as may be necessary or convenient to carry out the
rehabilitation of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties; provided that nothing in the foregoing
clause shall be deemed to require a financial contribution, pledge or commitment from the City
or the District other than the express commitments made in Sections 4.1 through 4.4, inclusive of
this Agreement; and (iv) to make approaches to local business and civic entities to secure
commitments for hotel facility patronage during the first Three (3) years following completion of
the Project. In addition to the foregoing, subject to satisfactory completion of the entire Project
in accordance with this Agreement, the City and the District agree to commit additional funding
but only from lawfully available sources and undertake on behalf of the Project marketing and
promotion efforts during the first Three (3) years of operation of the Project.

ARTICLE V.
FURTHER OBLIGATIONS; DEVELOPER REPRESENTATIONS

Section 5.1. Indemnification; Third Party Actions. The Developer shall have the right, but
not the obligation, to assume the costs of defense of any Third Party Action (including, without
limitation, to settle or compromise any claim or action for which the Developer has assumed the
defense) with counsel of the Developer’s choosing and reasonably acceptable to the City and the
District and the City, the District and the Developer each agrees that so long as no conflicts of
interest exist between or among them, the same attorney or attorneys may simultaneously
represent the City, the District, and the Developer in any such proceeding; provided that in the
event the Developer elects not to assume the costs of defense or subsequently abandons the
defense of any Third Party Action undertaken by the Developer, in no event shall the City or the
District have any obligation to assume such defense. In each Third Party Action for which the
Developer has assumed the costs of defense, the Developer shall indemnify and hold the City
and the District together with their respective officials, agents, employees, attorneys, and
representatives acting in any capacity harmless from all such Third Party Actions. In no event
shall the City or the District have any obligation to initiate or to assume the defense of any Third
Party Action nor shall the City or the District nor any officer, official, agent, attorney, employee
or representative of the either of them have any liability to the Developer or any officer, agent,
employee or representative of the Developer for damages, costs or otherwise in the event that all
or any part of this Agreement, the Approving Ordinance, the Approving Resolution, the
conveyances set forth in Article IT of this Agreement or any of them, the provisions for payment
or rebate of City Sales Tax amounts set forth in Section 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreement, the NID
Bonds, the commitments and allocations made under Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Agreement or
any of them, or any of the transactions or undertakings contemplated under this Agreement shall
be declared invalid or unconstitutional in whole or in part by a final (as to which all rights of
appeal have been exhausted or expired) judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, or as a
result of initiation of any claim, action or proceeding, the Developer is prevented from enjoying
any of the rights and privileges of the Developer under this Agreement.

Section 5.2. Representations of Developer. The Developer hereby represents and warrants to
the City and the District that as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date:

18
H
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CEenTer® operties (v.4)

#2.




(@)  The Developer is a duly organized Missouri limited liability company existing
and in good standing under the laws of the State of Missouri;

(b)  The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Developer will not conflict
with or result in a breach of any of the terms of, or constitute a default under, any indenture,
mortgage, deed of trust, lease or other agreement or instrument to which the Developer or any
Affiliate is a party or by which the Developer or any Affiliate is bound or any applicable articles
of organization, or operating agreement, or any of the rules or regulations of any governmental
authority applicable to the Developer or any Affiliate;

(c) The Developer has full corporate power to execute and deliver and perform the
terms and obligations of this Agreement. The Developer has been authorized by all necessary
action to execute and deliver this Agreement, which shall constitute the legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Developer, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy and
other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and to general principles of equity;

(d)  There are no actions or proceedings by or before any court, governmental
commission, board, bureau, or any other administrative agency pending, threatened, or affecting
the Developer or any Affiliate or any property thereof that would impair the Developer’s ability
to perform under this Agreement; and

(e) The Developer has obtained or will obtain as and when required by Applicable
Regulations, and shall maintain, all government permits, certificates, and consents (including,
without limitation, environmental approvals required by any Applicable Regulation) necessary to
conduct the Developer’s business and to construct, complete, and operate the Project.

Section 5.3. Survival of Covenants. All warranties, representations, covenants, and
agreements of the Developer contained in this Article V shall survive termination of this

Agreement for any reason.

ARTICLE VI.
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 6.1. Assignment Limited. The Developer shall have the right to assign this
Agreement in whole or in part at any time, but only to an Affiliate and upon written notice of
such assignment to the City and the District. Other than the foregoing, the Developer may not
sell, assign or otherwise transfer its interest in this Agreement in whole or in part to any other
individual or entity other than to an Affiliate without the written consent of the City which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

Section 6.2. Term of Agreement. Unless terminated prior to the Closing, this Agreement

shall continue in force: (a) so long as any payments by the City required under Section 4.1 of
this Agreement remain unsatisfied; or (b) the date of the defeasance and satisfaction of the NID
Bonds, whichever is later. The rights and privileges granted to and the duties and obligations

19
23
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention C operties (v.4)

#2.




imposed on the Developer by this Agreement shall apply only to the Project and the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties.

Section 6.3. Notices. Whenever notice or other communication is called for in this Agreement
to be given or is otherwise given, such notice shall be in writing addressed to the addressees at
the addresses set forth below, and transmitted by any of the following means: (a) personal
service; (b) overnight courier; or (c) registered or certified United States mail, return receipt

requested:

If to the City: City of Moberly
101 West Reed Street - City Hall
Moberly, Missouri 65270
Attention: City Manager

with a copy to: Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C.
333 South Kirkwood Road, Suite 300
St. Louis, Missouri 63122
Attention: Thomas A. Cunningham, Esq.

If to the District: Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District
101 West Reed Street
Moberly, Missouri 65270
Attention: Chair

If to the Developer:  Mashburn Development, LLC
1704 NW 450 Road
Kingsville, Missouri 64061
Attention: David Mashburn

With a copy to:

Attention:

or to such other persons as any of the Parties may designate in writing from time to time in
accordance with this Section 6.3 and all said notices shall be deemed given, as applicable, (a)
upon hand delivery, (b) upon deposit with an overnight courier, or (c) upon deposit in the United
States mail.

Section 6.4. Further Assistance. The City, the District, and the Developer each agree to take
such actions and execute such documents and instruments as may be reasonably necessary or
appropriate to carry out the terms, provisions and intent of this Agreement and to aid and assist
each other in carrying out said terms, provisions and intent.

Section 6.5. Survival; Severability. Any provisions of this Agreement that by their terms
provide for or contemplate obligations or duties of a Party that are to extend beyond the

2
24

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Clrrrerr perties (v.4)

#2.




expiration or termination of this Agreement (and the corresponding rights of the other Party to
enforce or receive the benefit of such obligations or duties) shall survive such expiration or
termination of this Agreement for any reason. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed
severable. If any word, phrase, term, sentence, paragraph, or other portion of this Agreement
shall, at any time or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement
shall not be affected by such partial invalidity, and each remaining word, phrase, term, sentence,
paragraph covenant, or other portion of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the

fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 6.6. Headings; No Presumption; Agreement Preparation. The headings and
captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only, and in no way define, limit,
or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement of any provision thereof and shall in no way be
deemed to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation or construction of the provisions
of this Agreement. Each Party to this Agreement and their attorneys have had full opportunity to
review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Agreement and all documents
attached as exhibits. This Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or
other rule of construction whereby ambiguities within this Agreement or such other document
would be construed or interpreted against the Party causing the document to be drafted. The
Parties hereto each further represent that the terms of this Agreement and the documents attached
as exhibits hereto have been completely read by them and that those terms are fully understood
and voluntarily accepted by them. In any interpretation, construction or determination of the
meaning of any provision of this Agreement, no presumption whatsoever shall arise from the fact
that the Agreement was prepared by or on behalf of any Party hereto.

Section 6.7. Choice of Law; Venue: Waiver of Objections. This Agreement and its
performance shall be deemed to have been fully executed, made by the Parties in, and govemned
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri applicable to contracts
made and to be performed wholly within such state, without regard to choice or conflict of laws
provisions. The Parties hereto each agree that any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial
proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of
Randolph County, Missouri or in federal court of the Eastern District of Missouri and waive any
objection based upon venue or forum non conveniens or otherwise.

Section 6.8. Entire Agreement; Amendments; No Waiver by Prior Actions. The Parties
hereto agree that this Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and no
other agreements or representations other than those contained in this Agreement have been
made by the Parties. This Agreement shall be amended only in writing and effective when
signed by the duly authorized agents of the Parties. The failure of any Party hereto to insist in
any one or more cases upon the strict performance of any term, covenant or condition of this
Agreement to be performed or observed by another Party shall not constitute a waiver or
relinquishment for the future of any such term, covenant or condition.

Section 6.9. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity; Public Liability Strictly Limited; No
Personal Liability. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or deemed to constitute a
waiver of the City’s or the District’s sovereign immunity. The Parties hereto agree that in no
event shall the City, the District or any of their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys,

21
25
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CETrerT operties (v.4)

#2.




employees, or representatives have any liability in damages or any other monetary liability to the
Developer or any Affiliate, assignee, sublessee, successor, assign, heir or personal representative
of the Developer in respect of any suit, claim, or cause of action arising out of this Agreement
other than for a failure of payment of the amounts agreed to be paid by the City or by the
District, the remedy for which failure shall be limited to a suit for specific performance and no
consequential or other damage theories shall be applied, all of which theories in consideration of
the undertakings of the City and the District under this Agreement are hereby irrevocably waived
by the Developer for itself and for any Affiliate, assignee, sublessee, successor, assign, heir or
personal representative of the Developer. No official, officer, agent, attorney, employee, or
representative of the City or of the District shall be personally liable to the Developer or any
Affiliate or the assignees, sublessees, successors, assigns, heirs or personal representatives of the
Developer or Affiliate in the event of any default or breach by any party under this Agreement,
or for any amount which may become due to any party or on any obligations under the terms of

this Agreement.

Section 6.10. Relationship of the Parties; No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained
in this Agreement nor any act of the Developer or the City shall be deemed or construed to create
a partnership or agency relationship between or among the Parties or their agents or
representatives and this Agreement is and shall be limited to the specific purposes set out herein.
Other than as expressly provided in this Agreement, no Party shall be the agent of, or have any
rights to create any obligations or liabilities binding on, the other Party. The Parties do not
intend to confer any benefit under this Agreement on any person or entity other than the named

Parties hereto.

Section 6.11. Binding Effect. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the
covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement shall bind and inure to the
benefit of the Developer, the City, and the District and their respective successors and permitted

assigns.

Section 6.12. Execution; Counterparts. FEach person executing this Agreement in a
representative capacity warrants and represents that they have authority to do so, and upon
request by another Party, proof of such authority will be furnished to the requesting Party. This
Agreement may be executed at different times and in two or more counterparts, and all
counterparts so executed shall for all purposes constitute one and the same instrument, binding
on the Parties hereto, notwithstanding that both Parties may not have executed the same
counterpart. In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more
than one such counterpart executed by the Party against whom enforcement is sought.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and
Jyear first written above.

CITY OF MOBERLY
(the “City”)

2
26

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Cmrerr perties (v.4)

#2.




By:
Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor
ATTEST:

D. K. Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk

DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
(the “District™)

#2.

By:
Chair
ATTEST:
Secretary
MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a
Missouri limited liability company
(the “Developer”)
By:
Its:
ATTEST:
Printed name:
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF RANDOLPH )
23

27
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Clrrrer=r operties (v.4)




On this ___ day of » 2019, before me appeared Jerry Jeffrey, to me
personally known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Mayor of the CITY OF
MOBERLY, a city of the third classification and Missouri municipal corporation and that the
seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the official seal of said City, and that said instrument
was signed and sealed in behalf of said City by authority of its City Council and said Mayor
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said City.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the
County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My commission expires:
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF RANDOLPH )
On this day of | » 2019, before me appeared Brian Crane, to me personally

known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Chair of the Board of Directors of the
DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a community
improvement district and Missouri political subdivision and that the seal affixed to the foregoing
instrument is the official seal of said District, and that said instrument was signed and sealed in
behalf of said City by authority of its Board of Directors and said Chair acknowledged said
instrument to be the free act and deed of said District.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the
County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My commission expires:
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF )
On this day of » 2019, before me appeared David Mashburn, to

me personally known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the of
MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company, and that said
instrument was signed in behalf of said limited liability company by authority of its governing
body and said person acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said limited

liability company.

2
28
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention C operties (v.4)

#2.




IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal

in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written.

My commission expires:

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention C

Iz
29

#2.

bperties (v.4)

Notary Public




EXHIBIT A

CERTIFICATE OF REIMBURSABLE IMPROVEMENT COSTS (form)

PARKING GARAGE AND MUNICIPAL AUDITORIUM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
CERTIFICATE OF REIMBURSABLE IMPROVEMENT COSTS NO.

TO: City of Moberly
101 West Reed Street — City Hall
Moberly, Missouri 65270

e Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District
101 West Reed Street
Moberly, Missouri 65270

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs
(this “Certificate”) shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in that certain Purchase and
Development Agreement, dated as of , 20__, (the “Development Agreement”)
by and among the City of Moberly, Missouri, the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement
District, and Mashburn Development, LLC.

In connection with the Development Agreement, the undersigned hereby states, certifies, and
represents and warrants to the City and the District that:

1. Each item listed on Annex 1 attached hereto is an “improvement” (as that term is used
and defined in the NID Act) the costs of which was incurred by or on behalf of the Developer in
connection with the installation of the Parking Garage and/or improvements to the City’s
Municipal Auditorium set forth on Schedule 1 to the Development Agreement and was paid by
or on behalf of the Developer in connection with the Developer’s obligations under the

Development Agreement; and

2. No item listed on Annex 1 has been previously paid or reimbursed to the Developer and
no part thereof has been included in any other Certificate previously submitted to the City under

the Development Agreement.

3. All necessary permits and approvals required for the entire Project have been issued or
obtained and are in full force and effect; and

4. All work for which payment or reimbursement is requested pursuant to this Certificate
has been performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with the Development

Agreement; and

2 The Developer has made or caused to be made all required payments to contractors and
sub-contractors in connection with the items listed on Annex 1 and lien waivers for each
applicable item have been obtained and copies are attached hereto; there has not been filed with
or served upon the Developer, any Affiliate, or any Construction Contractor any notice of any

26
30

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Chrrerr operties (v.4)

#2.




lien, right of lien, or attachment upon or claim affecting the right of any person, fim, or
corporation to receive payment of the amounts stated in this Certificate, except to the extent such
lien is being contested in good faith and is listed as such in Annex 1; and

6. Neither the Developer nor any Affiliate is in default or breach of any term or condition of
the Development Agreement.

Submitted, verified and signed under pains and penalties of perjury this day of

, 20
MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC
By:
Printed Name:
Title:
Accepted and Approved this day of , 20
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI

By:
Printed Name:
Title;

27H
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




Annex 1 to Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs

Item Description Cost
1. $

2.

3.

Total this Certificate: $

e

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CETTe Properties (v.4)

#2.




EXHIBIT B

COMMERCE BANK PROPERTY

Commerce Bank
Parcel, 208 West Reed
Street 10-1.0-01.0-2.0-
004-048.000 (less West
Parking Lot Area)

¥
H
i
i
¥
H
H
H
Bssscanaesss

.
I
B
:
-
I
“

v
B
£
K
.
-
:
N
“
i
=

2

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention operties (v.4)

#2.




EXHIBIT C

THE HOTEL/CONVENTION CENTER PROPERTIES

A
Smith
Building, 220
West Reed St.
10-1.0-01.0-

Parking Lot
(City owned)
10-1.0-01.0-
2.0-004-
061.000

i g e

West Parking Lot

Area (Lots 5 & 6 of
Commerce Bank
Property)

Kelly Hotel
and City’s
Municipal
Auditorium
10-1.0-01.0-
2.0-004-
049.000

“anvasasyras

s A

hazsessia, srsscasgs

3

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention

operties (v.4)

#2.




EXHIBIT D
MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM SCHEMATIC DRAWINGS

Parking Garage: Consists of an elevated deck parking garage on top of the existing parking
lot to provide a 2-story open roof parking garage.

[OREAN
Q1

Key:
“ Merchants’ Hotel Block ! Kelly Hotel (Kelly Annex Studios)
Parking Garage Block mwmm  Municipal Auditorium

¢

Base Map Source: Steven. L NuhN Archite

! Based on current Gray Design Group, Inc. schematics.

3
35
i roperties (v.4)

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention

#2.




Merchant Hotel Annex Remodel: Remodel of the existing Kelley Annex building to provide

32 additional units (19,051 SF) with an add on stair tower and elevator shaft.

#2.

i e

T AE L
. gl T 3
R f <k Fal, ||

LOWER LEVEL PLAN

Ll

S iy e M

32

36

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention C

VIILCL 17

operties (v.4)




]

i r[.'“:'f
Lillli]

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

Sk

-37
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CETTer P roperties (v.4)

#2.




Merchant Hotel & Connector New Construction: 68 units (50,346 SF) included in four (4)

levels of Type 5A wood framed construction type. The building exterior is a stucco fagade,

TPO roofing, and exterior balconies to replicate the look of the historic Merchant’s Hotel.

arcooaoen

Ermi-l | N oy NI LI

; - I=)
= g

e | ;
i[.r= & A, =)
i[> = f [ f=>)
! . R S
2 = I 3 D -
i mx_:mfn_":( IL: EA\‘? ¢

Sl NP T 11

B ol &
ELL;MTJJII O 11

il !':‘) PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN.

I

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Scubaz 1T = 1 0e

THE MERCHANTS HOTEL

Ciity 0! Motiarly, Minsemut

S i

(:.' |, PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN
SEROPC

GUEST ROOM ¢

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

Seader VA Vo0

THE MERCHANTS HOTEL

CAY o Moberty, Miasevm

38
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Cerrrer—r operties (v.4)

sl oa e

grays

119433
10.042010

gray”

1
10.04.2018

#2.




e Sy

g
=
N

50
[i
AN

an
l
§0

B

ag)
U
S

2
13

i
[}
I~

d
’z:l

GUEST ROOM COUNT BREAKDOR

[ ' PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR PLAN

grayr

PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR PLAN THE MERCHANTS HOTEL

Scala: im*e 1.0 Caty of Molaily, Mesourt ‘;;:c;u:m
((&
=2 e
=] i; i A i [l e ]
ol i1 O 'fIHIH '
11
S u,mun '
(l_- PROPOSED FOURTH 1 FLOOR + ROOFTOP PATIO PLAN
PROPOSED FOURTH FLOOR + ROOFTOP PATIO PLAN THE MERCHANTS HOTEL gl‘ ) )
Scale: 10" = 10" City of Mooy, Mezzour |nll')lm2'|i‘m

3
39

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Chrrere operties (v.4)




EXHIBIT E

NID PETITION (form)

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH )

PETITION FOR THE CREATION OF A
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI:

The undersigned, representing the owners of record of at least two-thirds by area of all
real property located within a proposed Neighborhood Improvement District (as that term is
defined and used in section 67.453(6) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) as further
described below, hereby file and submit this Petition for the creation of a Neighborhood
Improvement District (this “Petition™) and request that the Council of the City of Moberly (the
“City Council”) by resolution or ordinance determine the advisability of the Improvements (as
hereinafter defined) and order that the Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood
Improvement District be established, all pursuant to the Neighborhood Improvement District
Act, sections 67.453 through 67.457 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “NID
Act”), and as further set forth in this Petition. Capitalized terms used and not defined in this
Petition shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in that certain Purchase and
Development Agreement, dated as of , 20__, by and among the City of
Moberly, Missouri, the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District, and Mashburn
Development, LLC (the “Development Agreement”) which is hereby incorporated by reference
in this Petition as if set forth in its entirety in this Dlace.

L. The project name for the proposed Improvements shall be the Parking Garage and
Municipal Auditorium Improvements Project (the “Project”).

2; The general nature of the proposed Improvements includes: (a) construction and
installation of an elevated two-story open roof public parking garage; (b) relocation, installation
and renovation of sanitary and storm sewerage in connection with the foregoing; (c) construction
and reconstruction of sidewalks, pavement, curbs and gutters in conjunction with the foregoing;
(d) improvements to the City’s Municipal Auditorium as set forth in the Development
Agreement; and (e) such other streetscape and other public improvements and facilities as may
be appurtenant to the redevelopment of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as a high quality
boutique destination hotel and convention venue in accordance with the Minimum Development
Program and which satisfy the definition of the term “improvement” as set forth in section
67.453(5) of the NID Act, all generally located within and serving that portion of the Moberly
downtown area bounded by West Reed Street on the north, North Clark Street on the east, West
Rollins Street on the south and North Williams Street on the west and benefitting the properties
within the proposed Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement
District (collectively, the “Improvements™), together with the costs of issuance, debt service

36
40

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Clrrerr operties (v.4)

#2.




reserves, and accrued interest on associated temporary notes or neighborhood improvement
district bonds (“NID Bonds”) issued with respect to any and all portions of the Project.
Maintenance of the Improvements and the Project will be provided by the City of Moberly using

City forces or through private contracts.

3. The total estimated cost of the proposed Improvements is $ plus costs of
issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued interest on NID Bonds.

4. The Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District
boundaries are legally described on Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by reference in this
Petition. The proposed Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement
District lies entirely within the corporate limits of the City of Moberly, Missouri.

. The proposed method of assessment of real property within the proposed Merchants
Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District is as follows: the total cost of
the Improvements (together with the costs of issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued
interest, if any, on NID Bonds issued to finance the Improvements) will be divided and assessed
ratably per parcel (as set forth in the records of the Randolph County Assessor) deemed to be
benefited thereby, based upon the acreage or fraction thereof, for a duration of not more than
twenty (20) years; provided that the City of Moberly has agreed in the Development Agreement

to pay all such assessments.

6. NOTICE: The names of the signers of this Petition may not be withdrawn later than
Seven (7) days after this Petition is filed with the City Clerk of the City of Moberly, Missouri.

7. NOTICE: The total final total costs of the Improvements plus costs of issuance, debt
service reserves, and accrued interest on NID Bonds assessed against property within the
proposed Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District and the
amount of such general obligation bonds or temporary notes issued therefor shall not exceed the
estimated costs of such Improvements as stated in paragraph 3 of this Petition by more than

twenty-five percent (25%).
Respectfully submitted,
PETITIONER:
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI
By:

Name: Brian Crane
Title: City Manager

ATTEST:

D.K. Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk

3
Cﬂr
Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention CamTare operties (v.4)

#2.




Exhibit A to NID Petition

Legal Description of Proposed
Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District

38 42

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




Schedule 1
Improvements to City’s Municipal Auditorium

>Building Demolition: Selective interior demolition of the lower level of the auditorium
including haul off of all demolished material.

>Masonry: Brick repairs associated with the tie-in to the Kelley Annex Studios.

> Finish Carpentry: Installation of all doors and hardware for the Boardrooms Corridor.

>Moisture Protection, Insulation & Fire Proofing: Insulation of all walls and ceilings for the
Auditorium Corridor.

>Roofing & Sheet Metal: Existing sheet metal to remain in place.

> Waterproofing, Sealants & Caulking: Caulking at door frames.

>Doors & Windows: Hollow metal doors and frames and associated hardware for the
Auditorium Corridor.

>Drywall & Acoustical Ceilings: Drywall at all walls and ceilings based on the layouts
provided in the drawings; a level 4 smooth finish in all areas and ACT at the Auditorium

Corridor.

>Flooring & Ceramic Tile: Carpet and carpet base at the Auditorium Corridor.

>Painting: Painting of all walls, ceilings, doors/frames where not prefinished, trim, and all
exterior penetrations that are not pre-finished.

>Toilet Accessories & Miscellaneous Specialties: Furnishing and installation of fire
extinguishers plus allowance of $2,500 for furnishing and installing interior unit and wayfinding

signage.

> Fire Protection: Allowance of $1,479 for extension of the existing fire protection system to
the Auditorium Corridor.

>HVAC: Extension of the existing HVAC system into the Auditorium Corridor.

> Electrical: Extension of the existing electrical system into the Auditorium Corridor;
furnishing and installing all hardwired light fixtures throughout.

Source: Brinkmann Constructors, Chesterfield, Missouri, 2019

39
43

Development Agreement — Downtown Hotel/Convention Clrrer=r operties (v.4)

#2.




BILL NO. ORDINANCE NO:

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT; MAKING
CERTAIN FINDINGS AND RATIFYING PRIOR ACTS; AND PROVIDING
FURTHER AUTHORITY.

WHEREAS, Sections 70.210 through 70.320 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as
amended, authorize Missouri municipalities to contract with any private person, firm, association,
or corporation for the planning, development, construction, acquisition, or operation of any public
improvement or facility, or for a common service, provided, that the subject and purposes of any
such contract or cooperative action are within the scope of the powers of such municipality; and

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly (the “City”) is the fee owner of certain improved real
properties located within a portion of the City’s downtown area determined by the Council of the
City (the “Council”) to be a “blighted area” (as that term is used and defined in Chapter 353 of
the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) and to address and remediate blighted conditions
within the aforesaid area, the City and the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District
(the “District”) have entertained proposals from interested persons to rehabilitate, improve and
reuse the properties within the area (the “Request”); and

WHEREAS, in response to the Request, Mashburn Development, LLC (the “Developer”)
has prepared and submitted to the City and the District a development program for the area which
calls for construction of a new multi-story hotel building replicating the look of the historic
downtown “Merchants Hotel” and containing a restaurant with ancillary dining and lounge
facilities; the remodeling and reuse of the City’s Kelly Hotel building; and improvements to the
City’s Municipal Auditorium (collectively, the “Development Program”); and

WHEREAS, to facilitate and obtain the benefits of the Development Program, the City in

concert with the District wishes to take certain actions and make available certain economic
1

Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Do} 44 | Hotel Redevelopment

#2.




development and financing incentives available under Missouri law, all in consideration of the
Developer’s implementation of the Development Program; and

WHEREAS, the City, the District and the Developer have jointly prepared a development
agreement in substantially the form set forth as Exhibit A to this Ordinance (the “Development
Agreement”) which provides for, among other things, delineation of the respective parties
responsibilities and obligations in respect of the Development Program and the identification and
commitment of the resources and financing incentives to be made available, and a timetable for
implementation, and the City, the District and the Developer each now desire to enter into and be
bound by the terms and conditions of and respective obligations imposed by the Development
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MOBERLY, MISSOURI, as follows, to wit:

SECTION 1. The Development Agreement in substantially the form of Exhibit A is
hereby approved and the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the
Development Agreement on behalf of the City.

SECTION 2. The Council hereby finds and determines that the implementation of the
Development Program and the activities contemplated in the Development Agreement are
reasonably anticipated to remediate blighting conditions present in the aforesaid area of the
downtown and that the commitments and expenditures by the City provided for in the
Development Agreement are within the scope of the City’s powers and are for a public purpose.
Any and all acts heretofore taken by the City Manager, City staff, other agents of the City, or any
of them taken in connection with the Development Program and the Development Agreement are

hereby acknowledged, confirmed, ratified and approved.

2

Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Do} 45 | Hotel Redevelopment

#2.




SECTION 3. The Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk, and applicable City staff are hereby
authorized and directed to take such further actions as may be necessary or convenient to carry out
and satisfy the City’s obligations under the Development Agreement and to obtain the benefits of
the Development Program for the residents of the City.

SECTION 4. The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable. In the event that any
portion of this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining
portions of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are
so essential and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be
presumed that the Council of the City would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid
ones, or unless the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are
incapable of being executed in accordance with the legislative intent.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and adoption by the Council of the City and its signature by the officer presiding at the meeting at
which it was passed and adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri on this___ day of

, 2019.

Presiding Officer at Meeting

ATTEST:

Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk

Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Do} 46 | Hotel Redevelopment

#2.




EXHIBIT A
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Ordinance Approving Development Agreement for Do

47

N Hotel Redevelopment

#2.




PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this "*Agreement') ismade
and entered into as of this __ day of , 2019 (the ""Effective Date™) by
and among the CITY OF MOBERLY, a city of the third classification and Missouri municipal
corporation located in Randolph County, Missouri and having a principal office at 101 West Reed
Street - City Hall, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the "City"); the DOWNTOWN MOBERLY
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, a community improvement district and Missouri
political subdivision established pursuant to the CID Act located within the corporate limits of the
City and having a principal office at 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (the
"District™); and MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company in
good standing having a principal place of business at 1704 NW 450 Road, Kingsville, Missouri
64061 (the "*Developer'). Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Agreement shall have the
meanings respectively ascribed to them in Article | of this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. The City is the fee owner of certain improved real properties including the Kelly Hotel,
the Parking Lot, and the Smith Building which are located within a designated redevelopment area
determined by the City Council to be a "blighted area" (as that term is used and defined in Chapter
353 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) and which are currently economically
underutilized and, to address current conditions and to remediate blighted conditions within the
aforesaid redevelopment area, the City and the District have entertained proposals from interested
persons to rehabilitate, improve and reuse the Hotel/Convention Center Properties.

B. In response, the Developer has prepared and submitted to the City the Minimum
Development Program for the rehabilitation and reuse of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties
and in connection therewith desires to have the City convey or cause to be conveyed to the
Developer fee title to each of the Developer Acquired Properties and, together with the District,
take certain actions and make available certain economic development and financing incentives
available under Missouri law, all in consideration for the development by the Developer of the
Project.

C. To facilitate the foregoing, the Developer and the City with the concurrence of the District
have entered into the Memorandum of Understanding which the parties acknowledge is intended
to serve as the basis of this Agreement and in furtherance of the understandings and commitments
set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding, the City, the District and the Developer each now
desire to enter into and be bound by the terms and conditions of and respective obligations imposed
by this Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and the mutual covenants
set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and

48
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City, the District and the Developer each
hereby agrees as follows:

ARTICLE I.
MEANINGS OF TERMS

Section1.1. Definitions. Except as otherwise defined, as used in this Agreement, the
following words and terms shall have the following meanings:

"Affiliate™ shall mean an individual, corporation, association, partnership, limited
liability company, joint venture, trust, estate, or other entity or organization, or any other such
person or entity which, directly or indirectly, is Controlled by or is in common Control by the
Developer and/or owners of membership interests of Developer.

"Applicable Regulations™ shall mean, collectively, all federal, state and local laws,
statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, executive orders and codes applicable to or affecting the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties or the Project including, without limitation, the Building
Regulations and all applicable federal and state environmental laws and regulations.

"Approving Ordinance™ shall mean Ordinance No. of the City adopted and approved
by the City Council on , 20 approving this Agreement.

"Approving Resolution™ shall mean Resolution No. of the District adopted
and approved by the Board of Directors of the District on , 20 approving this
Agreement.

"Building Regulations' shall mean, collectively, those codes, ordinances, regulations
and policies of the City including, without limitation, Chapter 6 of the Moberly City Code or
subsequent successor enactments, now or at any subsequent time applicable to or governing the
construction and maintenance of buildings and structures within the City.

"Bond Counsel™ shall mean Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C., or other firm of
nationally recognized bond counsel selected by the City.

""Certificates of Occupancy'" shall mean one or more certificates of occupancy for any
of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties properly and lawfully issued by the City in accordance
with the Building Regulations.

""Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs"* shall mean a document, substantially
in the form of Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement, provided by
the Developer to the City evidencing reimbursable costs incurred by the Developer of constructing the
Parking Garage and making improvements to the City's Municipal Auditorium, all subject to the terms,
conditions and limitations of this Agreement.

"CID Act" shall mean the Community Improvement District Act, sections 67.1401 to
67.1571 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.

49
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




"City" shall mean the City of Moberly, a Missouri municipal corporation and city of the
third classification located in Randolph County, Missouri and having a principal office at 101
West Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270.

""City Council™ shall mean the duly elected and serving governing body of the City.

"City Sales Tax"" shall mean the combined tax levy by the City pursuant to applicable
Missouri law on all taxable "sales at retail” (as that term is defined and used in chapter 144 of the
Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) at the current combined rate of 2.50%.

"Closings' shall mean the contemporaneous closings on the City's acquisition of the West
Parking Lot Area and the City's conveyance to the Developer of the Developer Acquired
Properties, all in accordance with Article 11 of and as further contemplated in this Agreement.

""Closing Date" shall mean the date provided in Section 2.3 of this Agreement for the
Closings.

"Commerce Bank Property' shall mean the portions of the former Commerce Bank
property situated at 208 West Reed Street, Moberly Missouri, designated as lots 7 through 12,
inclusive, all as further depicted on Exhibit B. attached to and incorporated by reference in this
Agreement.

""Construction Contractors' shall mean those principal or general contractors (other
than the Developer), if any, contractually obligated to undertake the construction of any portions
of the Project with each designated in a writing to the City and the District by the Developer.

""Construction Plans' shall mean plans, drawings, specifications, and related documents, and
construction schedules for the construction of the entire Project, together with all supplements,
amendments or corrections, submitted by the Developer and approved by the City in accordance with
this Agreement.

""Control™ shall mean, as applied to any Affiliate, with respect to: (a) a corporation having
stock, the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the securities (as defined in
Section 2(1) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or classes, the holders of
which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a majority of the governing
or directing body of such corporation; (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, having the
power to elect or appoint, directly or indirectly, at least a majority of the members of the governing
or directing body of such corporation; or (c) any other entity, the power to direct the management
of such entity through the ownership of at least a majority of its voting securities or the right to
designate or elect at least a majority of the members of its governing or directing body, by contract
or otherwise.

"Developer' shall mean Mashburn Development, LLC, a Missouri limited liability
company in good standing having a principal place of business at 1704 NW 450 Road, Kingsville,
Missouri 64061 or any Affiliate in accordance with Section 6.1 of this Agreement.

50
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




""Developer Acquired Properties" shall mean the Kelly Hotel, the West Parking Lot Area,
and the Smith Building to be acquired in fee by the Developer from the City in accordance with
Article 11 of this Agreement in furtherance of the implementation of the Project.

"District" shall mean the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District, a
community improvement district and Missouri political subdivision established pursuant to the
CID Act located within the corporate limits of the City and having a principal office at 101 West
Reed Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270.

""Effective Date" shall mean the date first above written.

"Feasibility Period" shall mean the One Hundred Fifty (150) day period following the
Effective Date.

"Force Majeure' shall mean actions or inactions not within the reasonable control of the
Developer, including, without limitation, construction delays due to sustained inclement weather
conditions, delays caused by competent legal authority, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, riots, fire
or other casualties, tornadoes, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, accidents, governmental
restrictions, unanticipated or unusual site conditions, priorities regarding acquisition of or use of
materials, litigation challenging any of the rights of the Developer under this Agreement, or delays
caused by local, state or federal governments.

""Hotel/Convention Center Properties' shall mean, collectively, certain improved real
properties situated in the City's central business district and including: (i) the lot containing the
structure formerly known as the "Kelly Hotel" and known and numbered as 109 North Clark
Street (the ""Kelly Hotel™); (ii) the adjacent City parking lot (the ""Parking Lot""); (iii) numbered
lots 5and 6 of the former Commerce Bank building located at 28 West Reed Street together with
any easement appurtenant thereto (the ""West Parking Lot Area'); and (iv) the commercial
building and lot known and numbered as 220 West Reed Street (the **Smith Building'"), together
with the City's Municipal Auditorium located at West Rollins and North Clark Streets, all as
further depicted and legally described in Exhibit C. attached to and incorporated by reference in
this Agreement.

"Investigations, Tests and Surveys' shall mean, without limitation, the following: (a)
inspecting, surveying, making engineering, environmental and architectural studies, testing the
soil (including borings) and any portion or element of any of the Hotel/Convention Center
Properties (including lead paint testing) and otherwise determining the condition of the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties or any of them; (b) reviewing all documents received from
the City, all applicable subdivision, zoning, and building code ordinances, rules and regulations of
the City, and of the State of Missouri; (c) determining that utilities, including, but without
limitation, water, gas, electricity, telephone and cable television services, can be made available
to adequately serve the improvements which are intended to be constructed on the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties; and (d) determining all other matters regarding the physical
condition of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties and the development thereof which the
Developer deems appropriate.

51
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




"IRC" shall mean shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the
applicable regulations of the Treasury Department proposed or promulgated thereunder.

"Memorandum of Understanding' shall mean that certain Memorandum of
Understanding dated as of September 11, 2019 by and between the City and the Developer defining
the roles and responsibilities of each in the joint planning, funding, conveyance, and
redevelopment of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties consistent with the Minimum
Development Program and the business and marketing plans of the Developer and employing
certain public incentives available from the City.

"Minimum Development Program™ shall mean, collectively, construction of a new
multi-story hotel building replicating the look of the historic "Merchants Hotel™ and containing
approximately 68 sleeping rooms, together with a 150 seat restaurant with ancillary dining and
lounge facilities; remodeling of the Kelly Hotel building as a hotel annex to provide approximately
32 additional sleeping rooms; construction of the Parking Garage; and the improvements to the
City's Municipal Auditorium listed on Schedule 1, attached to and incorporated by reference in
this Agreement, all as further depicted and described in schematic drawings prepared by ,
attached as Exhibit D to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement.

"NID Act" shall mean the Missouri Neighborhood Improvement District Act, sections
67.453 through 67.475 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.

""NID Bonds'" shall mean one or more series of neighborhood improvement district limited
general obligation bonds issued by the City pursuant to the NID Act and in general accordance
with and subject to limitations of this Agreement, the proceeds of which shall be used to pay,
among other things, the costs of constructing the Parking Garage and making improvements to the
City's Municipal Auditorium.

"NID District™ shall mean the "Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood
Improvement District™ established pursuant to the NID Act and this Agreement encompassing the
property bounded by West Reed Street on the north, North Clark Street on the east, West Rollins
Street on the south and North Williams Street on the west and containing the Hotel/Convention
Center Properties and the Commerce Bank Property.

"NID Petition™ shall mean a proper petition for the establishment of the NID District
which meets the requirements of section 67.457.3 of the NID Act and in substantially the form of
Exhibit E, attached to and incorporated by reference in this Agreement.

"NID Project Fund™ shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to an
ordinance of the City authorizing the issuance of the NID Bonds pursuant to this Agreement into
which shall be deposited the cash sale proceeds of the NID Bonds after payment of all reasonable
and customary costs of issuance of the NID Bonds, including, but not limited to underwriters'
discounts and fees, bond counsel and attorneys' fees, financial advisor fees, bond registration fees,
prepaid interest, debt service reserves, costs of printing any NID Bonds and any offering

52
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




documents relating thereto, costs of credit enhancement, if any, and fees of any rating agency
rating the NID Bonds, together with any interest earned thereon.

"Parking Garage' shall mean an elevated two-story open roof public parking garage
constructed and located on the Parking Lot in accordance with this Agreement.

"Party" or "Parties™ shall mean as applicable, the City, the District, and/or the
Developer.

"Project™ shall mean, collectively, all demolition, site work, siteimprovements, utilities
installation, landscaping and new construction required for the redevelopment of the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties as a high quality boutique destination hotel and convention
venue in accordance with the Minimum Development Program or as such may be expanded
pursuant to provisions of Section 3.1 of this Agreement.

"Purchase Price' shall mean the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) paid in hand by the
Developer at or prior to closing on the transfer of the Developer Acquired Properties as set forth
in Section 2.3 of this Agreement which amount shall constitute the entire purchase price for the
Developer Acquired Properties.

"Third Party Action shall mean any claim, action, proceeding or demand initiated at
any time by any party other than a named Party to this Agreement and directed to the City or the
District or any of their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys, employees or
representatives arising out of this Agreement, the Hotel/Convention Center Properties or any of
them, the Commerce Bank Property, the Project, the Approving Ordinance, the Approving
Resolution, the conveyances contemplated by this Agreement, any amounts paid or rebated to the
Developer pursuant to Sections 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreement, the NID Bonds, the commitments
and allocations made under Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Agreement or any of them, or any
portion(s) of any of the foregoing or any actions taken pursuant to any of the foregoing.

"Title Commitments" shall mean written commitments to issue one or more Title
Policies for the Developer Acquired Properties provided by the Title Company in customary form.

"Title Company™ shall mean a title insurance company selected by the City and
reasonably acceptable to the Developer.

"Title Policies' shall mean one or more ALTA Owner's Policies (6-17-06) of title
insurance for the Developer Acquired Properties each of which shall contain an additional
endorsement covering defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any,
created, first appearing in the public records or attaching subsequent to the date of the applicable
Title Commitment but prior to the Closing Date.

""Zoning Approvals™ shall mean any and all plat approvals, re-zoning or other zoning
changes, site plan approvals, conditional use permits, design reviews, or other subdivision, zoning,

53
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




site plan review, architectural or historic district review, or similar approvals required under Applicable
Regulations for the implementation of the Project.

Section 1.2. Rules of Construction. Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context
shall otherwise indicate, the words importing the singular number shall include the plural and vice
versa, and words importing person shall include firms, associations and corporations, including
public bodies, as well as natural persons.

Section 1.3. Computation of Time. Wherever this Agreement calls for the performance of any
act by reference to a day or number of days, to a month or number of months or to a year or
number of years, each such computation shall be made based upon calendar days, calendar
months, and calendar years, as applicable, unless otherwise expressly provided.

ARTICLE II.
PURCHASE AND TRANSFER OF PROPERTIES

Section 2.1. Eeasibility Period and Investigations. The Developer shall have the right, but
only during the Feasibility Period, to investigate title and to make such investigations, studies and
tests with respect to the any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as the Developer deems
necessary or appropriate to determine the feasibility of acquiring the Developer Acquired
Properties and completing the Project. During the Feasibility Period, the Developer may make
Investigations, Tests and Surveys on any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as required to
satisfy the Developer that the properties comprising the Hotel/Convention Center Properties
including the Developer Acquired Properties are satisfactory for the Project. The City shall provide
to the Developer within Five (5) days after the Effective Date all documents and information
relating to the portions of the Hotel/Convention Properties which are in the City's possession or
control, and other pertinent information in the City's possession relating to the Hotel/Convention
Properties, if any. During the Feasibility Period, the City shall permit the Developer, its employees,
agents, contractors and subcontractorsto enter upon real property comprising the Smith Building, the
Parking Lot, and the Kelly Hotel and shall use best efforts to cause the Developer to be permitted
to enter upon the Commerce Bank Property and the West Parking Lot Area to perform
Investigations, Tests and Surveys and the Developer shall indemnify and hold City and the District
harmless from any and all claims related to the Developer, its employees, agents, contractors and
subcontractors' entry onto any of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties or the Commerce Bank
Property to perform such Investigations, Tests and Surveys. The Developer shall have until
expiration of the Feasibility Period to satisfy itself, in its sole discretion, with respect to the
condition of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties. At any time prior to expiration of the
Feasibility Period, the Developer may, in its sole discretion, for any reason or for no reason,
terminate this Agreement by written notice to the City and the District. Upon any such termination
of this Agreement, no Party hereto shall have any further obligation or liability to any other with
respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Failure of the Developer to timely
exercise the aforesaid right to terminate this Agreement shall be deemed conclusive evidence of the
Developer's satisfaction with the results of the Investigations, Tests and Surveys and with the
condition of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties including the Developer Acquired Properties.

54
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




Section 2.2. Title Issues. Within the first Twenty (20) days of the Feasibility Period the City
shall order the Title Commitments for the Developer Acquired Properties and promptly upon
receipt, the City shall transmit or cause to be transmitted to the Developer a copy or copies of the
Title Commitments showing merchantable title of the City in the Developer Acquired Properties
(other than the West Parking Lot Area) subject only to the following permitted exceptions: the
Title Company's customary and standard exceptions; (b) all taxes and special assessments credited
to the Developer at the Closings; (c) building and building lines, use and occupancy restrictions,
conditions and covenants of record; (d) zoning laws and ordinances; (e) easements for the use of
public utilities; (f) roads and highways; (g) drainage ditches, feeders and laterals; and (h) existing
leases, if any, approved by the Developer. The Developer shall have Fifteen (15) days after receipt
of the last such Title Commitment to make any objections to any Title Commitment by sending
the City notice thereof; provided that the Developer's sole basis for any such objection shall be a
demonstrated material impairment of the Developer's ability to undertake the Project. In the event
of such an objection, the City shall have Ten (10) days after receipt of the Developer's notice of
objection to notify the Developer which objections the City is willing to attempt to cure, if any,
and in the event the City is willing to attempt to cure the objection, the City shall have an additional
Thirty (30) days to do so and the Feasibility Period shall be extended by such time. If the City fails
to so notify the Developer, then the City shall be deemed to have refused to cure any such
objections. To the extent that the City fails or refuses to cure any such objections, the Developer
shall have the right to: (i) cancel this Agreement; or (ii) proceed to the Closings and accept title
subject to the matters so objected to (which shall then become permitted exceptions). At or before
the Closings the City shall complete an ALTA Statement (or such other similar affidavit as may
be currently used by the Title Company) and other documents required by the Title Company for
clearance of all exceptions to title other than the foregoing permitted exceptions.

Section 2.3. Closing Date: Utility Services: City's Purchase of West Parking Lot. The
Closing Date shall be Ten (10) days after the earlier of: (i) delivery of written notice by the

Developer to the City and the District of the Developer's readiness to close; or (ii) the expiration of
the Feasibility Period or such other date as may be mutually agreed among the Parties. On or prior
to the Closing Date, the City, at the City's sole cost, shall purchase and acquire in fee the West
Parking Lot Area at a purchase price not to exceed One Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars
and no cents ($125,000.00). At all times prior to the Closing Date, the City shall maintain all
insurance coverage currently in place with respect to the Kelly Hotel and the Smith Building and
all utility services (including electrical, gas and water service) and City agrees to immediately
notify the Developer of any damage to or affecting any of the foregoing properties. At the Closings
the City shall take such steps as a reasonably necessary and the Developer shall cooperate with
the City to have all utility services at the Developer Acquired Properties transferred to and
registered in the name of the Developer.

Section 2.3.1. Events At Closings: Transfers by Deed. The Closings shall occur at
the offices of the Title Company during normal business hours or at such other location as

the Developer and the City with the consent of the District may mutually agree. At the Closings,
and upon payment of the Purchase Price by the Developer, the City shall transfer and convey
to the Developer and the Developer shall accept all of the City's right, title and interest in each
of the Developer Acquired Properties. Transfer shall be by one or more

55
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




Special Warranty Deeds, each in such form reasonably acceptable to the Developer, free and
clear of all tenancies, liens and encumbrances other than those created by this Agreement, or
that are set forth in the Title Commitment and accepted by the Developer; provided that at the
City's discretion each such deed may contain a reverter or other required re-conveyance to the
City in the event the Developer does not satisfactorily complete the Project. All Title Company
closing costs and charges shall be shared equally between the City and the Developer.

Section 2.3.2. Prorations. All real estate taxes, and all other public or governmental
charges and public or private assessments against the Property which are or may be payable on
an annual basis (including liens or encumbrances for sewer, water, drainage or other public
improvements whether completed or commenced on or prior to the Effective Date or
subsequent thereto), shall be prorated as of the day prior to the Closing Date and shall be paid
by the City (as a credit to the Developer), or if prepaid, credited to the City, and shall from
and after the Closings be assumed and paid by the Developer, whether or not assessments have
been levied as of the Closing Date, subject to reimbursement in accordance with Section 4.1
of this Agreement. Any tax proration shall be based upon the most recent assessment and shall
be a final proration. Each such Party shall execute, acknowledge, and deliver, after the
Closings, such further assurances, instruments and documents as the other may reasonably
request in order to fulfill the intent of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby.

BY CLOSING ON THE DEVELOPER ACQIDRED PROPERTIES, THE
DEVELOPER SHALL HAVE ACKNOWLEDGED AND HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES
THAT THE DEVELOPER HAS HAD ADEQUATE OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT,
REVIEW AND CONSIDER ALL MATTERS AFFECTING THE USE, OWNERSHIP AND
DEVELOPMENT OF THE HOTEL/CONVENTION CENTER PROPERTIES
INCLUDING THE DEVELOPER ACQIDRED PROPERTIES AND EACH OF THEM
AND THAT THE CONVEYANCE OF SAME BY THE CITY IS TO BE MADE ON AN
"AS IS/ WHERE IS" BASIS AND WITHOUT RECOURSE TO THE CITY. THE
CONVEYANCE TO THE DEVELOPER OF THE DEVELOPER ACQUIRED
PROPERTIES SHALL BE WITHOUT REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY
KIND ORNATURE WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION: (i) ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY,FITNESS OR
HABITABILITY, GOOD OR FAIR CONDITION OR REPAIR OR GOOD AND
WORKMANLIKE CONSTRUCTION AND (ii) ANY WARRANTIES OR
REPRESENTATIONS WITH RESPECT TO SITE CONDITIONS AS OF THE
EFFECTIVE DATE AND OF THE CLOSINGS AND CONVEYANCES OF THE
DEVELOPER ACQUIRED PROPERTIES OR POTENTIAL LIABILITIES UNDER OR
WITH RESPECT TO ANY FEDERAL, STATE OR LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL LAW
OR REGULATION, ALL OF WHICH WARRANTIES ARE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED
BY THE CITY AND EACH OF WHICH DISCLAIMERS ISHEREBY AGREED TO AND
ACCEPTED BY THE DEVELOPER. THE FOREGOING SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY
BREACH OR DEFAULT BY THE CITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR
INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT EXECUTED OR PROVIDED IN CONNECTION
HEREWITH.

56
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




Section 2.4. Management Contract for Municipal Auditorium. The City and the Developer
hereby further agree and warrant each to the other to commence within Sixty (60) days of the Closing

Date good faith negotiations of a management contract for the City's Municipal Auditorium granting
the Developer or the Developer's designee "most favored nation" status with respect to rentals and use
of the facilities and space comprising the City's Municipal Auditorium. The foregoing negotiations
shall continue until the terms of a management contract consistent with the provisions of the
Memorandum of Understanding are established by the City and the Developer; provided that to the
maximum extent feasible, the parties agree to incorporate such limitations and provisions as may be
required under the IRC to preserve the interest on portions of the NID Bonds used to finance the
improvements to the City's Municipal Auditorium exempt from federal income taxation. The City and
the Developer hereby further agree and warrant each to the other to cooperate with one another in good
faith to reduce such terms to a definitive management contract and to promptly execute and deliver
same.

ARTICLE II1.
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PROJECT

Section 3.1. Applications for Zoning Reviews: City Approvals: Project Expansion. Not

later then Ten (10) days following expiration of the Feasibility Period, the Developer shall submit
for City approval all required applications and supporting materials for the Zoning Approvals. All
plans submitted by or on behalf of the Developer shall depict and describe the improvements to be
made to the Hotel/Convention Center Properties for the Project and shall reflect the provisions of
the Memorandum of Understanding and incorporate the requirements of this Agreement. The
Developer shall diligently pursue the Zoning Approvals in accordance with the City's normal
procedures therefor. The City agrees to expeditiously process and timely review all applications for
the Zoning Approvals as received, all inaccordance with the applicable City ordinances and laws of
the State of Missouri, and to take all further actions as are consistent with the Memorandwn of
Understanding and this Agreement; provided that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to
require the City to grant any Zoning Approval, except in accordance with the City customary
exercise of its police powers; and provided farther that at the discretion of the Developer in
consultation with the City and the District, the scope of the Project may be expanded beyond the
Minimum Development Program to include remodeling, conversion and reuse of a portion of the
Commerce Bank Property as a conference center or other annex to the Project. To the extent that
the Developer elects such an expansion, any Zoning Approvals or other approvals attending such
expansion may be pursued concurrent with those of the original Project and, upon the grant of
requisite Zoning Approvals or other approvals required under Applicable Regulations for such
expansion, the scope of the "Project” (as that term is defined and used in this Agreement) shall be
deemed to include such expansion.

Section 3.2. Developer to Construct Project: Developer as City's Limited Agent. The

Developer shall obtain requisite approvals and permits and commence construction of the Project in
accordance with the schedule provided in this Section 3.2, all subject to Force Majeure. As a
component of the Project, the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City's
Municipal Auditorium shall be undertaken by the Developer as limited agent for the City for such
purpose and the City shall promptly grant such rights of access and egress and use of the

57
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




Parking Lot and the City's Municipal Auditorium as may be reasonably requested by the Developer to
facilitate construction of the Parking Garage, the improvements to the City's Municipal Auditorium,
and the Project; provided that title to the Parking Lot shall at all times remain in the City and, promptly
upon satisfactory completion of the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the
City's Municipal Auditorium, the Developer shall execute or cause to be execute such instruments and
shall take or cause to be taken such actions as may be required to title all improvements, realty, and
personalty at or serving the Parking Garage in the name of the City and to assign all attendant
equipment warranties and similar rights in connection with the construction and installation of the
Parking Garage and the improvements to the City's Municipal Auditorium to the City; and provided
farther that the Developer shall cause the applicable Construction Contractor to provide to the City a
minimum One (1) year warranty against defects of all work performed and materials used in
connection with the construction and installation of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the
City's Municipal Auditorium.

Section 3.2.1. Construction Plans. Within Thirty (30) days following the granting
by the City of Zoning Approvals for the Project, the Developer shall submit for approval by
the City Construction Plans in sufficient completeness and detail to show that construction
will satisfy the Minimum Development Program and be in conformance with the Zoning
Approvals and with the provisions of the Memorandum of Understanding and this Agreement.
The Construction Plans shall be prepared by a professional engineer or architect licensed to
practice in the State of Missouri. Construction Plans and all construction practices and
procedures with respect to the Project shall be in conformity with all Applicable Regulations.
The City hereby agrees to waive fees for building permits, sewer and water tapping fees, and
all similar fees customarily applicable to the development and construction of the Project
including any expansion thereof and the Hotel/Convention Center Properties.

Section 3.2.2. City Review and Approvals. Upon submittal by the Developer of
the Construction Plans, the City shall expeditiously review and approve or reject same, in
writing within Thirty (30) days of receipt by the City of the Construction Plans. If the City
rejects any portion of the Construction Plans, said rejection shall specify any and all
deficiencies in the Construction Plans relating to lack of conformity with the Zoning
Approvals, the Memorandum of Understanding or this Agreement, the Minimum
Development Program or with Applicable Regulations; provided that the City's failure to
specify deficiencies in the Construction Plans relating to Applicable Regulations shall not
relieve the Developer of the Developer's obligations to perform all construction work related
to the Project in accordance therewith. Following receipt of any such rejection, the Developer
shall submit new or corrected Construction Plans within Thirty (30) days after the date the
Developer receives written notice of the City's rejection of the Construction Plans or portion
thereof referred to in the latest such notice. The provisions of this Section
3.2.2 relating to approval, rejection and resubmittal of the Construction Plans shall continue
to apply to resubmittal of corrected Construction Plans until the Construction Plans have been
approved by the City; provided that the periods for each such subsequent review by the City
shall be reduced to Fourteen (14) days. The Developer agrees that all construction work by or
on behalf of the Developer or its Affiliates, agents or independent contractors

58
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




shall be in substantial conformity with the Construction Plans as finally approved by the
City.

Section 3.2.3. Time for Project Completion; Delays: Notification Required:
Developer's Control Over the Project. Within Thirty (30) days of the City's approval of
the Construction Plans and issuance of requisite permits, the Developer shall commence or

cause to be commenced and shall diligently pursue the construction and development of
the Project to completion, and shall substantially complete the Project and obtain a
Certificate of Occupancy for the Developer Acquired Properties not later than the later of
(1) Twenty-Two (22) months from the Effective Date; or (ii) Fifteen (15) months from the
date of receipt of the City's approval of the Construction Plans and issuance of requisite
permits for the Project, all subject to Force Majeure as provided in this Section 3.2.3. The
times within which the construction of the Project is to commence and be completed as set
forth in this Section 3.2.3. shall be automatically extended appropriately as a result of any
event of Force Majeure; provided that in the event of any such delays, the Developer shall
promptly notify the City in writing stating the nature of the delay which, in the reasonable
opinion of the Developer, justifies the extension. Any delay under this Section 3.2.3 shall
result in a day-for-day extension of any obligations, deadlines or dates set forth in this
Agreement that are directly affected by such delay. Other than time for completion
requirements of this Section 3.2.3. the Developer shall have complete and exclusive control
over the implementation and timing of the Project and the management and operation of
the Project and the Hotel/Convention Center Properties, subject to the further requirements
of this Agreement.

Section 3.2.4. Construction Contracts. In constructing or causing the
construction of the Project, the Developer may enter into one or more contracts with one or
more Construction Contractors. Prior to the commencement of construction, the Developer
shall obtain or shall ensure that any such Construction Contractor obtains workers'
compensation, comprehensive public liability and builder's risk insurance coverage in
amounts customary in the industry for similar type projects. Prior to commencement of
construction, the Developer shall deliver to the City evidence of all insurance to be
maintained by such Construction Contractors as required by this Section 3.2.4. The
Developer shall ensure that the insurance required is maintained by any such Construction
Contractor for the duration of the construction of the Project. To the extent that payment
bond requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, or
successor enactments or prevailing wage or other wage and hour statutes or requirements
apply to any portion of the Project, the Developer covenants and agrees on behalf of itself
and for any Construction Contractor to take all such actions as are necessary to obtain such
payment bonds, to apply for wage and hour determinations, and to otherwise comply with
all such laws, regulations or requirements.

Section 3.3. Developer to Adhere to All Applicable Regulations. To the full extent that any
Applicable Regulation applies to any aspect of construction of the Project or any portion thereof,

the Developer for itself and for any Construction Contractor or sub-contractor as agent of the
Developer hereby covenants and agrees to take or cause to be taken all such actions as are necessary
to fully comply with such Applicable Regulation. The Project and any portions thereof

59
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




shall be subject all lawful regulatory inspections and to periodic inspections by the City at
reasonable times with prior notice to the Developer to determine compliance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and the Developer shall promptly perform or cause to be performed
all such necessary acts as may be required by Applicable Regulations or this Agreement. With
respect to the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City's Municipal
Auditorium, and any other portions of the Project to be conveyed or dedicated to the City or other
public entity, the Developer as limited agent for the City shall additionally comply with and satisfy
all requirements of section 107.170 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended regarding the
obtaining of payment bonds; the laws of the State of Missouri relating to the payment of prevailing
wages; and the ordinances and purchasing policies of the City including any requirement for
competitive bidding of contractor and subcontractor services.

Section 3.4. Breach and Compliance: Right to Cure: Remedies Not Exclusive. In the event

of substantial non-compliance with any of the terms of this Article 111, written notice of same
may be delivered to the Developer by the City or by the District, and, if the Developer shall not
have corrected such substantial non-compliance within Forty-Five (45) days after receipt of such
notice (unless the time for such correction is further extended in writing by the City or the District,
as applicable, or unless such correction reasonably requires more than 45 days to correct;
provided that, the Developer in each case diligently pursues such correction to satisfactory
completion), the City or the District may institute such proceedings as may be necessary or
desirable in the City's or the District's sole opinion to cure and remedy such default including,
without limitation, the remedy of specific performance. None of the foregoing remedies shall be
exclusive of any other remedy specified in this Section 3.4 or otherwise available to the City or
the District at law or in equity and any and all such remedies may be exercised by the City or the
District individually, sequentially, collectively, or in the alternative, all at the City's or the
District's sole discretion.

ARTICLE IV.
CITY, DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS, COMMITMENTS AND INCENTIVES

Section 4.1. Real Property Tax Relief. In consideration of the foregoing undertakings and
covenants of the Developer set forth in Article 111 of this Agreement, the District during the life
of the District, but in no event later than the period which is Twenty-Five (25) years from the date
of substantial completion of the Project in accordance with Section 3.3.3 of this Agreement shall
annually rebate to the Developer all amounts actually collected on behalf of and received by the
District (as verified by the District) in such year from levies of the District's Special Real Property
Tax in respect of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties and, in the event that the Project is
expanded as provided in Section 3.1 of this Agreement, the portions of the Commerce Bank
Property included in such Project expansion. Rebates applicable to any tax year shall be made not
later than the last day of February of the succeeding tax year. All such payments by the District
shall be subject to annual appropriation by the Board of Directors of the District and in each case
shall be considered current year expenses in the year to which they apply. In addition, to the extent
that the District expires or is dissolved prior to the date which is Twenty- Five (25) years from the
date of substantial completion of the Project, the City agrees to use best efforts to take such actions,
hold such hearings, and grant such approvals under one or more then applicable redevelopment
statutes to provide for equivalent annual real property tax relief in

60
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




respect of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties and, as applicable, the portions of the
Commerce Bank Property included in a Project expansion the for the period remaining of the
aforesaid 25 years.

Section 4.2. City Sales Tax. The City shall cause to be paid directly to the Developer from
lawfully available funds an amount equal to the revenue actually paid to and received by the City
(as verified by the City) as provided in this Section 4.2 by the Developer during the period provided
in this Agreement for completion of the Project which was generated by the levy of the City Sales
Tax on purchases by the Developer or on behalf of the Developer by a Construction Contractor,
but only from vendors or suppliers having a principal place of business within the County of
Randolph, of tangible materials and personal property actually incorporated into or consumed in
the construction of the Project; provided that in each case, any excess re-salable tangible personal
property or materials which were purchased for the Project by the Developer or on behalf of the
Developer by a Construction Contractor but which were not incorporated into or consumed in the
construction of the Project shall either (i) be returned to the supplier for credit or the appropriate
sales tax on such excess property; or (ii) be reported on a return and paid by the Developer or a
Construction Contractor and in either case shall be deducted from the amounts due from the City;
and provided further that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the parties
hereto acknowledge that provision for amounts constituting any portion of the payments made or
to be made pursuant to this Section 4.2 which extend for any reason beyond any calendar year in
which such cost is incurred shall be subject to annual appropriation by the City Council.

Section 4.2.1. Erequency of Payments: Application and Verification Required:
Cooperation: Current Year Expenses. Payments as set forth in Section 4.2 of this
Agreement shall be made, subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, quarterly
and upon written application by the Developer, together with submittal by the Developer,
of accompanying receipts and documentation as or similar to that required by sections
144.635 and 144.640 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and reasonably
sufficient in content and detail (in the sole judgment of the City) to permit the applicable
officer of the City to reasonably verify the City Sales Tax amounts actually paid by the
Developer or on behalf of the Developer by a Construction Contractor for purchases, but
only from vendors or suppliers having a principal place of business within the County of
Randolph, of tangible materials and personal property actually incorporated into or
consumed in the construction of the Project during the period provided in this Agreement
for the completion of the Project. Payments as set forth in Section 4.2 of this Agreement
shall be deemed to be current expenses in the applicable year to which such payments apply

Section 4.2.2. Exemption Certificate. The City shall prepare and furnish to
Construction Contractors a sales tax exemption certificate containing the information set
forth in section 144.062 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, authorizing tax-
exempt purchases of tangible personal property and materials to be incorporated into or
consumed in construction but only for those portions of the Project to be owned or held by
the City or the District and related to the City's or the District's exempt functions and
activities. Any excess resalable tangible personal property or materials which were

61
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




purchased for the portions of the Project to be owned or held by the City or the District
and related to the City's or the District's exempt functions and activities by a Construction
Contractor or subcontractor under the aforesaid exemption certificate but which were not
incorporated into or consumed in the construction of such portions of the Project shall
either be returned to the supplier for credit or the appropriate sales or use tax on such excess
property or materials shall be reported on a return and paid by such Construction
Contractor or subcontractor not later than the due date of that Construction Contractor's or
subcontractor's Missouri sales or use tax return following the month in which it was
determined that the materials were not to be used in such portions of the Project. In the
event for any reason, (i) the City is found not to have had the authority to issue the
exemption certificate provided for in this Section 4.2.2. in whole or in part; or

(ii) any Construction Contractor or subcontractor under color of the exemption certificate
shall make tax-exempt purchases of personal property and materials which are not
incorporated into or consumed in the construction of those portions of the Project to be
owned or held by the City or the District and related to the City's or the District's exempt
functions and activities, then the Developer shall be liable to the City for payments or
repayments of any tax found to be owed on such personal property and materials.

Section 4.3. NID Financing. The City and the Developer shall cooperate to obtain financing
under the NID Act for the construction of the Parking Garage and the installation of improvements
to the City's Municipal Auditorium as provided in this Section 4.2. Contemporaneous with the
approval and execution of this Agreement, the City and the Developer by preparing and filing
with the Clerk of the City the NID Petition and will expeditiously take such steps as are required
under the NID Act to establish the NID District. During and subject to the Feasibility Period, the
City shall expeditiously cause preparation, in cooperation with Developer, of plans and
specifications describing the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City's Municipal
Auditorium in detail sufficient in the determination of Bond Counsel for inclusion in the
ordinances approving the NID; cause preparation of requisite assessment rolls; conduct required
public hearings; order that improvements be made and that associated assessments be levied. At
the earliest feasible time consistent with market conditions and the application of prudent public
finance principles the City shall, subject to availability of underwriting reasonably acceptable to
the City, order and direct the issuance of the NID Bonds, all in accordance with this Agreement.

Section4.3.1. Terms of NID Bonds: Procedures for Issuance. The Developer
agrees to advance the costs of constructing the Parking Garage and the improvements to
the City's Municipal Auditorium as set forth on Schedule 1 to this Agreement, subject to
reimbursement in accordance with Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement from monies deposited
in the NID Project Fund and the City agrees to issue the NID Bonds, all as required by this
Agreement, in an aggregate principal amount necessary to provide a minimum NID
Project Fundof $ . All costs of constructing the Parking
Garage and the improvements to the City's Municipal Auditorium shall be paid from NID
Project Fund. In conjunction with the issuance of the NID Bonds, the City shall select one
or more underwriters or purchasers of the NID Bonds. Each series of NID Bonds shall bear
interest at such rates, shall be subject to redemption, and shall have such terms as the City,
acting through Bond Counsel and the respective underwriter or purchaser,

62
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




shall determine. The City and the Developer hereby agree to assist and cooperate with one
another and with Bond Counsel, the underwriter(s) or purchaser(s), in the preparation of
offering statements, private placement memoranda or other disclosure documents and all
other documents necessary to market and sell the NID Bonds. The NID Project Fund shall
be held by the City in the custody of the City's Director of Finance and amounts therein
shall be disbursed to the Developer as reimbursements upon satisfactory completion of the
portions of each improvement as further set forth in Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement. The
City shall retain interest on all amounts held in the NID Project Fund. In the event that the
NID Bonds have not been successfully marketed, underwritten and sold by the City prior
to construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City's Municipal
Auditorium as set forth on Schedule 1 to this Agreement, the City shall issue temporary
notes to temporarily reimburse Developer for its costs upon satisfactory completion of the
portions of each improvement as further set forth in Section 4.3.2 of this Agreement and
the City shall be reimbursed and the temporary notes retired upon receipt of the proceeds
from the sale of the NID Bonds.

Section 4.3.2. Payment of NID Assessments: Reimbursements to Developer.
The City shall pay from lawfully available funds, subject to annual appropriation, all

assessments to be levied under the NID Act against any and all platted lots and parcels of
real property within the NID District, whether or not owned by the Developer or any
Affiliate or by any other party, on or before the date such assessments are due. Requests
for reimbursement of costs incurred by or on behalf of the Developer in connection with
the construction of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City's Municipal
Auditorium shall be submitted not more frequently than quarterly. Each request for
reimbursement shall be accompanied by a Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs
and shall in each case be further evidenced by: (i) copies of each invoice prepared by the
applicable vendor, contractor or other supplier for which a reimbursement is sought; and
(ii) copies of cancelled check(s), front and rear, or other evidence of payment of such
invoice. The City reserves the right to reject and require resubmittal of any request which
does not satisfy the foregoing requirements, which determination of sufficiency shall be in
the City's discretion, exercise of which discretion shall be dispositive. Until the acceptance
by the City of the Parking Garage and the improvements to the City's Municipal
Auditorium, the Developer shall maintain each such improvement in a first-class and
workman-like manner in accordance with applicable City standards and in a condition
reasonably satisfactory to permit such acceptance by the City or other applicable public
entity. The City agrees to accept the aforesaid improvements (or portions thereof) as soon
as is reasonably practicable; provided that construction and installation of each such
improvement (or portion) to be accepted complies in all material respects with provisions
of this Agreement.

Section 4.4. Other Commitments and Contributions: Allocations. To further assist and support
the implementation and financing of the Project, the City and the District hereby agree, subject to
satisfactory completion by the Developer of the entire Project, to the full extent lawful to pledge
and utilize toward the payment or financing of Project costs certain portions of revenues actually
paid to and received by the City and the District, as applicable, but only from economic activities
at the completed Project and in amounts which are over and above such

63
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




amounts required to pay assessments levied under the NID Act and necessary to meet annual debt
service requirements on the NID Bonds so long as the NID Bonds or any portion thereof remain
outstanding, asfollows:

(i) portions of the City Sales Tax allocable to capital improvements and
transportation improvements;

(i) the District's 1.0% sales tax on all taxable "sales at retail” (as that term is
defined and used in chapter 144 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) occurring
within the area of the NID District;

(iii)  one half of the City's 4% lodging tax applicable to sales of sleeping rooms
at the completed Project; and

(iv)  franchise fees received by the City for electric power and other utility usage
at the completed Project.

The foregoing revenues shall be calculated by the City and the District on an annual basis for a
period coterminous with the term of the NID Bonds and shall be paid, subject to annual
appropriation by the governing bodies of the City and the District, respectively, to or to the order
of the Developer or Affiliate or their designee not later than the last day of February of the
succeeding year; provided that the City reserves the right to apply for and use such grant funds as
made be made available at any time during the period required for construction of the Project and
to substitute such amounts for any of the aforesaid revenue sources and in each such case, the City
shall continue to calculate annually amounts attributable to revenue sources identified in clauses
(i), (iii) and (iv) of this Section 4.4 and shall pay to the order of the Developer or Affiliate or their
designee, subject to annual appropriation by the City Council, such amounts whether from such
revenue sources, from grant funds received, or from any combination of the foregoing; and
provided further that any such amounts shall only be paid after and from amounts remaining from
the aforesaid sources after payments by the City from such sources of assessments levied under
the NID Act and necessary to meet annual debt service requirements on the NID Bonds; it being
understood and agreed by the parties to this Agreement that the revenue sources identified in
clauses (i) through (iv) of this Section 4.4 shall provide the source of payment in any year of
assessments levied under the NID Act on properties within the NID District which payment shall
be a pre-requisite in any year for any payments under this Section

4.4 to the Developer or Affiliate or their designee. Monies paid to or to the order of the Developer
or Affiliate or their designee shall only be used and applied for lawful purposes.

Section 4.5. Eurther Cooperative Efforts. The City, the District, and the Developer each agree to
take such actions, including the execution and delivery of such documents, instruments, petitions
and certifications supplemental hereto as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the terms,
provisions and intent of this Article IV and the Agreement and which do not impair the rights of the
signing party as they exist under this Agreement, and to aid and assist each other in carrying out said
terms, provisions and intent. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the City and the
District each agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with and assist the
Developer (i) to identify and secure additional and complementary investment in or near the
Project and to identify potential end users of space within the Hotel/Convention Center Properties;
(i1) to obtain inclusion of the Kelly Hotel on the National Register of Historic Places and in
applications for historic preservation tax credits or other similar tax credits as and when

64
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




available for the rehabilitation of the Kelly Hotel building; provided that the Developer shall be
under no obligation to make applications to include the Kelly Hotel on the National Register of
Historic Places or for historic preservation tax credits or other tax credits; (iii) to secure such
additional private source funding as may be necessary or convenient to carry out the rehabilitation
of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties; provided that nothing in the foregoing clause shall be
deemed to require a financial contribution, pledge or commitment from the City or the District
other than the express commitments made in Sections 4.1 through 4.4, inclusive of this Agreement;
and (iv) to make approaches to local business and civic entities to secure commitments for hotel
facility patronage during the first Three (3) years following completion of the Project. In addition
to the foregoing, subject to satisfactory completion of the entire Project in accordance with this
Agreement, the City and the District agree to commit additional funding but only from lawfully
available sources and undertake on behalf of the Project marketing and promotion efforts during
the first Three (3) years of operation of the Project.

ARTICLE V.
FURTHER OBLIGATIONS; DEVELOPER REPRESENTATIONS

Section 5.1. Indemnification: Third Party Actions. The Developer shall have the right, but not
the obligation, to assume the costs of defense of any Third Party Action (including, without
limitation, to settle or compromise any claim or action for which the Developer has assumed the
defense) with counsel of the Developer's choosing and reasonably acceptable to the City and the
District and the City, the District and the Developer each agrees that so long as no conflicts of
interest exist between or among them, the same attorney or attorneys may simultaneously represent
the City, the District, and the Developer in any such proceeding; provided that in the event the
Developer elects not to assume the costs of defense or subsequently abandons the defense of any
Third Party Action undertaken by the Developer, in no event shall the City or the District have any
obligation to assume such defense. In each Third Party Action for which the Developer has
assumed the costs of defense, the Developer shall indemnify and hold the City and the District
together with their respective officials, agents, employees, attorneys, and representatives acting in
any capacity harmless from all such Third Party Actions. In no event shall the City or the District
have any obligation to initiate or to assume the defense of any Third Party Action nor shall the
City or the District nor any officer, official, agent, attorney, employee or representative of the
either of them have any liability to the Developer or any officer, agent, employee or representative
of the Developer for damages, costs or otherwise in the event that all or any part of this Agreement,
the Approving Ordinance, the Approving Resolution, the conveyances set forth in Article Il of
this Agreement or any of them, the provisions for payment or rebate of City Sales Tax amounts set
forth in Section 4.1 or 4.2 of this Agreement, the NID Bonds, the commitments and allocations
made under Sections 4.4 and 4.5 of this Agreement or any of them, or any of the transactions or
undertakings contemplated under this Agreement shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional in
whole or in part by a final (as to which all rights of appeal have been exhausted or expired)
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, or as a result of initiation of any claim, action or
proceeding, the Developer is prevented from enjoying any of the rights and privileges of the
Developer under this Agreement.

Section 5.2. Representations of Developer. The Developer hereby represents and warrants to the
City and the District that as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date:

65
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




(@) The Developer is a duly organized Missouri limited liability company existing and
in good standing under the laws of the State of Missouri;

(b)  The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Developer will not conflict
with or result in a breach of any of the terms of, or constitute a default under, any indenture,
mortgage, deed of trust, lease or other agreement or instrument to which the Developer or any
Affiliate is a party or by which the Developer or any Affiliate is bound or any applicable articles
of organization, or operating agreement, or any of the rules or regulations of any governmental
authority applicable to the Developer or any Affiliate;

(c) The Developer has full corporate power to execute and deliver and perform the
terms and obligations of this Agreement. The Developer has been authorized by all necessary
action to execute and deliver this Agreement, which shall constitute the legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Developer, enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy and
other laws affecting creditors' rights generally and to general principles of equity;

(d)  There are no actions or proceedings by or before any court, governmental
commission, board, bureau, or any other administrative agency pending, threatened, or affecting
the Developer or any Affiliate or any property thereof that would impair the Developer's ability to
perform under this Agreement; and

e) The Developer has obtained or will obtain as and when required by Applicable
Regulations, and shall maintain, all government permits, certificates, and consents (including,
without limitation, environmental approvals required by any Applicable Regulation) necessary to
conduct the Developer's business and to construct, complete, and operate the Project.

Section 5.3. Survival of Covenants. All warranties, representations, covenants, and agreements
of the Developer contained in this Article V shall survive termination of this Agreement for any
reason.

ARTICLE VI.
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 6.1. Assignment Limited. The Developer shall have the right to assign this Agreement
in whole or in part at any time, but only to an Affiliate and upon written notice of such assignment
to the City and the District. Other than the foregoing, the Developer may not sell, assign or
otherwise transfer its interest in this Agreement in whole or in part to any other individual or entity
other than to an Affiliate without the written consent of the City which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

Section 6.2. Term of Agreement. Unless terminated prior to the Closing, this Agreement shall
continue in force: (a) so long as any payments by the City required under Section 4.1 of this
Agreement remain unsatisfied; or (b) the date of the defeasance and satisfaction of the NID Bonds,
whichever is later. The rights and privileges granted to and the duties and obligations

66
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




imposed on the Developer by this Agreement shall apply only to the Project and the
Hotel/Convention Center Properties.

Section 6.3. Notices. Whenever notice or other communication is called for in this Agreement
to be given or is otherwise given, such notice shall be in writing addressed to the addressees at the
addresses set forth below, and transmitted by any of the following means: (a) personal service; (b)
overnight courier; or (c) registered or certified United States mail, return receipt requested:

If to the City: City of Moberly
101 West Reed Street - City Hall
Moberly, Missouri 65270
Attention: City Manager

with a copy to: Cunningham, Vogel & Rost, P.C.
333 South Kirkwood Road, Suite 300
St. Louis, Missouri 63122
Attention: Thomas A. Cunningham, Esqg.

If to the District: Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District
101 West Reed Street
Moberly, Missouri 65270
Attention: Chair

If to the Developer:  Mashburn Development, LLC
1704 NW 450 Road
Kingsville, Missouri 64061
Attention: David Mashburn

Withacopyto:

Attention:
or to such other persons as any of the Parties may designate in writing from time to time in
accordance with this Section 6.3 and all said notices shall be deemed given, as applicable, (a)
upon hand delivery, (b) upon deposit with an overnight courier, or (c) upon deposit in the United
States mail.

Section 6.4. Eurther Assistance. The City, the District, and the Developer each agree to take
such actions and execute such documents and instruments as may be reasonably necessary or
appropriate to carry out the terms, provisions and intent of this Agreement and to aid and assist
each other in carrying out said terms, provisions and intent.

Section 6.5. Survival: Severability. Any provisions of this Agreement that by their terms
provide for or contemplate obligations or duties of a Party that are to extend beyond the

67
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




expiration or termination of this Agreement (and the corresponding rights of the other Party to
enforce or receive the benefit of such obligations or duties) shall survive such expiration or
termination of this Agreement for any reason. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed
severable. If any word, phrase, term, sentence, paragraph, or other portion of this Agreement shall,
at any time or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall
not be affected by such partial invalidity, and each remaining word, phrase, term, sentence,
paragraph covenant, or other portion of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

Section 6.6. Headings: No Presumption: Agreement Preparation. The headings and
captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only, and in no way define, limit,

or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement of any provision thereof and shall in no way be
deemed to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation or construction of the provisions
of this Agreement. Each Party to this Agreement and their attorneys have had full opportunity to
review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Agreement and all documents
attached as exhibits. This Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or
other rule of construction whereby ambiguities within this Agreement or such other document
would be construed or interpreted against the Party causing the document to be drafted. The Parties
;hereto each further represent that the terms of this Agreement and the documents attached as
exhibits hereto have been completely read by them and that those terms are fully understood and
voluntarily accepted by them. In any interpretation, construction or determination of the meaning
of any provision of this Agreement, no presumption whatsoever shall arise from the fact that the
Agreement was prepared by or on behalf of any Party hereto.

Section 6.7. Choice of Law: Venue: Waiver of Objections. This Agreement and its
performance shall be deemed to have been fully executed, made by the Parties in, and governed

by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri applicable to contracts made
and to be performed wholly within such state, without regard to choice or conflict of laws
provisions. The Parties hereto each agree that any action at law, suit in equity, or other judicial
proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Randolph
County, Missouri or in federal court of the Eastern District of Missouri and waive any objection
based upon venue or forum non conveniens or otherwise.

Section 6.8. Entire Agreement; Amendments; No Waiver by Prior Actions. The Parties
hereto agree that this Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and no
other agreements or representations other than those contained in this Agreement have been made
by the Parties. This Agreement shall be amended only in writing and effective when signed by
the duly authorized agents of the Parties. The failure of any Party hereto to insist in any one or
more cases upon the strict performance of any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement to
be performed or observed by another Party shall not constitute a waiver or relinquishment for the
future of any such term, covenant or condition.

Section 6.9. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity: Public Liability Strictly Limited: No
Personal Liability. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or deemed to constitute a

waiver of the City's or the District's sovereign immunity. The Parties hereto agree that in no event
shall the City, the District or any of their respective officials, officers, agents, attorneys,

68
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




employees, or representatives have any liability in damages or any other monetary liability to the
Developer or any Affiliate, assignee, sublessee, successor, assign, heir or personal representative
of the Developer in respect of any suit, claim, or cause of action arising out of this Agreement
other than for a failure of payment of the amounts agreed to be paid by the City or by the
District, the remedy for which failure shall be limited to a suit for specific performance and no
consequential or other damage theories shall be applied, all of which theories in consideration of
the undertakings of the City and the District under this Agreement are hereby irrevocably waived
by the Developer for itself and for any Affiliate, assignee, sublessee, successor, assign, heir or
personal representative of the Developer. No official, officer, agent, attorney, employee, or
representative of the City or of the District shall be personally liable to the Developer or any
Affiliate or the assignees, sublessees, successors, assigns, heirs or personal representatives of the
Developer or Affiliate in the event of any default or breach by any party under this Agreement,
or for any amount which may become due to any party or on any obligations under the terms of
this Agreement.

Section 6.10. Relationship of the Parties: No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in

this Agreement nor any act of the Developer or the City shall be deemed or construed to create a
partnership or agency relationship between or among the Parties or their agents or representatives
and this Agreement is and shall be limited to the specific purposes set out herein. Other than as
expressly provided in this Agreement, no Party shall be the agent of, or have any rights to create
any obligations or liabilities binding on, the other Party. The Parties do not intend to confer any
benefit under this Agreement on any person or entity other than the named Parties hereto.

Section 6.11. Binding Effect. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the
covenants, conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement shall bind and inure to the
benefit of the Developer, the City, and the District and their respective successors and permitted
assigns.

Section 6.12. Execution: Counterparts. Each person executing this Agreement in a
representative capacity warrants and represents that they have authority to do so, and upon request
by another Party, proof of such authority will be furnished to the requesting Party. This Agreement
may be executed at different times and in two or more counterparts, and all counterparts so
executed shall for all purposes constitute one and the same instrument, binding on the Parties
hereto, notwithstanding that both Parties may not have executed the same counterpart. In proving
this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart
executed by the Party against whom enforcement is sought.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and
year first written above.

CITY OF MOBERLY
(the "*City")

69
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




By:

#2.

Jerry Jeffrey, Mayor
ATTEST:

D. K. Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk

DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
(the "District™)

By:

ATTEST: Chair

Assistant Secretary

MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a
Missouri limited liability company
(the ""Developer')

By:

Its:

ATTEST:

Printed name:

70
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)




#2.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF RANDOLPH )
In this day of , 2019, before me appeared Jerry Jeffrey, to me

personally known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Mayor of the CITY OF
MOBERLY, a city of the third classification and Missouri municipal corporation and that the
seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the official seal of said City, and that said instrument
was signed and sealed in behalf of said City by authority of its City Council and said Mayor
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said City.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in the
County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My commission expires:

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF RANDOLPH )
Onthis___ dayof ,2019, before me appeared Brian Crane, to me personally

known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Chair of the Board of Directors of the
DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, acommunity
improvement district and Missouri political subdivision and that the seal affixed to the foregoing
instrument is the official seal of said District, and that said instrument was signed and sealed in
behalf of said City by authority of its Board of Directors and said Chair acknowledged said
instrument to be the free act and deed of said District.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal
in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written.

My commission expires: Notary Public

71
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)




#2.

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF )
On this day of . 2019, before me appeared David Mashburn, to me
personally known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the of

MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC, a Missouri limited liability company, and that said
instrument was signed in behalf of said limited liability company by authority of its governing
body and said person acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said limited
liability company.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in
the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written.

Notary Public
My commission expires:

72
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)




EXHIBIT A
CE8.TIFICA.TE OF REIMBURSABLE IMPROVEMENT COSTS (form)

PARKING GARAGE AND MUNICIPAL AUDITORIUM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
CERTIFICATE OF REIMBURSABLE IMPROVEMENT COSTS NO.

TO:  City of Moberly
101 West Reed Street - City Hall
Moberly, Missouri 65270

c: Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District
101 West Reed Street
Moberly, Missouri 65270

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs
(this "Certificate") shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in that certain Purchase and
Development Agreement, datedas of , 20, (the " Development Agreement")
by and among the City of Moberly, Missouri, the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement
District, and Mashburn Development, LLC.

In connection with the Development Agreement, the undersigned hereby states, certifies, and
represents and warrants to the City and the District that:

1. Each item listed on Annex 1 attached hereto is an "improvement" (as that term is used and
defined in the NID Act) the costs of which was incurred by or on behalf of the Developer in
connection with the installation of the Parking Garage and/or improvements to the City's
Municipal Auditorium set forth on Schedule 1 to the Development Agreement and was paid by
or on behalf of the Developer in connection with the Developer's obligations under the
Development Agreement; and

2. No item listed on Annex 1 has been previously paid or reimbursed to the Developer and
no part thereof has been included in any other Certificate previously submitted to the City under
the Development Agreement.

3. All necessary permits and approvals required for the entire Project have been issued or
obtained and are in full force and effect; and

4. All work for which payment or reimbursement is requested pursuant to this Certificate
has been performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in accordance with the Development

Agreement; and

5. The Developer has made or caused to be made all required payments to contractors and
sub-contractors in connection with the items listed on Annex 1 and lien waivers for each
applicable item have been obtained and copies are attached hereto; there has not been filed with
or served upon the Developer, any Affiliate, or any Construction Contractor any notice of any

73
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




lien, right of lien, or attachment upon or claim affecting the right of any person, firm, or
corporation to receive payment of the amounts stated in this Certificate, except to the extent such
lien is being contested in good faith and is listed as such in Annex 1; and

6. Neither the Developer nor any Affiliate is in default or breach of any term or condition of
the Development Agreement.

Submitted, verified and signed under pains and penalties of perjury this day of
, 20

MASHBURN DEVELOPMENT, LLC

By:

Printed Name:

Title:
Accepted and Approved this day of ,20
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI
By:
Printed Name:
Title:

74

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Center Properties (v.4)

#2.




Annex | to Certificate of Reimbursable Improvement Costs

Item Description
l.

2.

Cost

$

Total this Certificate: $

75

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Cente

Properties (v.4)

#2.




#2.

EXHIBITB

COMMERCE BANK PROPERTY

'‘Commerce Bank
Parcel, 208 West Reed
Street 10-1 .0-01. 0-2.0-
1004-048 .000 (less West
|Parking Lot Area}

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Properties (v.4)



i

)

EXHIBITC

THE HOTEL/CONVENTION CENTER PROPERTIES

Smith
Building, 220

West Reed St.
10-1.0-01.0-

Parking Lot
(City owned)
10-1.0-01.0-
4.U-uu4-
061.000

i

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention

e 3 R
West Parking Lot
Area (Lots 5 & 6 of
Commerce Bank
Property)

CLLEELTE

Properties (v.4)

#2.

Kelly Hotel
and City's
Municipal
Auditorium
10- 1.0-01.0-
2.0-004-
049.000



EXHIBITD

MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM SCHEMATIC DRAWINGS
Parking Garage: Consists of an elevated deck parking garage on top of the existin
arking lot to provide a 2-story open roof parking garage.

(W

Key:

EE  Merchants’ Hotel Block !
B Parking Garage Block

Base Map Source: Steven. L NuhN ArchitecT

! Based on current Gray Design Group, Inc. schematics.

Sie Pian
Ot

Kelly Hotel (Kelly Annex Studios)

mmm  Municipal Auditorium

#2.

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Conventio

78

cente

Properties (v.4)




#2.

Merchant Hotel Annex Remodel: Remodel of the existing Kelly Annex building to provide 32

additional united (19.051 SF) with an add on stair tower and elevator shaft.

LOWER LEVEL PLAN J |

= | ol i. L htﬁhlf

79
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Cemnter Properties (v.4)




Downtown Redevelopment

THIRD FLOOR PLAN

5162019 |

Downlown Redevelopmant

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Conventio

80

cernte

]

{

of Maberly, Missouri 5162019

Properties (v.4)

#2.




#2.

MrhnH er 4 F|nI |nf r4 vI fT A W fram
li i i

Mgrghant’g Hgtgl

[y Py .

T

ly 1
o 1
o il 0 e E -1
e |
‘ ,,..__.,ﬁ'” = 'lL:C Iﬂ,v =)
SR
| — ELL,J_M, -l |
(! 'y PROPOSED GROUND FLOORPLAN
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN THE MERCHANTS HOTEL graj s
Scale: "= 120 Gty of Mabarty, Mmsat 110413
[[ T
T W “-JL "-z-zr—j‘:::f‘*] o o e
Lo L ?:,” L] L L Eo ﬂ
1 AT o T O r“" m i TRAL)’
: .ép R lm;ﬁmul = = == i
VRS e vl | R e Tl | RN [EN \L-u':’”‘-ﬂ' A ‘_—'5
< FA S /J:a_ reci\ ] | =
Fie e o Lef=ae B 7.-' '
ﬁ N ﬁ l’"[‘_/ K[\“]Q] i
i
s
= J
i 1
.'—7'—: = -E
| .
(GUEST ROOM COUN W
( ’ PROPOSED SECOND FLOORPLAN
qPRf)F"C-)S‘.ED SECOND FLOOR PLAN THE MERCHANTS HOTEL g j :

81
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Cemnter Properties (v.4)




#2.

o0 THIRD FLOOR PLAN = %
Sl
Gity of Mobarly, Missouri 5162019 -

Downtown Redevelopment

,
-
N

'
|

DD

Downlown Redevelopment City of Moberly. Missour

i H16. 2019

82

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Cemnter Properties (v.4)




EXHIBIT E

NID PETITION (form)

STATE OF MISSOURI )
) SS.
COUNTY OF RANDOLPH )

PETITION FOR THE CREATION OF A
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

TO THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI:

The undersigned, representing the owners of record of at least two-thirds by area of all
real property located within a proposed Neighborhood Improvement District (as that term is
defined and used in section 67.453(6) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) as further
described below, hereby file and submit this Petition for the creation of a Neighborhood
Improvement District (this "Petition'") and request that the Council of the City of Moberly (the
""City Council™) by resolution or ordinance determine the advisability of the Improvements (as
hereinafter defined) and order that the Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood
Improvement District be established, all pursuant to the Neighborhood Improvement District Act,
sections 67.453 through 67.457 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the "NID Act™),
and as further set forth in this Petition. Capitalized terms used and not defined in this Petition
shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in that certain Purchase and Development
Agreement, dated as of - - - - - " 20_, by and among the City of Moberly, Missouri, the
Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District, and Mashburn Development, LLC (the
"Development Agreement") which is hereby incorporated by reference in this Petition as if set
forth in its entirety in this place.

1. The project name for the proposed Improvements shall be the Parking Garage and
Municipal Auditorium Improvements Project (the ""Project™).

2. The general nature of the proposed Improvements includes: (a) construction and
installation of an elevated two-story open roof public parking garage; (b) relocation, installation
and renovation of sanitary and storm sewerage in connection with the foregoing; (c) construction
and reconstruction of sidewalks, pavement, curbs and gutters in conjunction with the foregoing;
(d) improvements to the City's Municipal Auditorium as set forth in the Development Agreement;
and (e) such other streetscape and other public improvements and facilities as may be appurtenant
to the redevelopment of the Hotel/Convention Center Properties as a high quality boutique
destination hotel and convention venue in accordance with the Minimum Development Program
and which satisfy the definition of the term "improvement” as set forth in section 67.453(5) of the
NID Act, all generally located within and serving that portion of the Moberly downtown area
bounded by West Reed Street on the north, North Clark Street on the east, West Rollins Street on
the south and North Williams Street on the west and benefitting the properties within the proposed
Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District (collectively, the
"Improvements'), together with the costs of issuance, debt service

83
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Cemnter Properties (v.4)

#2.




reserves, and accrued interest on associated temporary notes or neighborhood improvement
district bonds (**NID Bonds") issued with respect to any and all portions of the Project.
Maintenance of the Improvements and the Project will be provided by the City of Moberly using
City forces or through private contracts.

3. The total estimated cost of the proposed Improvements is $ plus costs of
issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued interest on NID Bonds.

4. The Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District
boundaries are legally described on Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated by reference in this
Petition. The proposed Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement
District lies entirely within the corporate limits of the City of Moberly, Missouri.

5. The proposed method of assessment of real property within the proposed Merchants Hotel
and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District is as follows: the total cost of the
Improvements (together with the costs of issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued interest, if
any, on NID Bonds issued to finance the Improvements) will be divided and assessed ratably per
parcel (as set forth in the records of the Randolph County Assessor) deemed to be benefited
thereby, based upon the acreage or fraction thereof, for a duration of not more than twenty (20)
years; provided that the City of Moberly has agreed in the Development Agreement to pay all
such assessments.

6. NOTICE: The names of the signers of this Petition may not be withdrawn later than Seven
(7) days after this Petition is filed with the City Clerk of the City of Moberly, Missouri.

7. NOTICE: The total final total costs of the Improvements plus costs of issuance, debt
service reserves, and accrued interest on NID Bonds assessed against property within the proposed
Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District and the amount of
such general obligation bonds or temporary notes issued therefor shall not exceed the estimated
costs of such Improvements as stated in paragraph 3 of this Petition by more than twenty-five
percent (25%).

Respectfully submitted,
PETITIONER:

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI
By:

Name: Brian Crane
Title: City Manager

ATTEST:

D.K. Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk

84
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Cemnter Properties (v.4)

#2.




Exhibit A to NID Petition

Legal Description of Proposed

Merchants Hotel and Convention Center Neighborhood Improvement District

Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Conventio

85

cernte

Properties (v.4)

#2.




Schedule 1
Improvements to City's Municipal Auditorium

» Building Demolition: Selective interior demolition of the lower level of the auditorium
including haul off of all demolished material.

P Maso m:y: Brick repairs associated with the tie-in to the Kelley Annex Studios.

P Finish Carpentry: Installation of all doors and hardware for the Boardrooms Corridor.

» Moisture Protection. Insulation & Fire Proofing: Insulation of all walls and ceilings for the
Auditorium Corridor.

P Roofing & Sheet Metal: Existing sheet metal to remain in place.

P Waterproofing, Sealants & Caulking: Caulking at door frames.

» Doors & Windows: Hollow metal doors and frames and associated hardware for the
Auditorium Corridor.

» D rywall & Acoustical Ceilings: Drywall at all walls and ceilings based on the layouts
provided in the drawings; a level 4 smooth finish in all areas and ACT at the Auditorium
Corridor.

» Flooring & Ceramic Tile; Carpet and carpet base at the Auditorium Corridor.

> Painting: Painting of all walls, ceilings, doors/frames where not prefinished, trim, and all
exterior penetrations that are not pre-finished.

P Toilet Accessories & Miscellaneous Specialties: Furnishing and installation of fire
extinguishers plus allowance of $2,500 for furnishing and installing interior unit and wayfinding
slgnage.

P Fire Protection: Allowance of $1,479 for extension of the existing fire protection system to
the Auditorium Corridor.

» HVAC: Extension of the existing HVAC system into the Auditorium Corridor.

P Elect rical: Extension of the existing electrical system into the Auditorium Corridor;
furnishing and installing all hardwired light fixtures throughout.

Source: Brinkmann Constructors, Chesterfield, Missouri, 2019

86
Development Agreement- Downtown Hotel/Convention Cemnter Properties (v.4)

#2.




City of Moberly Agenda Number: #3,
. . Department: City Manager
City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 6, 2020
Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager Of Moberly, Missouri To

Execute A Cooperative Agreement For Tourism Promotion Services With The
Moberly Chamber Of Commerce.

Summary:
Attached is the Chamber’s proposal for the 2020 Tourism Budget. We have
decreased the consultant contract for 2020 to $5000. The Chamber will
determine the need for the Consultant and use as needed on an hourly basis.
We have also increased our advertising budget. This is crucial to the
development of our Tourism product. We can’t continue to market and
promote on a shoe-string budget. We will only be successful in our efforts if
we have additional money to spend marketing. Our MDT grant did increase
this year to $7500 which also will help our dollars go further. Attached is a
plan for the 2020 Tourism Advertising dollars. These funds will be used to
promote events and attractions as well as to create a printable visitors
guide. The new visitors guide will be a condensed version of the 2016
version. Tourism marketing experts recommend printing the visitors guide
annually in order to include the information Tourists want each year. Our
marketing plan also allows for radio and print advertising in addition to the
social media ads. The Marketing Plan is still very heavy on social media
advertising so that we can easily track engagement and see ROl on our
advertising investment.
Recommended
Action: Approve .
Fund Name:
Account Number:
Available Budget $:
ATTACHMENTS: Roll Call Aye Nay
_____Memo ____ Council Minutes Mayor
_X__ Staff Report __ Proposed Ordinance M__ S__ Jeffrey _
_ X Correspondence __ Proposed Resolution
____Bid Tabulation __ Attorney’s Report Council Member
__ P/IC Recommendation ___ Petition M__ S__ Brubaker -
____P/C Minutes ____ Contract M__ S___ Kimmons _
__ Application __ Budget Amendment M___ S__ Davis _
__ Citizen __ Legal Notice M__ S__ Kyser
__ Consultant Report Other Passed  Faied

87




BILL NO. ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI
TO EXECUTE A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR TOURISM PROMOTION
SERVICES WITH THE MOBERLY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO-WIT:

SECTION ONE: The City and the Moberly Chamber of Commerce have joined forces

to bring tourism to Moberly and wish to enter into an agreement which provides for such services.

SECTION TWO:  Attached hereto is a Tourism Promotion Services Agreement
whereby the Chamber of Commerce will provide tourism services to the city in exchange for the
payment of $90,000.00 for the calendar year of 2020.

SECTION THREE: The City Manager of Moberly, Missouri is hereby authorized to
execute the attached Agreement and take such other and further steps as may be needed to
effectuate the terms of the Agreement.

SECTION FOUR: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the
officer presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 61" day

of January, 2020.

ATTEST: Presiding Officer at Meeting

City Clerk

88

#3.




#3.

CITY OF MOBERLY
TOURISM PROMOTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

The City of Moberly (“City”) and the Moberly Chamber of Commerce (“Chamber”), referred to
collectively as the “Parties,” enter into the following Agreement for Tourism Promotion services:

I. Scope: The Chamber shall provide tourism promotion services for the City. Tourism promotion shall
mean activities and expenditures designed to increase tourism to the City. Tourism promotion
activities may include, but are not limited to, advertising, publicizing, or otherwise distributing
information for the purpose of attracting and welcoming tourists to the City. The Chamber shall
annually provide to the City a marketing and work plan, setting forth its goals and objectives for
successful tourism promotion. The Chamber shall contract for services of a professional destination
consulting services to conduct a Tourism Strategic Plan for the City of Moberly as attached to this
agreement.

Il. Term: This agreement shall commence on the date of execution of this Agreement and shall
continue in full force and effect until December 31, 2020 unless terminated earlier pursuant to Section
IX of this Agreement.

lll. Compensation: In consideration of the services provided pursuant to this Agreement the City shall
pay the Chamber an amount of $90,000 annually. These funds may be paid monthly in an amount
equal to $7,500 per month.

The Chamber shall submit periodic billing statements detailing activities and services performed by the
Chamber specifically promoting tourism in the City of Moberly including measurable results. Upon
receipt of a conforming billing statement, the City shall promptly process payment within 30 days. If a
billing statement does not conform to this Agreement, the City may withhold payment until the
statement is brought into compliance. Such withholding does not relieve the Chamber of its
obligations under this Agreement.

The Chamber shall not perform work beyond the Scope of Work, nor shall be compensated for such
work, unless the Scope of Work or amount of compensation is modified pursuant to this Agreement.

IV. Relationship of Parties: The Chamber represents that it is skilled in the matters addressed in the
Scope of Work and is performing independent functions and responsibilities within its field of
expertise. The Chamber and its personnel are independent contractors and not employees of the City.
The Chamber and its personnel have no authority to bind the City or to control the City’s employees
and other contractors. None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees, including, but not
limited to, compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to the
employees, agents, representatives, or sub consultants of the Chamber. The Chamber will be solely

89




#3.

and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of the Chamber’s agents, employees,
representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this Agreement. The City may, during
the term of this Agreement, engage other independent contractors to perform the same or similar
work.

As an independent contractor, the Chamber is responsible for its own management. The City’s
administration and enforcement of this Agreement shall not be deemed an exercise of managerial
control over the Chamber or its personnel. As an independent contractor, the Chamber is responsible
for payment of all taxes and licensing fees necessary to perform its obligations under this Agreement.
These taxes and fees include but are not limited to State industrial insurance, Business & Occupation,
State professional licensing, and City business licensing. If any taxes or fees due the City have been
declared delinquent, the City may withhold the delinquent amount, plus any additional charges arising
from the delinquency, from any payments due to the Chamber.

V. Indemnification: The Chamber shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits,
including all legal costs and attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with the performance of this
Agreement, except for that portion of the injuries and damages caused by the City's sole negligence.

The City's review or acceptance of any of the work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any
of these covenants of indemnification.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

VI. Insurance: Prior to and during the performance of the work covered by this Agreement, the
Chamber shall make available, upon request from the Director of Finance for the City, the evidence
that it has obtained and maintains in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement
comprehensive general liability insurance coverage. In the event the Chamber organizes, promotes or
sponsors an event involving the sale or consumption of food or alcoholic beverages, the Chamber shall
also provide evidence, upon request from the City, that it has obtained products liability and liquor
liability insurance of at least $1,000,000.00 per occurrence, for each event. The City shall be named as
additional insured and a copy of the appropriate additional insured endorsement shall be provided to
the City’s Director of Finance. The Director of Finance shall be provided thirty (30) days written notice
of any cancellation of said insurance.

VIl. General Conditions:

A. Reports and Information: The Chamber shall attend all quarterly Moberly Tourism
Commission meetings and provide a report on activities for the previous quarter. The Chamber shall
furnish monthly reports and documents on matters covered by this Agreement to the City Council. The
reports and documents shall be furnished in the time and form requested. Such reports and

90




#3.

documents shall include: list of all tourism activities conducted on behalf of the City, special events
sponsored by the Chamber, the estimated number of tourists and/or persons traveling to the
destination, and the estimated number of lodging stays generated per tourism-related event.

B. Work Performed at the Chamber's Risk: The Chamber shall take all precautions necessary
and shall be responsible for the safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the
performance of the work hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work
shall be done at the Chambers own risk, and the Chamber shall be responsible for any loss of or
damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held for use in connection with the work.

C. Place of Work: The Chamber shall perform the work authorized under this Agreement at its
offices in Moberly, Missouri or at the offsite office of an independent contractor. Any necessary
meetings with the City staff shall take place at the City's offices, or at locations mutually agreed upon
by the parties.

D. Entire Agreement: This Agreement and its Exhibits constitutes the entire agreement between
the Parties, and the Parties acknowledge that there are no other agreements, written or oral, that have
not been set forth in the text of this Agreement.

E. Severability: Should any part of this Agreement be found void, the balance of the Agreement
shall remain in full force and effect.

F. Modification: This Agreement may only be modified by written instrument signed by both
Parties.

G. Written Notices: All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at
the addresses listed below by registered or 1st class mail, or by personal service, and shall be deemed
sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at the address stated in this Agreement or such other address
as may be hereafter specified in writing.

ADDRESS: ADDRESS:

City of Moberly Moberly Chamber of Commerce
Attn: City Clerk Attn: Executive Director

101 West Reed Street 211 West Reed Street

Moberly, MO 65270 Moberly, MO 65270

H. Waiver: Failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of
that provision. Waiver of any right or power arising out of this Agreement shall not be deemed waiver
of any other right or power.

91




#3.

I. Non-Waiver of Breach: The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the
covenants and agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or
more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, agreements
or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

J. Compliance with Laws: The Chamber shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local
laws in performing its obligations under this Agreement.

K. Choice of Law and Venue: This Agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of the
State of Missouri. Any judicial action to resolve disputes arising out of this Agreement shall be brought
in Randolph County District Court.

L. Attorneys’ Fees: In the event of litigation to enforce any of the terms or provisions herein,
each party shall pay all its own costs and attorney’s fees.

M. Assignment: Any assignment of this agreement by the Chamber without the written consent
of the City shall be void.

VIII. Nondiscrimination: The Chamber shall not discriminate in employment or services to the public on
the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, marital status, sexual orientation or disability,
except for employment actions based on bona fide occupational qualification.

IX. Termination: This Agreement may be terminated by either party for convenience upon sixty (60)
days written notice to the other party, or for cause if either party fails substantially to perform through
no fault of the other and does not commence correction within five (5) days of written notice and
diligently completes the correction thereafter. Upon such termination, City will be entitled to reports
showing the status of all services the Chamber is providing to the City as of the effective date of
termination.

X. Termination of Other Contracts. This Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements between the
parties relating to the use of Hotel/Motel Tax.

CITY OF MOBERLY MOBERLY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
By: By:

Name: Brian Crane Name: Chris Weathers

TITLE: City Manager TITLE: President

Date: Date:

Attest:

City Clerk

92




Lwo

AREA*CHAMBER
OF COMMERCE

Tourism Promotion Services Agreement

Moberly Area Chamber of Commerce
211 West Reed | Moberly, MO 65270
p. 660.263.6070 | f. 660.263.9443
www.moberlychamber.com

#3.

REVENUES

ltem Number Description

102.000.4114 Non-resident Lodging Tax S 90,000.00

Chamber Rev. MDT Tourism Grant S 7,500.00
S 97,500.00

EXPENSES

Item Number Description

102.000.5212 Advertising S 25,500.00

102.000.5406 Contract Labor S 60,000.00

102.000.5411 Administrative Fees S 7,000.00

102.000.5506 Consultant Contract - bill as needed ) 5,000.00
S 97,500.00

93




Month:

2020 Tourism Budget

Estimated Cost:

[tem Type:

Printed Materials:

January
February
February
February
May

Visitors Guide
Depot Maps
Banners (for trade shows)

Logo Table Cloth (for trade shows)

Depot Maps

Radio Advertising:

September
October
December

Junk Junktion
Haunted Tours
Moberly's Christmas Festival

Facebook/Instagram Boosting:

January
February
March
March
March
April

April

April

May

June

June

June

June

June

luly
August
September
September
September
October
October
December
December
December
Other:

All Year
Fall Issue
All Year
All Year
All Year

2019 Events

College Basketball
Rothwell Park Ad
Group Tour/Heritage Ad
Local Shops

Mini Train

Vintage Stores
Rodeo

Amish

Railroad Days
Wineries

Patio Dining
Rothwell Park

HLR Motorsports Ad
Omar Bradley Ad
Higbee Fair Ad
Golfing Ad

Amish

Fishing Ad

Shepard Farms
Haunted Tours
lorgenson Gallery Ad
Christmas Shopping Ad
Christmas Events

SEM

MO Life AD

Video Work

Yard Signs & Banners for Events
Ad Creation by Art Dept.

W NN Wn Wn

“wmaorrinnnrnnnnumnnnoeogno,m i, ;;,n ;A n W N n

wrn W nn

Total: S

94

3,500.00
225.00
300.00
200.00
225.00

500.00
500.00
500.00

300.00
225.00
200.00
320.00
300.00
500.00
500.00
500.00
500.00
500.00
375.00
505.00
375.00
300.00
200.00
200.00
250.00
300.00
275.00
225.00
300.00
175.00
350.00
525.00

6,800.00
2,500.00
600.00
450.00
1,000.00

25,500.00

Actual Cost:

#3.




City of Moberly Agenda Number: Commiiy #a,
City Council Agenda Summary Department: Development
Date: January 6, 2020

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Approving A Change Order To The Willis Bros., Inc., Harrison Ave.
And Garfield Ave. CDBG Infrastructure Project.
Summary: Attached is an email from Tom explaining the funding and change order.
Recommended
Action: Approve this ordinance

Fund Name: N/A
Account Number: N/A
Available Budget $: N/A

ATTACHMENTS:

____Memo

__ Staff Report

__x_ Correspondence
____Bid Tabulation
_____PI/IC Recommendation
____P/C Minutes

__ Application

____ Citizen

__ Consultant Report

____ Council Minutes
__x Proposed Ordinance
__ Proposed Resolution
__ Attorney’s Report
____ Petition
____ Contract
__ Budget Amendment
__ Legal Notice

Other

Roll Call

Mayor
M__ S__ Jeffrey

Council Member
M___ S Brubaker
M__ S Kimmons
M___ S Davis
M__ S Kyser

Aye

Passed

Nay

Failed

95




#4.

BILL NO. ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A CHANGE ORDER TO THE WILLIS BROS,, INC,,
HARRISON AVE. AND GARFIELD AVE. CDBG INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MOBERLY, MISSOURI, TO-WIT:

SECTION ONE: By Ordinance No. 9555 this council approved a contract with Willis
Bros., Inc., for the Harrison Ave. and Garfield Ave. CDBG Infrastructure Project (the “Contract”).

SECTION TWO:  The work contemplated in the Contract will cause stormwater
drainage problems which was not anticipated in the Contract and which necessitates a change in
the contract.

SECTION THREE: Asphalt paving described in Items numbered 9 and 29 of the Base
Bid and Item number 40 of Alternate A Bid and Item number 52 of Alternate B Bid in the total
amount of $31,632.00 are hereby eliminated from the Contract. Concrete repair work described in
Items numbered 10 and 30 of the Base Bid and Item number 41 of Alternate A Bid and Item
number 53 of Alternate B Bid in the total amount of $26,860 are hereby eliminated from the
Contract.

SECTION FOUR: Excavation and Berm construction identified as Fox Run Phase | in
the amount of $18,254.25 and Fox Run Phase Il in the amount of $139,905.25 are hereby added to
the Contract.

SECTION FIVE:  These changes to the Contract are hereby approved and ordered and

the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute all documents required to effect these changes.

96




#4.

SECTION SIX: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage
and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the officer
presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 6th day of January 2020.

Presiding Officer at Meeting
ATTEST:

City Clerk

97




WILLIS BROS., INC.
30285 KIMBALL PLACE

M#ACON, MISSOURI 63552
660-385-3327/FAX 660-385-7110

Proposal

November 5, 2019

City of Moberly
tsanders@cityofmoberly.com
101 West Reed

Moberly, MO 65270

Re: Harrison Ave & Garfield Ave Project
Tom,

Here is our proposal to cut costs on the above referenced project.

Bid Item
A3 ——Zero-oul-the-conerete-deivesayg———— 4 49.805.00

9,29, 40, 52 Asphalt Paving deleted
Reduce price 12.00 sq yd $-31,632.00

10, 30, 41, 53 Concrete Street Repair
Reduces sq yd by 15%
from 2636 sq yds to 2240.60 sq yds :
Total reduction 395.40 sq yds x 68.00 $- 26,860.00

Total Reduction <$+68:387~66—

Sincerely,
Tom Willis
Willis Bros., Inc.

98

#4.




#4.

Bid
Willis Bros., Inc.
Change Order #1~Harrison Ave & Garfield Ave Street Project 12/11/2019 “Ef\\@\ eSSV
FOX RUN - PHASE 1 -
Item| Description IUnit IQuantity |Unit Price |Total Price
1 Mobilization % 5% S 17,385.00 S 869.25
2 Removals, Clearing & Grubbing AC 02 S 20,000.00 S  4,000.00
3 Contractor Furnished Surveying LS 18 1,000.00 S 1,000.00
4 Class A Excavation CcY 479 § 12.00 § 5,748.00
5 Compacting Embankment ( Dam) cYy 200 S 500 $  1,000.00
6 Excessive Fill Placement on-site cY 279 S 3.00 §$ 837.00
15 Erosion Control LS 18 800.00 S 800.00
16 Cleanup, Final Grading, Seed, Mulch & Fertilizer AC 02 S 6,000.00 S  1,200.00
17 V-Notch Weir Concrete LS 18 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00
18 Rip Rap Ditch Liner TN 20 S 40.00 S 800.00 | |
$  18,254.25 4'2.%,1%('9\
FOX RUN - PHASE Il
ltem Description [Unit |Quantity |Unit Price |Tota| Price
1 Mobilization % 5% S 122,005.00 S 6,100.25
2 Removals, Clearing & Grubbing AC 1.13 S 6,000.00 S  6,780.00
3 Contractor Furnished Surveying LS 18 2,000.00 S 2,000.00
4 Class A Excavation cY 11000 $ 6.00 S 66,000.00
5 Compacting Embankment ( Dam) cy 200 S 10.00 $  2,000.00
6 Excessive Fill Placement on-site cy 10800 $ 4.00 S 43,200.00
12 30" HDPE Storm Pipe LF 130 S 48.00 S 6,240.00
15 Erosion Control LS 1S 2,500.00 §  2,500.00
16 Cleanup, Final Grading, Seed, Mulch & Fertilizer AC 1.13 S 4,500.00 $§  5,085.00
S 139,905.25 | #132,\US
FOX RUN - PHASE Il
ltem| Description IUnit |Quantity |Unit Price |Total Price
1 Mobilization % 5% S 82,915.00 S 4,145.75
2 Removals, Clearing & Grubbing AC 0.71 S 8,000.00 §  5,680.00
3 Contractor Furnished Surveying LS 1S 3,000.00 $ 3,000.00
4 Class A Excavation cY 2500 S 8.00 $ 20,000.00
5 Compacting Embankment ( Dam) cY 1000 S 8.00 $  8,000.00
6 Excessive Fill Placement on-site CcY 1500 S 400 S 6,000.00
14 42" HDPE Storm Pipe LF 435 S 90.00 S 39,150.00
15 Erosion Control LS 15 3,500.00 $§  3,500.00
16 Cleanup, Final Grading, Seed, Mulch & Fertilizer AC 0.71 S 6,000.00 S 4,260.00
17 Street Repair 3% 16 S 95.00 S 1,520.00
S 95,255.75

=

* (55 500

TRusse T #TC Torashise, 5

99




#4.

Preliminary Engineer's Estimate

ARTL E‘_"“i"ﬂ'\'ﬂfa I Date: December 3, 2019
ane}..pT:;ee-ownuu p— Project No.: 19254.022
Fox Run - Phase |

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT [ QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENSION
1 |Mobilization % 5.0% $961.00 $961.00
2 |Removals, Clearing and Grubbing AC 0.20 $2,500.00 $500.00
3 |Contractor Furnished Surveying LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
4 |Class A Excavation CcY 479 $4.50 $2,155.50
5 |Compacting Embankment (dam) cYy 200 $5.00 $1,000.00
6 |Excessive Fill Placement on-site CcY 279 $2.00 $558.00
7 |Replacement of Stockpiled Topsoil cY 0 $1.00 $0.00
8 [14' x 7' Riser Structure VF 0 $2,000.00 $0.00
8 |15" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $74.00 $0.00
9 |18" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $83.00 $0.00
10 |21" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $92.00 $0.00
11 |24" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $93.00 $0.00
12 |30" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $110.00 $0.00
13 36" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $120.00 $0.00
14 [42" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $130.00 $0.00
15 |Erosion Control LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
16 [Cleanup, Final Grading, Seed, Muich & Fertilize AC $2,800.00 $0.00
Subtotal $21,237.00
Contingency I ’ 10% $2,124.00
Construction Cost : $23,361.00

100




#4.

Preliminary Engineer's Estimate

Date: December 3, 2019
Project No.: 19254.022
Fox Run - Phase I

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT [ QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENSION
1 [Mobilization % 5.0% $5,435.00 $5,435.00
2 |Removals, Clearing and Grubbing AC 1.13 $2,500.00 $2,825.00
3 |Contractor Furnished Surveying LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
4 |Class A Excavation cY 11,000 $4.50 $49,500.00
5 [Compacting Embankment (dam) cY 200 $5.00 $1,000.00
6 |Excessive Fill Placement on-site CcYy 10,800 $2.00 $21,600.00
7 |Replacement of Stockpiled Topsoil CcYy 0 $1.00 $0.00
8 |14'x 7' Riser Structure VF 0 $2,000.00 $0.00
8 |15" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $74.00 $0.00
9 |18" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $83.00 $0.00
10 |21" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $92.00 $0.00
11 |24" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $93.00 $0.00
12 |30" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $110.00 $0.00
13 (36" HP Storm Pipe LF 130 $120.00 $15,600.00
14 |42" HP Storm Pipe LF 0 $130.00 $0.00
15 |Erosion Control LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
16 |Cleanup, Final Grading, Seed, Mulch & Fertilize AC 1.13 $2,800.00 $3,164.00
Subtotal $120,131.00
Contingency I 10% $12,014.00
Construction Cost : $132,145.00

101




#4.

Carla Beal

From: Tom Sanders

Sent: Thursday, December 12, 2019 11:14 AM
To: Shirley Olney; Carla Beal

Cc: Brian Crane; Mary West; Austin Johnson
Subject: Harrison & Garfield - Fox Run Detention
Attachments: Willis01632620191211142336.pdf

Shirley/Carla,
Please print this out for council packets and put this discussion item on for Dec. 16" work session. This is a proposed

stormwater solution for the Harrison/Garfield project as well as the Fox Run area.

As you know, Willis Brothers was approved by ordinance 9555 to complete improvements to Harrison and Garfield in
part with CDBG funding. These improvements would cause a slight increase in stormwater downstream and under this
project, it wasn’t being addressed. We were proceeding with the understanding Utilities was working on a regional
detention basis that would more than compensate for the added stormwater. After learning that they did not have the
funding to complete this regional facility, | met with Willis Brothers to discuss some Phasing of the detention work that
would be more affordable and timely. Working with Willis and Bartlett & West, we have three phases laid out at this

time.

| received pricing back from Willis Brothers on Wed, Dec. 11'" (see attached, page 2). Phase | & Il don’t require any land
acquisition/easements (see diagram below). Phase I is the reconstruction and berming up of the drainage channel South
of McKinsey from Garfield. We have a 30’ wide r/w through here. The proposed improvements to this area alone will
more than make up for the added stormwater from the Harrison & Garfield project. The cost for Phase | is $18,254.25.

Phase Il is the improvements to Fox Park, there is over 11,000 cubic yards of material excavation there. The price for
Phase Il is $139,905. Both phases combined are $158,159, and the engineers estimate was $155,506 (see attached,
page 3&4). In reviewing the proposed work on Garfield & Harrison, we have identified $58,492 worth of work that we
can cut out of the project (see attached, page 1). This will easily provide enough funding to cover the detention work
necessary to off-set this project and could be applied towards phase Il to offset some of that cost, which would further
reduce existing stormwater impacts in the area.

This would leave $99,667 for utilities to cover to have both of these areas completed under this project. Staff and
Engineers think these are reasonable prices and we should proceed with the work under a change order.

At a minimum, | would suggest that we complete a change order for at least Phase | for $18,254 to contain the
stormwater which would result in a net reduction in the bid price for Harrison & Garfield of $40,238.

Thanks,
Tom

102




ISR EN

(128}

W CURDINIET MOV - 510
FLIN (N L8 AP = 354,38

FLIK (] ME7 P 2 754,397
L AUT () B0 NP ~ B3LE

EPFRIKIMATE Mag
L

OF 2 <300 R
LRI
O2FL-A30.00

275 LOMG A WIDE DERM
VO ELewmT IR = 35201304
b L1145 4




City of Moberly Agenda Number: 5,

City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 6, 2020

Department: City Manager

Agenda Item:

Summary:

Recommended
Action:

Fund Name:
Account Number:

Available Budget $:

An Ordinance Ordering That Assessments Be Made Against Benefited
Properties Situated Within The Downtown Moberly Public Facilities
Neighborhood Improvement District Based Upon Revised Estimated Costs Of
Proposed Improvements Within Such District; Ordering Preparation Of An
Assessment Roll; And Calling For A Public Hearing And Providing Direction
For The Giving Of Notice Thereof, All Pursuant To The Neighborhood
Improvement District Act

This Ordinance approves Plans and Specifications (attached as Exhibit A) and
Revised Estimated Costs (attached as Exhibit B) for sewerage and streetscape
improvements comprising the Downtown Moberly Public Facilities Improvements
Project (collectively, the “Improvements”) to be made in conjunction with the
Moberly Downtown Revitalization Program previously endorsed by City Council
Resolution No. R-535 adopted on February 21, 2017. The Ordinance also directs the
preparation of an Assessment Roll calling for special assessments with the area of the
Neighborhood Improvement District established by Ordinance No. 9310, which will
provide a source of financing for the Improvements under the Neighborhood
Improvement District Act, sections 67.453 through 67.475 of the Revised Statutes of
Missouri, as amended, and calls for a noticed public hearing to be held on January 21,
2020 to consider the Improvements and the assessments called for in the Assessment
Roll. The Ordinance is the second step in obtaining NID Bond financing for the
Improvements as called for in Resolution No. R-535 and in the associated
Development Agreement of the same date among the City, the Moberly
Redevelopment Corporation, and the Downtown Moberly Community Improvement
District.

Approve this ordinance

ATTACHMENTS:

____Memo

__ Staff Report

__ Correspondence
____Bid Tabulation
____PI/IC Recommendation
____P/C Minutes

__ Application

____ Citizen

__ Consultant Report

Roll Call Aye Nay

____ Council Minutes Mayor
_X_Proposed Ordinance M__ S__ Jeffrey _
__ Proposed Resolution
__ Attorney’s Report Council Member
___ Petition M___ S Brubaker _
____ Contract M__ S___ Kimmons o
__ Budget Amendment M__ S__ Davis _
__ Legal Notice M__ S Kyser

Other Passed Failed

104




BILL NO. ORDINANCE NO:

AN ORDINANCE ORDERING THAT ASSESSMENTS BE MADE AGAINST
BENEFITED PROPERTIES SITUATED WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN MOBERLY
PUBLIC FACILITIES NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BASED UPON
REVISED ESTIMATED COSTS OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN SUCH
DISTRICT; ORDERING PREPARATION OF AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; AND
CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING AND PROVIDING DIRECTION FOR THE
GIVING OF NOTICE THEREOF, ALL PURSUANT TO THE NEIGHBORHOQOD
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ACT.

WHEREAS, a proper petition from the owner of record of at least two-thirds by area of all
real property located within a proposed Neighborhood Improvement District (as that term is
defined and used in Section 67.453(6) of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended) (the
“Petition”) has been filed with the Clerk of the City of Moberly (the “City Clerk”); and

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Moberly (the “City Council), upon reviewing the
Petition and following due deliberation, by passage of Ordinance No. 9310, adopted and approved
on March 20, 2017, has determined the advisability of the improvements set forth in the Petition
(collectively, the “Improvements”) and has ordered that the proposed Downtown Moberly Public
Facilities Neighborhood Improvement District be established and that preliminary plans and
specifications for the Improvements be made and has made the findings specified in Section 67.457
of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended; and

WHEREAS, upon receipt and review of the preliminary plans and specifications for the
Improvements, the City Council now wishes to order assessments to be made against each parcel
of real property deemed to be benefited by the Improvements, based upon revised estimated costs
of the Improvements, and to order that a proposed assessment roll be prepared, all pursuant to the

Neighborhood Improvement District Act, Sections 67.453 through 67.475 of the Revised Statutes

of Missouri, as amended (the “NID Act”);
1

Ordinance Ordering Assessment Roll, Public Hearing for Downtown Moberly Public Facilities NID

105

#5.




NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MOBERLY, MISSOURI, as follows, to-wit:

SECTION 1. The plans and specifications for the Improvements (together, the “Plans”)
and the revised estimated costs thereof (the “Estimated Costs”), which are attached as Exhibit A
and Exhibit B, respectively, to and incorporated by reference in this Ordinance, are hereby
accepted and are hereby directed to be filed with the City Clerk and to be open and available for
public inspection.

SECTION 2. It is hereby ordered that assessments be made against each parcel of real
property within the Downtown Moberly Public Facilities Neighborhood Improvement District
deemed to be benefited by the Improvements based upon the Estimated Costs. It is hereby further
ordered that a proposed assessment roll (the “Assessment Roll””) be prepared that shall reflect the
following methodology: the total cost of the Improvements (together with the costs of issuance,
debt service reserves, and accrued interest, if any, on NID Bonds issued to finance the
Improvements) will be divided and assessed ratably per parcel (as set forth in the records of the
Randolph County Assessor) deemed to be benefited thereby, based upon the acreage or fraction
thereof, for a duration of not more than twenty (20) years. Upon completion, the Assessment Roll
shall be filed with the City Clerk and shall be open and available for public inspection.

SECTION 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish notice that meets the
requirements of Section 67.461.2 of the NID Act of a public hearing to be held on Tuesday, January
21, 2020, at 6:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers, Moberly City Hall, 101 West Reed Street,
Moberly, Missouri 65270 and, at the same time, the City Clerk shall mail to the owners of record

of the properties made liable to pay the proposed assessments, at their last known post-office

Ordinance Ordering Assessment Roll, Public Hearing -

#5.




address, a notice of the public hearing and a statement of the cost proposed to be assessed against
the properties so owned and assessed; provided that the failure of any owner to receive such notice
shall not invalidate the proceedings.

SECTION 4. The portions of this Ordinance shall be severable. In the event that any portion
of this Ordinance is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions
of this Ordinance are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Ordinance are so essential
and inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be presumed that
the City Council would have enacted the valid portions within the invalid ones, or unless the court
finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of being executed in
accordance with the legislative intent.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage
and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the officer
presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri onthis __ day

of January, 2020.

Presiding Officer at Meeting

ATTEST:

Diane Kay Galloway, CMC/MRCC, City Clerk

Ordinance Ordering Assessment Roll, Public Hearing -

#5.




EXHIBIT A
PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

The proposed Improvements consist of: Plans and specifications identifying and depicting
proposed Improvements as set forth below.

Improvement No. Description Additional Notation
1 Sewer System Improvements Includes:

- Cleaning and televising 18,500 LF
of sewer line with Spot Repairs on 250
LF;

- Rehabilitation of 12,000 LF of
sewer main;

- Rehabilitation of 24 manholes;

- Inflow and infiltration corrections
and pipe repairs at 24 business
locations;

- Restoration of 200 SY of
Pavement;

Traffic and Erosion Control at
Project Site;

- Installation of 25 elbow/traps at
Storm Sewer Manhole locations;

2 Streetscape Improvements Includes:
- Tear Out and Installation of 70 new
Planter “bump outs;”
- Installation of new curbing;
- Installation of new Street Trees and
Plantings, soil and muich;

together with such improvements as may be appurtenant to the forgoing and the costs associated
with the design of any of the foregoing. Implementation of the foregoing Plans shall be reviewed
and administered by the City’s Utilities and Streets Departments. Improvements shall be
maintained by the City through its Utilities and Streets Departments.

Ordinance Ordering Assessment Roll, Public Hearing

108

#5.




EXHIBITB

REVISED ESTIMATED COSTS

Revised Estimated Costs for the Improvements = $1,388,337.50 (See table below):

No.  Description Estimated Cost

1. Sewer System Improvements $ 1,107,250.00
2. Streetscape Improvements $ 100,000.00
Design, Engineering and Contingency @ 15% * $ 181,087.50
GRAND TOTAL (Project Costs Only) ** $1,388,337.50

* allocated over entire scope of Improvements

** excludes: costs associated with the levying and collection of assessments for Improvements;
and costs of issuance, debt service reserves, and accrued interest on any limited general obligation
neighborhood improvement district bonds issued or to be issued in connection with the
Improvements.

Ordinance Ordering Assessment Roll, Public Hearing

109

#5.




City of Moberly AL N—
) . Department: Public Utilities
City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 6, 2020
Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute An Agreement For

Summary:

Recommended
Action:

Fund Name:

Account Number:

Professional Services With Kim Hoskins Environmental Consulting, LLC,
D/B/A KIMHEC

The Pretreatment Coordinator at the Wastewater Treatment Facility is retiring
this month. The work associate with this position has increased substantially
in the last year due to DNR and EPA reviews associated with the renewal of
our wastewater permit. The City will have to update our sewer user ordinance
and enforcement response plan, as well as the permits and permitting process
for industries that are required to have a pretreatment permit issued by the City
of Moberly. In order to assure that this work is completed according to
regulatory requirements and in a timely manner, staff reached out to Kim
Cole, who manages the pretreatment program for a number of communities
including the City of Hannibal. Her services will be utilized in assessing the
semi-annual reports submitted by industries in January, development of the
annual pretreatment report to DNR, as well as a review of pretreatment
permits that have been issued, recent inspections, the industrial user
questionnaire, and assistance with updating our ordinances. Her staff includes
a person with a juris doctorate who has worked with 6 communities and DNR
to facilitate the update to the ordinances. Until the City is able to hire a person
to fill this position, we do not have sufficient staff to cover these activities.

Approve this resolution
Wastewater Professional Services

301.114.5415

Available Budget $: 0
ATTACHMENTS: Roll Call Aye Nay
_____Memo ____ Council Minutes Mayor
__ Staff Report __ Proposed Ordinance M__ S__ Jeffrey _
__ Correspondence _X__ Proposed Resolution
____Bid Tabulation ___ Attorney’s Report Council Member
__ PI/IC Recommendation __ Petition M__ S Brubaker o
____P/C Minutes __X Contract M__ S___ Kimmons _
__ Application __ Budget Amendment M__ S__ Davis _
__ Citizen __ Legal Notice M__ S Kyser
__ Consultant Report Other Passed  Failed

110




BILL NO: RESOLUTION NO:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH KIM HOSKINS
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, LLC, D/B/A KIMHEC.

WHEREAS, the City is in need of assistance to assess semi-annual regulatory pre-
treatment reporting required by the EPA and DNR and to update city ordinances associated with
the City’s wastewater permit; and

WHEREAS, Kim Hoskins Environmental Consulting, LLC, d/b/a KimHEC provides
such services to municipalities and has proposed an Agreement for Professional Services for pre-
treatment program assistance, a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, city staff recommends retaining KimHEC for this purpose and authorizing
the City Manager to execute the attached Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby approves the
attached Agreement and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to execute the Agreement
on behalf of the City.

RESOLVED this 6th day of January 2020, by the Council of the City of Moberly,
Missouri.

#6.

Presiding Officer at Meeting

ATTEST:

City Clerk

111




DEFINITIONS

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

2019 KimHEC TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#6.

“Additional Services” - the services to be performed for or furnished to the Client by the Consultant in accordang

any mutually agreed upon written Amendment to the Agreement.

“Agreement” - the scope of services and responsibilities for each party of the Agreement; these terms and conditions
are hereby made a part of the Agreement and does not include previous or contemporaneous agreements,
representations, promises, or conditions pertaining to the Consultant’s services for this project and are hereby
superseded. The Agreement includes the terms and conditions herein, the Agreement, and any Amendments mutually
signed.

“Basic Services” - the services to be performed for or furnished to Client by Consultant in accordance with the
Agreement.

“Client” - the entity with which the Consultant has entered into this Agreement and for which the Consultant’s services
are to be performed.

“Consultant” - the person, firm or company performing the Basic Services.

“Designated Representatives” are the specific individual designated by each Party who shall act as a with respect to
the Services to be performed or furnished by the Consultant and the responsibilities of the Client under these Basic
Services. Such individuals shall have authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions
relative to the Basic Services or Additional Services on behalf of each respective party.

“Industry” - any industry, commercial facility, or manufacturing facility identified in the Agreement which may be integral
to the Services being performed for the Client. The Industry is not a party of the Agreement; however information
provided by the Industry may be integral to the Services being provided. The Services being performed may require
site visits to the Industry, information and data from the Industry, as well as additional information.

“Site” - the Client's Wastewater Treatment Plant, an Industry location, a Commercial location or other location of
interest in performing the Services associated with the Agreement herein.

COMPENSATION

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

Consultant shall prepare invoices in accordance with its standard invoicing practices and the terms of the Agreement.
Consultant shall submit its invoices to the Client on a monthly basis.

Invoices are due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt unless otherwise stipulated in the Agreement.
Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to Consultant and then to principal.

If Client fails to make any payment due Consultant for Services within 30 days after receipt of Consultant’s invoice,
then:

241. Amounts due Consultant will be increased at the rate of 1% per month (or the maximum rate of interest

permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day and

24.2. Consultant may, after given seven days written notice to Client, suspend services as defined herein until

Client has paid in full all amounts due for services and other related charges. Client waives any and all claims
against Consultant for any such suspension.

If any amount of an invoice is disputed then the Client shall inform the Consultant in writing of the grounds for such
dispute within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the invoice and shall pay to the Consultant the value of the invoice less the
disputed amount in accordance with these payment terms. Once settlement of the dispute has been agreed, any sum
then outstanding shall also be payable in accordance with these payment terms.

TIMETABLE

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The Consultant shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time. Specific periods of time for rendering services
or specific dates by which services are to be completed are provided in the Agreement.

If, through no fault of the Consultant, the periods of time or dates referenced in Section 3.1 are changed, or the orderly
and continuous progress of Consultant’s services is impaired, or Consultant’s services are delayed or suspended, then
the time for completion of Consultant’s services, and the rates and amounts of Consultant’'s compensation, shall be
adjusted equitably.

If Client authorizes changes in scope, extent, or character of the Basic Services, then the time for completion of
Consultant’'s Additional Services and the rates and amounts of Consultant's compensation, shall be adjusted
accordingly.

112




TERMS AND CONDITIONS, CONTINUED

3.4. The Client shall make decisions and carry out its other responsibilities herein in a timely manner so as not to del] #6.
Consultant’s performance of its Services.

TERMINATION

41. Services may be terminated by the Client or Consultant by seven (7) days written notice in the event of substantial
failure to perform in accordance with the terms hereof by the other party through no fault of the terminating party. If so
terminated, Client shall pay Consultant all amounts due for all services properly rendered and expenses incurred to the
date of receipt of notice of termination, plus reasonable costs incurred by the Consultant as a result of terminating the
Services.

4.2. Services may be terminated by the Client or Consultant for convenience by providing fifteen (15) days written notice. If

Client so terminates the Services, Consultant is entitled to all amounts due for all services properly performed plus
Consultant’s costs as a result of the termination for convenience. If Consultant terminates its Services for convenience,
it shall be paid for all Services performed as of the effective date of the termination.

DELIVERY USAGE OF THE SERVICES OR MATERIALS

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

54.

The majority of Services supplied by the Consultant is dispatched electronically by email and shall be deemed
delivered upon receipt of the email by the Client.

Once delivered to the Client, it is the Client’s responsibility to ensure the documents are transferred to the appropriate
regulatory agency or other intended recipient.

Documents submitted to State or Federal Agencies and approved shall not be altered by the Client following such
approval.

Client shall not make, or permit to be made, any modifications to any documents, including drawings and
specifications, furnished by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, without the prior written authorization of Consultant.

CONFIDENTIALITY

6.1.

Both parties shall maintain strict confidence and shall not disclose to any third party any information or material relating
to the other or the other’s business which comes into that party’s possession and shall not use such information and
material without written permission by the other party. This provision shall not, however, apply to information or material
which is, or becomes, public knowledge by means other than by breach of this clause by a party to this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND MUTUAL WAIVER

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

Indemnification by Consultant: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless
Client, and Client’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, consultants, and employees from reasonable claims,
costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to the Project, provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage
is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, including
the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Consultant or
Consultant’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or Consultants. This indemnification provision
is subject to and limited by Section 8.1 hereof.

Indemnification by Client: Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Consultant and its officers, directors, members,
partners, agents, employees, and Consultants as required by applicable Laws and Regulations.

Percentage Share of Negligence: To the fullest extent permitted by law, a party’s total liability to the other party and
anyone claiming by, through, or under the other party for any cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence
of the party and in part by the negligence of the other party or any other negligent entity or individual, shall not exceed
the percentage share that the party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of Client, Consultant, and all other
negligent entities and individuals.

Mutual Waiver: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Client and Consultant waive against each other, and the other’s
employees, officers, directors, members, agents, insurers, partners, and consultants, any and all claims for or
entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related
to the Services.

Page 2 OF 3
2019 KimHEC Terms and Conditions

113




10.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS, CONTINUED

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

8.1.

8.2.

#6.
In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project to both the Client and the Consultant, the risks havel

allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of the Consultant to the
Client for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or
causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs and expert witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of the
Consultant to the Client shall not exceed the general and professional liability insurance coverage defined in 8.2. Itis
intended that this limitation apply to any and all liability or cause of action unless prohibited by law.

Consultant will maintain general liability with not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $2,000,000 annual
aggregate limit and professional liability insurance with not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence with a $1,000,000
annual aggregate limit and will name the Client as an additional insured.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

9.1.

The Client and Consultant agree that all disputes between them arising out of the Consultant’s Services provided or
related to the Services in the Agreement, shall be submitted to non-binding mediation (unless the parties mutually
agree otherwise), thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute resolution between Client and
Consultant. Any such mediation shall take place in St. Louis, Missouri before a mediator of the parties choice.

GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

Standards of Care: The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished by
Consultant under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the subject profession
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality. Consultant makes no warranties,
express or implied under this agreement or otherwise in connection with Consultant’s services.

Consultant shall correct deficiencies in technical accuracy without additional compensation, unless such corrective
action is directly attributable to deficiencies in Client-furnished information.

The Basic Services defined herein may be amended, in writing, by mutual agreement between the Consultant and
Client. The Amendment may amend the scope (Additional Services), schedule, or compensation for the Services
associated with the Agreement.

Consultant and Client shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations

10.4.1. Prior to the Effective Date, Client provided to Consultant in writing any and all policies and procedures of

Client applicable to Consultant’s performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant shall comply with
such policies and procedures, subject to the standard of care set forth in Section 10.1, and to the extent
compliance is not inconsistent with professional practice requirements.

10.4.2. This Agreement is based on applicable Laws and Regulations and Client-provided written policies and

procedures as of the Effective Date. Changes after the Effective Date to these Laws and Regulations, or to
Client-provided written policies and procedures, may be the basis for modifications to Client’s responsibilities
or to Consultant’s scope of services, times of performance, or compensation.

10.4.3. Consultant shall not be required to sign any documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result in the

Consultant having to certify, guarantee, or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence the Consultant
cannot ascertain. Client agrees not to make resolution of any dispute with the Consultant or payment of any
amount due to the Consultant in any way contingent upon the Consultant signing any such documents.

10.4.4. Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Client or for the information provided to the

Client by the Industry or of any of its agents or employees or of any other persons (except Consultant’s own
agents, employees, and Consultants) or otherwise furnishing or providing information, other than those made
by Consultant.

10.4.5. While at the Site, Consultant’'s employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable

requirements of the Site’s and Client’s safety programs of which Consultant has been informed in writing.

Page 3 OF 3
2019 KimHEC Terms and Conditions

114




P &
KIMHEC

ENV

RONMENTAL CONSULTING

Agreement for Professional Services

This is an agreement effective as of

[Client to Enter Effective Date in Line Above]

between The City of Moberly (herein after called “Client”) and Kim Hoskins Environmental
Consulting, LLC, d/b/a KimHEC (herein after called “Consultant”). Client's Project, of

which Consultant’s services under this Agreement are part, is generally defined as follows:
Pretreatment Program Assistance. Consultant’s services under this Agreement are

generally defined as providing assistance in implementing the City’'s Pretreatment
Program.

Section A, Basic Services

Specifically, the Consultant agrees to perform duties related to assisting in the
implementation of the Client’s Pretreatment Program including:

a.

b.

Develop a schedule and plan to correct the deficiencies documented in the
December 2019 Pretreatment Inspection performed by MDNR.

Assist in compliance determinations, enforcement actions, and annual
pretfreatment report based on the MDNR inspection report and a review of records
for the 2019 reporting periods.

Assist in Program Updates including an updated Sewer Use Ordinance and
Enforcement Response Plan which incorporates the local limits (local limit
calculations shall performed by others and peer-reviewed by the Consultant).

Pretreatment Program Assistance may also include (with appropriate authorization) the
following tasks including but not limited to:

a.
o.

"o 00

@

Perform and document annual inspections including follow-up required

Review and update of pretreatment components as necessary (e.g., hexavalent
chromium local limit, copper local limit, and ERP plan)

Form Development (permits, inspection forms, fact sheet, application)
Legal Authority Updates and/or ERP Revisions
Perform Inspections - including preparation, inspection, and summary

Permit Issuance - including application review, fact sheet, permit, self-monitoring
report templates

Monitoring Report Reviews

Violation Assistance

#6.

Page 1 0F 3
2019 KimHEC Moberly Miss =lcatreatment Program Assistance

115




P &
KIMHEC

ENVIRO

NMENTAL CONSULTING

Sample Plan Development
Data Evaluation and Tracking (industry, WWTP, and/or biosolids)
Training for the Client’s staff and/or industries

Assistance during regulatory inspections

m. Dental Rule implementation

Section B, Client’s Responsibilities:

a.

Provide copies of relevant historical reports, analytical results, and inspections related
to the industries.

Provide the labor and analytical fees associated with any and all analytical work
(influent, effluent, industry, biosolids) associated with this Project.

Client is responsible for printing, postage, and mailing of all hard copy
communications (Industrial Waste Surveys, communications, reports, etc.) as
applicable.

. Client shall assist the Consultant during all site visits and in getting the information

necessary to appropriately implement the Pretreatment Program such as permit
applications and industrial inspection reports.

Section C, Schedule for Rendering Services:

Upon this agreement becoming effective, Consultant is authorized to begin services as
set forth in Section A, Basic Services, and shall continue to render services until the fime
for rendering services is complete, unftil the corresponding tasks are complete, or until
the not-to-exceed amount has been billed or otherwise authorized for additional work.

Section D, Payments to Consultant
Client shall pay Consultant for services rendered under this Agreement as follows:

(o}
o.

A not-to-exceed amount of $30,000.

Each invoice amount shall include a description of tasks performed and associated
labor hours for the Consulting Services defined herein.

The hourly rate for tasks performed will be billed at $150 per hour or at a reduced
rate depending on the task.

If Services beyond the allocated not-to-exceed amount set forth in this Section is
required, the Client shall authorize any such work via e-mail or other written
documentation. Consultant will be paid at an hourly rate of $150 per hour for any
such Services related to the management of the City’'s Pretreatment Program or
permitting process or other associated tasks beyond the allocated budget herein.

#6.

Page 2 OF 3
2019 KimHEC Moberly Miss =lcatreatment Program Assistance

116




KIMHEC

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING

Section E, Total Agreement

This Agreement with the Terms and Conditions attached and Addendum noted above
constitutes the entire Agreement between Client and Consultant and supersedes all prior
written or oral understandings. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented,
modified, or cancelled by a duly executed written instrument.

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of
which is indicated on page 1.

Client Acceptance: Consultant Agreement:
Signature SIQHOQH’G

Kim Cole, P.E., Principal

Printed Name, Title Printed Name, Title

5326 Southwest Avenue

Address Address

St. Louis, Missouri 63139

City, State, Zip City, State, Zip

December 10, 2019

Date of Acceptance Date of Agreement
Address for Giving Notices: Address for Giving Notices:
Kim Cole, P.E.
KimHEC

123 Oak Tree Drive
St. Louis, MO 63119

Designated Representative: Designated Representative:
Name: Name: Kim Cole, P.E.
Title: Title: Principal
Phone: Phone: 314-276-9575
Email: Email: kim.cole@kimhec.com
Page 3 oF 3
2019 KimHEC Moberly Misg eatment Program Assistance

117




City of Moberly Agenda Number: #7,

City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 7, 2020

Department: Parks and Rec.

Agenda Item:

A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager Of The City Of Moberly,
Missouri To Execute A Fireworks Display Agreement With J & M Displays,
Inc.

Summary: The City has had a positive ongoing relationship with J&M Displays for
many years. J&M is a very professional and safe company which is
responsible for most of the larger shows in Missouri. Given the size and scale
of the show, the professionalism and technical experience required, the
potential safety risks given the mass crowd and adjacent forests, and the fact
that J&M Displays provides bonus product given the size of the show and
early order, staff recommends continuing with J&M Displays in 2020. We are
also receiving a credit for a series that did not go off last year due to the rain
the morning of the event. The contract is attached for a $20,000 show after
discounts and bonus product ($25,283.50 value). Please see the attached
agreement and proposal.  Also note the $10,000,000 insurance carried by
J&M Displays. The City of Moberly will, as in past years, be listed as an
additional insured.  $15,000 was budgeted in the current year budget under
the MPRD Recreation fund (Remaining balance $17,100). The remaining
$5,000 was budgeted for in the General Fund (100.013.5406. Remaining
balance $104,331.60).

Recommended
Action: Approve this resolution
Fund Name: N/A
Account Number: N/A
Available Budget $: N/A
ATTACHMENTS: Roll Call Aye Nay
___Memo ___ Council Minutes Mayor
__ Staff Report __ Proposed Ordinance M__ S__ Jeffrey -
__x Correspondence _X_Proposed Resolution
____Bid Tabulation ___ Attorney’s Report Council Member
__ PI/IC Recommendation __ Petition M__ S Brubaker o
____P/C Minutes ____ Contract M__ S Kimmons _
___ Application __ Budget Amendment M__ S Davis _
____ Citizen __ Legal Notice M__ S Kyser
__ Consultant Report Other Passed  Faled

118




BILL NO: RESOLUTION NO:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF
MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO EXECUTE A FIREWORKS DISPLAY AGREEMENT
WITH J & M DISPLAYS, INC.

WHEREAS, the City of Moberly, Missouri is desirous of providing a public firework
display as part of the community July 4" celebration, and

WHEREAS, J & M Displays, Inc. is a proven and reliable provider of fireworks displays
and has successfully provided the City of Moberly with firework displays in the past, and

WHEREAS, J & M Displays, Inc. has offered to furnish a firework display on July 4,
2020, for a total cost of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) as provided in a certain
Fireworks Display Agreement to be executed by the parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Moberly agrees to the terms of the Fireworks Display
Agreement presented by J & M Displays, Inc. and hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute
said Agreement on behalf of the City of Moberly.

RESOLVED this 6th day of January, 2020, by the Council of the City of Moberly,
Missouri.

#7.

Presiding Officer at Meeting

ATTEST:

City Clerk

119




#7.

FIREWORKS DISPLAY AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of , 20 , by
and between J & M Displays, Inc., an lowa corporation, having its principal place of business at Yarmouth, lowa,
hereinafter referred to as “Seller”, and , hereinafter referred to as
“Buyer”.

Seller shall furnish to Buyer one (1) fireworks display, as per the $ program submitted and
accepted by the Buyer, and which by reference is made a part hereof as Exhibit "A". The display is to take place on the
evening of , 20 at approximately : pm, weather permitting.

IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS:
1. Firing of Display (check one of the below options):

Seller agrees to furnish all necessary fireworks display material and personnel for a fireworks display in
accordance with the program approved by the parties. Seller agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal guidelines
pertaining to the storing and displaying of fireworks.

Buyer waives the services of Seller’'s technician. Buyer is a municipality or has a valid permit from the Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms & Explosives and will be firing the display. If Buyer shoots the display, proof of liability
insurance is required as stated in paragraph number five (5), proof of auto insurance (if pyrotechnics will be transported),
and proof of worker's compensation insurance coverage is required. Buyer agrees to comply with all local, state, and
federal guidelines pertaining to the storing and displaying of fireworks.

2. Payment. The Buyer shall pay to the Seller (check one of the below options):

the sum of $ as a down payment upon execution of this Agreement. The balance of
$ shall be due and payable in full within fifteen (15) days after the date of the fireworks display. A
service charge of one and one-half percent (1 %2%) per month shall be added to the unpaid balance if the account is not
paid in full within fifteen (15) days from the date of the show. If this account remains unpaid and is turned over to a
collection agency for non-payment, all fees incurred in collecting the balance will be at the Buyer’'s expense. All returned
checks will be assessed a $30.00 fee.

$ in full by (70 days prior to the event date).
The Buyer will receive the 8% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display.

$ in full by (30 days prior to event date).
The Buyer will receive the 5% prepayment bonus product in this fireworks display.

3. Weather Delay/Cancellation. Buyers intending to postpone a display due to inclement weather should contact
J&M Displays as soon as possible to keep postponement fees to a minimum.

The following postponement fees are applicable only if the display is re-scheduled in the same calendar year.

o Displays postponed prior to being picked up at the magazine for delivery incur no postponement fee unless there
are new costs associated with permit changes or display set-up has occurred prior to product delivery.

o Displays postponed after they are in transit to the shoot site will be charged the full delivery fee.

« Displays postponed after set-up by the shoot team will be charged delivery fee and 1.5 times the shoot fee for hand-
fired displays and double the shoot fee for E-fired displays.

o Display set-ups that are allowed to remain on site overnight after a postponement to the following day will incur a fee
of eight-percent (8%) of the total display budget. This will cover 24-hour security watch of fireworks and additional
labor hours of shoot crew.

Displays cancelled and NOT re-scheduled within the same calendar year will be charged thirty-percent (30%) of the total
display budget. This fee will cover all labor associated with order processing, packing & shipping, display set-up if applicable
and re-stocking fees.

** Displays cancelled due to circumstances beyond custor trol, such as burn bans or other bans issued by the AHJ
will be considered on a case by case basis. 120
J & M Displays, Inc. 1




#7

4. Rain Date. Should inclement weather prevent the firing of the display on the date mentioned herege
parties agree to a mutually convenient rain date of or another date as agreed to by both
parties. Once display set-up has begun, the determination to cancel the fireworks display because of inclement weather
or unsafe weather conditions shall rest within the sole discretion of the AHJ, Seller, and the lead pyrotechnician.

5. Insurance. (Check one of the below options):

Seller agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage, in an amount not less than
$10,000,000, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks display, shall submit to the Buyer, if requested in
writing, a certificate of insurance. All entities listed on the certificate of insurance will be deemed an additional insured. In
the event of a claim by Buyer, the applicable deductible shall be paid by the Seller.

The Seller agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and its agents, and employees from and
against all claims, costs, judgments, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees that may or shall arise
from the performance of the fireworks by the Buyer. The Buyer agrees to give the Seller prompt notice of any claims or
demands and to cooperate with the Seller or its successors in interest or assigns, if any, in the defense of any such
claims and/or demands.

Buyer agrees to provide, at its expense, general liability insurance coverage with a rating by AM Best of A VIII or
higher, in an amount not less than $5,000,000, and within two (2) weeks prior to the date of the fireworks display,
shall submit to the Seller a certificate of insurance. All entities listed on the certificate of insurance will be deemed an
additional insured. Any charge incurred from the insurance provider for additional insurance after insurance application
has been sent in, shall be the responsibility of the Buyer. In the event of a claim by Seller, the applicable deductible shall
be paid by the Buyer.

The Buyer agrees to hold the Seller harmless and defend Seller from any and all claims brought against the
Seller by employees or sponsors of the Buyer for any and all acts of the Buyer relating to the event for which the
fireworks is performed.

6. Buyer agrees to provide:

(a) sufficient area for the display, including a minimum spectator set back as determined by Seller.

(b) protection of the display area by roping off or similar facility.

(c) adequate police protection to prevent spectators from entering display area.

(d) dry, clean sand, if needed, for firing.

(e) inspection and cleanup of fireworks debris in the fallout zone of the shoot site at first light the morning
following the display for anything that may have been missed at the night search.

(f) necessary local permits.

7. No representation of affirmation of fact, including but not limited to statement regarding capacity, suitability for
use, or performance of equipment or products shall be, or deemed to be a warranty by the Seller for any purpose, nor
give rise to any liability or obligation of the Seller whatsoever, except for acts of Seller’'s negligence as above stated.

8. It is further understood and agreed that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted to mean a
partnership. Both parties hereto being responsible for their separate and individual debts and obligations, and neither
party shall be responsible for any agreements not stipulated in this Agreement.

9. The parties hereto do mutually and severally guarantee terms, conditions, and payments of this Agreement.
This document shall be binding upon the parties, themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year first above written.

BY: BY:
J & M Displays, Inc.
SELLER BUYER

Please include the DISPLAY INFORMATION form with this Agreement so your order is processed accurately.
121

J & M Displays, Inc. 2




- \\/ ‘-\\V/’ ‘;Q/“'
w7 ‘\\\\ﬂm N%\ . #7.
$20,000
Flight 1
3 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Green peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Lemon Peony lemon tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Orange peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Peony with brocade ring assorted Brocade tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Pink Peony pink tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Purple peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Red peony $11.70 $23.40
2 White peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Blue peony $22.30 $44.60
Category Shell Count: 18 $231.80
Section Shell Count: 18
Main Event
Multi-shell Barrage Units
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Small finale 100 shot $298.60 $597.20
Category Shell Count: 200 $597.20
Ignition Items
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
460 Igniter 3 meter leads $1.95 $897.00
38 Igniter 4 meter leads $2.20 $83.60
Category Shell Count: 0 $980.60
3 Inch Salutes
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
10 Silver sparked salute with silver tail silver tail $10.85 $108.50
Category Shell Count: 10 $108.50
3 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Green, orange, and purple peony Gold tail $11.70 $23.40
2 Red white and blue peony $11.70 $23.40
2 Red ring pattern $11.70 $23.40
2 Silver Spike $11.70 $23.40
2 White ring pattern $11.70 $23.40
2 Glittering willow glitter tail $22.30 $44.60
2 Assortment C of 20 (5 report& 15 color) shells ELECTRIC FIRE $229.00 $458.00
2 Assortment F of 20 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $230.00 $460.00
1 Assortment M of 20 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $230.00 $230.00
1 Assortment S of 10 pairs (20 shells) of J&M Brand shells (Low fallout) mixed tails $230.00 $230.00
1 Assortment Y of 10 pairs of 3" J&M shells ELECTRIC FIRE (Low fallout) $230.00 $230.00
Category Shell Count: 152 $1,769.60

1-800-648-3890

Proposal #: 7190 Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45 Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019 Page: 1 of 6

18064 170th Avenue th, lowa 52660-9772

Fax: 1-319-394-3265

* main@jandmdisplays.com

e www.jandmdisplays.com



A
‘.r, I// ‘\\\\ﬂm N%\ . #7.

m |
) J&M Displays Proposal for:
mvs Moberl

y Parks & Recreation Department
$20,000

Main Event
3 Inch Special Effect Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
4 Red and Blue ELECTRIC FIRE ONLY (cylinder) $30.65 $122.60
Category Shell Count: 4 $122.60
4 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Wave to variegated Silver tail $22.30 $44.60
2 Purple to dark to Green $37.70 $75.40
2 Red Coco Crossette red tail $37.70 $75.40
2 Red green and blue moving stars $37.70 $75.40
2 Six angle chrysanthemum Gold tail $37.70 $75.40
2 Assortment J of 20 different J&M Brand shells (LOW FALLOUT) $420.00 $840.00
2 Assortment L of 20 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $420.00 $840.00
2 Assortment V of 20 different Patriotic J&M Brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $420.00 $840.00
Category Shell Count: 130 $2,866.20
4 Inch Special Effect shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Glittering silver to magenta to green strobe chrys $47.35 $94.70
2 Kamuro chrys niagara fall $47.35 $94.70
Category Shell Count: 4 $189.40
5 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
1 Assortment A of 15 Patriotic J&M shells ELECTRIC FIRE $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment H of 15 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment J of 15 different shells (ELECTRIC FIRE ONLY) mixed tails $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment N of 15 different J&M Brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE $540.00 $540.00
1 Assortment P of 10 Special J&M Brand pattern shells ELECTRIC FIRE $600.00 $600.00
Category Shell Count: 70 $2,760.00
5 Inch Special Effect Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
1 Golden wave to red to blue chrys $72.35 $72.35
1 Red crackling double hearts $72.35 $72.35
Category Shell Count: 2 $144.70

Proposal #: 7190 Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45 Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019 Page: 2 of 6

18064 170th Avenue th, lowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890 < Fax: 1-319-394-3265 ¢ main@jandmdisplays.com ¢ www.jandmdisplays.com



- \\/ ‘-\\V/’ ‘;Q/“'
w7 ‘\\\\ﬁm N%‘, . #7.
$20,000
Main Event
6 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
1 Aqua chrys with gold willow to white strobe ring with delayed crackle pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Blue dahlia w/crackling pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Blue spiderweb with red strobe pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Brocade ring with glitter pistil with double crackle rising flowers $86.80 $86.80
1 Chrysanthemum to time rain with time rain and coconut pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Green strobe willow $86.80 $86.80
1 Green willow $86.80 $86.80
1 Magenta sky blue and lemon dahlia with white glitter pistil $86.80 $86.80
1 Red crossette $86.80 $86.80
1 Assortment A of 9 different Patriotic shells ELECTRIC FIRE $530.00 $530.00
1 Assortment C of 9 different J&M brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $530.00 $530.00
1 Assortment P of 9 different J&M brand shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $530.00 $530.00
1 Assortment W of 9 different J&M Brand Shells ELECTRIC FIRE mixed tails $530.00 $530.00
Category Shell Count: 45 $2,901.20
Section Shell Count: 617
Finales
3 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
12 Color 10 Shot finale chain silver tail $139.80 $1,677.60
1 Report and palm 10 Shot finale chain $139.80 $139.80
Category Shell Count: 130 $1,817.40
4 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
3 Red white and blue dahlia 8 shot finale chain mixed tails $221.15 $663.45
5 Red white and blue peony 8 shot finale chain mixed tails $221.15 $1,105.75
Category Shell Count: 64 $1,769.20
Section Shell Count: 194
8% Free for Early Payment

Multi-shell Barrage Units
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Variety color 50 shot $166.40 $332.80
2 100 CAKE - Gold tail to gold crown $298.60 $597.20
Category Shell Count: 300 $930.00
3 Inch Color Shells
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Brocade crown with silver strobing pistil $22.30 $44.60
2 Glittering willow waterfall glitter tail $22.30 $44.60
Category Shell Count: 4 $1,019.20

Proposal #: 7190 Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45 Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019 Page: 3 of 6

1-800-648-3890 < Fax: 1-319-394-3265 ¢ main@jandmdisplays.com

18064 170th Avenue th, lowa 52660-9772

e www.jandmdisplays.com



#7.

J&M Displays Proposal for:

Moberly Parks & Recreation Department
$20,000

8% Free for Early Payment

3 Inch Special Effect Shells

Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Gold Strobe Large Brocade tail $30.65 $61.30

2 White strobe $30.65 $61.30
Category Shell Count: 4 $1,141.80

5 Inch Special Effect Shells

Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
1 Twitter glitter to purple butterfly with green eyes $72.35 $72.35
Category Shell Count: 1 $1,214.15

Section Shell Count: 309
15% Free for Multiple Year Agreement

Multi-shell Barrage Units

Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Silver tails to Red and silver strobe and blue 100 shot $166.40 $332.80
2 Super crown with blue stars with mines 49 shot $166.40 $332.80

2 8 X 5 Fan Shaped Golden crossette and red mines $216.80 $433.60
2 8 X 5 Fan Shaped Green strobe and brocade mines $216.80 $433.60
Category Shell Count: 394 $1,532.80

4 Inch Color Shells

Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Rainbow crossette $37.70 $75.40

2 Tracer assorted $37.70 $75.40
Category Shell Count: 4 $1,683.60

4 Inch Special Effect shells

Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Lemon strobe $47.35 $94.70
Category Shell Count: 2 $1,778.30

5 Inch Color Shells

Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

1 Twitter glitter to red to blue with red strobe pistil $61.40 $61.40

1 Two times scattering with crackling pistil $61.40 $61.40
Category Shell Count: 2 $1,901.10

6 Inch Special Effect Shells

Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total

2 Aqua to crackling ghost peony $119.70 $239.40

1 Blue to red to crackling ghost peony $119.70 $119.70
Category Shell Count: 3 $2,260.20

Section Shell Count: 405

Proposal #: 7190 Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45 Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019 Page: 4 of 6

18064 170th Avenue th, lowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890 < Fax: 1-319-394-3265 ¢ main@jandmdisplays.com ¢ www.jandmdisplays.com



;;\;\\';/ ?}\a NV
3 RETIN 2
f&f’(f/r\\\\ S .
T va ! J&M Displays Proposal for:
s s Moberly Parks & Recreation Department
$20,000
Free for Customer Satisfaction
3 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
2 Report and palm 10 Shot finale chain $139.80 $279.60
Category Shell Count: 20 $279.60
4 Inch Finales
Quantity Name Rising Effect Price Total
1 Red white and blue peony 8 shot finale chain mixed tails $221.15 $221.15
Category Shell Count: 8 $500.75

Section Shell Count: 28

Proposal #: 7190 Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45 Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019 Page: 5 of 6

18064 170th Avenue th, lowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890 e Fax:1-319-394-3265 o

main@jandmdisplays.com

e www.jandmdisplays.com



#7.

J&M Displays Proposal for:

y Parks & Recreation Department
$20,000

This proposal includes an extension of our $10,000,000.00 spectator liability insurance, and workers compensation on our shoot team.

Fireworks Price:  $16,258.40 Total Shot Count: 1571
Discount:  $1,308.40 Packing Check: 647
Subtotal Fireworks: ~ $14,950.00 Date of Display: 07/04/20
Sales Tax: Customer Number:

Local Sales Tax:

Insurance Processing:  $2,000.00 Summary of Free Items Added to Your Show
License and Permit:  $50.00 See Previous Pages for a Listing of Free Items
Shoot Fee:  $2,200.00 Free Items are Based on the $14,950.00 Fireworks Subtotal

Delivery:  $800.00
Musical Firing:
Shoot Cost:

$1,214.15 8% Free for Early Payment
$2,260.20 15% Free for Multiple Year Agreement
$500.75 Free for Customer Satisfaction

Barge/Pontoon Fee:
g $3,975.10 Total Free

Total Price of Show:  $20,000.00
Total Value of Show is $25,283.50. Your Price is $20,000.00

Please Note the Following Comments:

The data in this proposal is confidential, and is to be accorded confidential treatment and shall not be disclosed other than to the official representative of the organization listed on the cover, and only then when in
the evaluation of this proposal. Any reproduction of the contents of this proposal, whether in whole or in part, is expressly forbidden. J&M Displays, Inc. requests that all information be safeguarded from release
pursuant to any request under the Freedom of Information Law of this state or any other state or jurisdiction; as it may cause competitive disadvantage to our company. The enclosed concepts and materials are the
sole and exclusive property of J&M Displays, Inc. We reserve the right to make substitutions of equal or greater value. Prices and specifications are subject to change without notice. For choreographed displays the
quantity and sizes of product may change based on the music selected; however, the dollar value of the product will remain the same.

Proposal #: 7190 Designed on: 2019-11-21 15:44:45 Printed on: Fri Nov 22 11:37:15 2019 Page: 6 of 6

18064 170th Avenue th, lowa 52660-9772
1-800-648-3890 < Fax: 1-319-394-3265 ¢ main@jandmdisplays.com ¢ www.jandmdisplays.com



City of Moberly Agenda Number: 48,
Department: City Manager

City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 6, 2020

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Letter Agreement
With Howe Company, LLC For Platting Of The Moberly Industrial Park.

Summary: This agreement will provide plating for the Moberly Industrial Park

Recommended
Action: Approve this resolution

Fund Name: N/A
Account Number: N/A

Available Budget $: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Roll Call Aye Nay

__Memo __ Council Minutes Mayor

__ Staff Report __ Proposed Ordinance M___ S Jeffrey _
__x Correspondence _X_Proposed Resolution

____Bid Tabulation __ Attorney’s Report Council Member

_____P/IC Recommendation ___ Petition M___ S Brubaker _
____P/C Minutes ____ Contract M__ S Kimmons _
___ Application __ Budget Amendment M__ S Davis _
____ Citizen __ Legal Notice M__ S Kyser

__ Consultant Report x_Other Passed  Failed

128




BILL NO: RESOLUTION NO:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALETTER
AGREEMENT WITH HOWE COMPANY, LLC FOR PLATTING OF THE MOBERLY
INDUSTRIAL PARK.

WHEREAS, the City Manager has determined that special conditions exist which
necessitate an exception to the selection of professional services procedure set forth in Sec. 2-
436 of the City Code; and

WHEREAS, City staff have identified Howe Company, LLC as a professional survey
firm which is proficient in providing platting services; and

WHEREAS, attached hereto is a proposed Letter Agreement for execution by the City
Manager for services detailed therein at a cost of $29,000.00 plus expenses.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby approves the
attached Agreement and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to execute the Agreement
on behalf of the City.

RESOLVED this 6 day of January 2020, by the Council of the City of Moberly,
Missouri.

#8.

Presiding Officer at Meeting

ATTEST:

City Clerk

129




_/,//’
( 2 @H owe Civil & Structural Engineers #8.
i

Ompa ny LLC www.howecompany.com

December 13, 2019

Brian Crane, City Manager
City of Moberly

101 West Reed Street
Moberly, MO 65270

Re:  Moberly Industrial Park Subdivision
Agreement for Professional Services

Dear Mr. Crane,

Thank you for considering Howe Company (HoweCo) to provide professional services in
conjunction with the preparation of a subdivision plat and detention pond design for the Moberly
Industrial Park, hereafter called the “Project”. A detailed description of our proposed services on
the project is provided in the attached Basic Services Summary.

Our compensation for completing the services listed in the Basic Services Summary will be a
lump sum fee of $29,000.00, which includes the cost of reimbursable expenses for HoweCo
vehicle mileage and internal copies. Reimbursable expenses (out-of-pocket expenses such as
external copies and printing, delivery charges, filing fees, or application fees, etc.) are extra and
will be invoiced at actual cost, plus ten percent (10%) to cover administrative overhead.

You will be invoiced monthly, based on the project progress that has occurred. All invoices are
due and payable on receipt and will be considered past due if payment is not received within 21
days. Once project invoices are past due, an interest charge will accrue to your account at the
rate of one-and-one-half percent (14%) per month, and we will retain the right to cease work on
the project until satisfactory arrangements are made to settle the account.

We expect to begin our services promptly, after receipt of your acceptance of this proposal, and
complete our work, with all due diligence and in a timely manner. If there are protracted delays,
for any reason, we will notify you immediately. You agree to provide all necessary information
for the performance of our services within a reasonable time after it is requested and that
HoweCo will be given timely access to the project site, as necessary, to complete the proposed
professional services.

130

804 E Patton Street *  Macon, Missouri 63552 %  Phone: 660-395-HOWE (4693) =*  Fax: 660-395-4694



Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberly o H

December 13, 2019 K@ owe
Page 2 | ompanywc

The following individuals are designated as primary project representatives for City of Moberly
and HoweCo. These individuals shall be the primary point of contact and shall receive all
correspondence or notices.

Howe Company, LL.C City of Moberly

Shannon J. Howe, P.E., S.E. Brian Crane

804 E. Patton Street 101 West Reed Street

Macon, Missouri 63552 Moberly, MO 65270

Phone: 660-395-4693 Phone: 660-269-8705

Fax: 660-395-4694 Fax: 660-269-8171

E-mail: shannon@howecompany.com E-mail: berane@cityofmoberly.com

This letter agreement, along with the attached Basic Services Summary and Terms and
Conditions (3 pages), represent the entire understanding between us in respect to this project.
The Terms and Conditions detail many provisions affecting this agreement, including some
which limit HoweCo’s liability regarding the project. The Terms and Conditions should be read
and understood before entering into this agreement. If these documents satisfactorily set forth
your understanding of our agreement, please sign the enclosed copy of this letter agreement in
the space provided below and return it to us. This proposal is open for 60 calendar days from the
date on the cover page.

We appreciate this opportunity to provide you this proposal for our services and look forward to
working with you on this project. If questions should arise after you review this proposal, please
call the number listed above.

HOWE COMPANY, LLC

By: X "‘v/ By:

Shannon J. Howe, P’E’, S.E. (Name & Title of Additional Contact)

City of Moberly

By: Accepted Date:
Brian Crane

Title: City Manager

131

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberly = H

December 13, 2019 (@ owe
Page 3 ! ompanyuwwc

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The following understanding serves as the basis for the development of the Scope of Services
and Fees;
o The City of Moberly desires to subdivide the rest of the Industrial Park and
provide a detention pond to receive stormwater from future development.

BASIC SERVICES SUMMARY

Attached to and made a part of the Agreement for Professional Services dated December 13,
2019, by and between City of Moberly and Howe Company, LLC, (HoweCo) in respect to the
preparation of a subdivision plat and detention pond design for the Moberly Industrial Park, the
“Project” described therein.

SCOPE OF BASIC SERVICES

For the compensation outlined in the Agreement, Howe Company, LLC will perform the
following professional services. Services not detailed within the Scope of Basic Services are
specifically excluded from the scope of HoweCo’s work and HoweCo assumes no responsibility
to perform any services not specifically listed.

HoweCo will:

1) Meet with City of Moberly to discuss the generally plan view layout of the proposed
lots, streets and centralized stormwater management plan that would accommodate
future utility and storm sewer improvements at the Moberly Industrial Park, see
attached Exhibit “A”. The existing MFA facility and the proposed Emerald 40-acre
project area is excluded, except the property lines we be shown including name of
owner.

2) Meet with City of Moberly to review the preliminary plat of the proposed lots, streets and
centralized stormwater management plan, including the following.

e Locate existing property boundary pins

e Verify utility information provided by the City of Moberly

e Provide plan and profile of proposed streets for review to accommodate future
utility and storm sewer improvements.

e Review the design parameters to convert the existing pond structure located west
of the MFA Facility to a detention pond, see location in Exhibit “A”.

e Review the location of the future detention pond to be potentially located
downstream of the existing pond structure. Provide a plan view and two
cross-sections of the existing ground for the proposed detention pond.

132

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

Page 4

City of Moberl —2
Dletgeﬁuberolg,réyow KNHOWE

Companyu.c

3) Design to convert the existing pond structure to a detention pond, including the
following:

Provide a topographic survey of the existing pond structure including the pond
area under the water surface.

Provide a detention pond design that will meet the City of Moberly’s “Post
Construction Stormwater Manuel”

Detention pond to serve the current drainage area, MFA Facility and the proposed
Emerald Project. Design to include an option to provide stormwater detention of
the proposed drainage fully developed as an industrial park, using a hydrologic
soil group “C” and curve number 91 for urban districts-Industrial.

Design to make an attempt to try to utilize the existing discharge structure in the
existing pond which consists of a 24” riser, 18” barrel and stop gate valve at the
outfall.

Provide a drainage easement from the location where the drainageway crosses the
west property line of the MFA Facility to the detention pond

Review design calculations with the City of Moberly.

Provide final report of design calculations and construction plans for the detention
pond.

4) Provide final plat to include the following:

Scale and size of plat, one inch to 100 feet or larger, on 24 by 36 inch sheets. If
more than one sheet is required to cover the entire development, an index map of
the same dimensions shall be filed showing the entire development at a smaller
scale.

The proposed name of the subdivision.

Location of the proposed subdivision in relation to section, township, range,
county and state; and a legal description of the boundary with acreage of the
proposed subdivision. Final plat to meet current Minimum Standards for Property
Boundary Surveys.

The location of existing monuments to be shown and described on the final plat.
The location of lots, streets, public highways, alleys, parks and other features,
with accurate dimensions in feet and decimals of feet with the length of radii on
all curves, and other information necessary to reproduce the plat on the ground.
Lots shall be numbered clearly.

The locations, widths and names of proposed streets.

All building setback lines with dimensions.

The location of floodplain located within the final plat. Statement regarding
compliance with the city's adopted floodplain regulations.

Name, signature and seal of the licensed land surveyor preparing the plat.

Date of preparation and north point.

Statement dedicating easements, streets, alleys, and all other public areas not
previously dedicated.

Provide 5 original signatures of final plat

133

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberly gar / H

December 13, 2019 /@1 owe
Page 5 | ompanywe

e Record final plat

1) The following to be provided by the City of Moberly.

e City of Moberly to provide AutoCAD file with surface of existing contours and existing
improvements that includes adjacent roads and utilities information (sanitary sewer,
water, electric, gas, phone), except as noted for detention pond design

e City of Moberly to provide for any applicable permit fees

e City of Moberly to provide current deeds and boundary surveys of properties.

134

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberl —2
Dgc}:le?nberowe,rZyOlQ ( mHOWG

Page 6 Companyuc

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

If agreed to by the client and HoweCo, we will provide Additional Services related to the
Project. Additional Services are those not included as part of the Basic Scope of Services and
shall be paid for by the Client in addition to payment for Basic Services, in accordance with
HoweCo’s prevailing fee schedule, in effect at the time that such services are rendered, or as
otherwise agreed to by the client and HoweCo.

The following services are excluded from the Scope of Basic Services but may be added to the
contract by a change order for additional fees;

° Design and preparation of construction documents for utilities & stormwater
facilities beyond the detention pond.

135

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberly < H

December 13, 2019 (} ‘“ owe
Page 7 L Companyuc
EXCLUDED SERVICES

The following services are not included in the scope of services and are specifically excluded
from the Scope of Services. If these services are required, then a supplemental agreement is

required to add the scope and additional fee:

1) Sketch plan, Preliminary and final plat to meet the City of Moberly
Chapter 38 — Subdivision requirements.

2) Design of streets and all utilities (sanitary sewer, watermain, lift station, storm sewer, lighting,
electrical and gas).

3) Boundary and topographic survey(s), except as noted for detention pond design
4) Storm water management, inspections, maintenance and installation.

5) Testing of compaction & moisture for embankment, base, and pavement during earthwork for
pavement subgrade.

6) Permit fees

7) Studies, delineations, evaluations, of potential wetlands in the project area.

8) The design, development, coordination of wetland mitigation plans, reports, etc.

136

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberl 7
Dletc}:,e(r)nberol 3er 3019 n\ H OWE
Page 8 Companyuc

STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

Item 1. Scope of Work. Howe Company (HoweCo) shall perform services in accordance with an "agreement" made with
the "client". The agreement consists of HoweCo proposal, Hourly Rate Schedule, and these Terms & Conditions. The
"client” is defined as the person or entity requesting and/or authorizing the work, and in doing so, client represents and
warrants that he is duly authorized in this role, even if performed on behalf of another party or entity, in which case the
other party or entity is also considered as the client. The acceptance of HoweCo proposal signifies the acceptance of the
terms of this agreement.

The fees for services rendered will be billed in accordance with the accompanying Hourly Rate Schedule. Unit rates for
services not covered in the fee schedule or elsewhere in the a?reement can be provided. The standard prices proposed
for the work are predicated upon the client’s acceptance of the conditions and allocations of risks and obligations
described in the agreement. The client shall impart the terms of this agreement to any third party to whom the client
releases any part of work.

HoweCo shall have no obligations to any party other than those expressed by agreement.

Item 2. Site Access/Background Data. The client will provide for the right-of-way access to the work site. Inthe event
the work site is not owned by the client, client represents to HoweCo that all necessary permissions for HoweCo to enter
the site and conduct the work have been obtained. While HoweCo shall exercise reasonable care to minimize damage to
the property, the client understands that some damage may occur during the normal course of the work, that HoweCo has
not included in its fee the cost of restoration of damage, and that the client will pay for such restoration costs. Client shall
provide the appropriate land title and/or background information to HoweCo required for the performance of our work.
HoweCo will not be required to perform an independent search for easements, encumbrances, title evidence and
ownership data as HoweCo will rely upon the materials and representations that client supplies to HoweCo.

Item 3. Utilities. In the performance of its work, HoweCo will take all reasonable precautions to avoid damage to
underground structures or utilities, and will rely on the utility or locator services to correctly identify their buried facilities
and service lines, and on plans, drawings or sketches made available and provided by the client. The client agrees to
hold HoweCo harmless and indemnify HoweCo from any claims, expenses, or other liabilities, including reasonable
attorney fees, incurred by HoweCo for any damages to underground structures and utilities which were not correctly and
clearly shown on the plans provided to HoweCo or otherwise disclosed by the client, utility, or locator service. HoweCo
wfill be responslible for ordering the utility locator or exploratory excavation services only if expressly set forth in the scope
of the proposal.

Item 4. Hazardous Materials and Site Conditions. Prior to the start of services, or at the earliest time such information
is learned, it shall be the duty of the client, or other involved or contacted parties, to advise HoweCo of any known or
suspected undocumented fills, hazardous materials, by-products, or constituents, and any known environmental,
hydrologic, geologic, and geotechnical conditions, which exist on or near any premises upon which work is to be
performed by HoweCo employees or subcontractors or which in any other way may be pertinent to HoweCo'’s proposed
services.

Item 5. Confidentiality. HoweCo shall hold confidential the business and technical information obtained or generated in
performance of services under this agreement and identified in writing by the client as "confidential". HoweCo shall not
disclose such "confidential” information except if such disclosure is required by governmental statute, ordinance, or
regulation; for compliance with professional standards of conduct for public safety, health, and welfare concems; or for
protection of HoweCo against claims or liabilities arising from performance of its services. The technical and pricing
information contained in any report or proposal submitted by HoweCo is to be considered confidential and propriety, and
shall not be released or otherwise made available to any third party without the express written consent of HoweCo.
Client now has no contract with any other professional engineer/surveyor/planner for the performance of the specific
services outlined in the agreement and any previous contracts are terminated and copies of all previous work will be
provided to HoweCo for use in this current project.

Item 6. Standard of Care. HoweCo will perform the services under this agreement in accordance with generally
accepted practice, in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of this
profession under similar circumstances in this locality. No other warranties implied or expressed, in fact or by law, are
made or intended.

Item 7. Technical Methodology and Protocol. HoweCo will select generally accepted methods and procedures it
considers appropriate to accomplish the intended and understood purpose of its services within the scope of this
agreement, and the client signifies concurrence with these methods and procedures by acceptance of this agreement. In
the event other special methods or procedures are preferred by the client or are considered more appropriate, a written
description or designation of these must be provided to HoweCo prior to execution of this agreement.

Item 8. Limitations of Liability. In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the project to both the Client and
HoweCo, the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the
liability of HoweCo and his or her subconsultants to the client on the project for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages

137

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberly 2 4 H

December 13, 2019 ’ nl\ OWE
Page 9 Companyu.c

STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS continued

of any nature whatsoever, or claims expenses from any cause or causes, so that the total aggregate liability of HoweCo
and his or her subconsultants to all those named shall not exceed HoweCo's total fee for services rendered, or $50,000,
whichever is less, on this project. Such claims and causes include, but are not limited to negligence, professional errors
or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty.

Item 9. Consequential Damages. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, neither party shall be liable to
the other for any consequential damages incurred due to the fault of the other party, regardless of the nature of this fault
or whether it was committed by the client or HoweCo, their employees, agents, subconsultants or subcontractors.
Consequential damages include, but are not limited to, loss of use, loss of income, loss of profit, loss of business, and/or

loss of reputation.

Item 10. Insurance and Indemnity. HoweCo represents that it maintains general Iiabilig, property damage, and
professional liability insurance, and that HoweCo's employees are covered by Workman’s Compensation Insurance.
Certificates of Insurance can be provided to the client upon request.

HoweCo shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, or liability beyond these insurance limits and conditions. HoweCo
agrees to indemnify the client from and save client harmless against any loss, damage, or liability stemming from acts of
gross negligence by

HoweCo. Except as expressly set forth in Items Nos. 8 and 9, the client agrees to hold HoweCo, its officers, directors,
agents, and employees, harmless from any claims, suits, or liability including but not limited to attorney fees, costs of
settlement, and other incidental costs, for personal injury, death, iliness, property damage or any other loss, allegedly
arising from or related to HoweCo's work.

Item 11. Modifications. This agreement and all its attachments represent the entire understanding between the parties,
and neither the client nor HoweCo may amend or modify any aspect of this contract unless such alterations are reduced
to writing and properly executed by the parties hereto. These items and conditions shall supersede all prior or
contemporaneous communications, representations, or agreements, and any provisions expressed or implied in requests
for proposal, purchase order, authorization to proceed, or other contradictory provisions, whether written or oral.

Item 12. Reuse of Documents. All documents including drawings, specifications, and electronic media furnished by
HoweCo pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of its services. They are not intended or represented to be suitable
for reuse by client or others on extensions of this project, or on any other project. Any reuse without specific written
verification or adaptation by HoweCo will be at client's sole risk, and without liability of HoweCo, and client shall indemnify
and hold harmless HoweCo from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including court costs and attorney’s fees
arising out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification or adaptation will entitle HoweCo to further compensation at
rates to be agreed upon by client and HoweCo.

Item 13. Payment. Invoices for performed work will be submitted monthly for services rendered the prior month, payable
within 21 days of invoice date. The fees quoted are based upon an expected timely payment. Late payment charges of
1.5% per month will be added to delinquent charges. Client shall be further obligated to pay HoweCo's cost of collection,
including, but not limited to, court costs and attorney’s fees, in the event of default in payment under this paragraph. This
agreement is entered into in Macon County, Missouri and the Laws of Missouri are to apply to the agreement. If legal
action is required by HoweCo, to collect fees or expenses advanced or to resolve disputes, then the parties agree that
Macon County shall be the proper venue for that legal action. HoweCo, at its option, may terminate its services due to
client’s failure to pay when due. In the event of termination of services prior to completion, client shall compensate
HoweCo for all services performed to and for such termination. If the Client fails to make payments when due or
otherwise is in breach of this Agreement, HoweCo may suspend performance of services upon five (5) calendar days
written or electronic notice to the Client. HoweCo shall have no liability whatsoever to the Client for any costs ordamages
as a result of suspension caused by any breach of the Agreement by the Client.

Item 14. Opinions of Cost. Since HoweCo has no control over the cost of labor, materials or equipment or over a

Contractor’s method of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, its opinions of probable
project cost or construction cost for this project will be based upon its own experience with construction, but HoweCo
cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or the construction cost will not vary from its opinions of probable
costs. Ifthe client wishes greater assurance as to the construction cost, they shall employ an independent cost estimator.

Item 15. Shop Drawing Review. Client agrees that HoweCo'’s review of shop drawings, when such review is included in
the scope of services, shall be solely for their conformance with HoweCo’s design intent and conformance with
information given in the construction documents. HoweCo shall not be responsible for any aspects of a shop drawing
submission that affect or are affected by the means, methods, techniques, sequences and operations of construction,
safety precautions and programs incidental thereto, all of which are the contractor's responsibility. The contractor will be
responsible for lengths, dimensions, elevations, quantities and coordination of the work with other trades. Client warrants
that the contractor shall be made aware of his responsibilities to review shop drawings and approve them in these
respects before submitting them to HoweCo.

Item 16. Mediation. In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the project or
following the completion of the project, the Client and HoweCo agree that all disputes between them arising out of, or

138

#8.




Brian CraneCity Manager

City of Moberly ” H

December 13, 2019 ﬂ‘ OWe
Page 10 Companyue

STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS continued

related to this Agreement, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. In the
event the parties agree to resolve conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the project or following the
completion of the project by methods other than nonbinding mediation, then all such agreements must be set forth in
writing, and must be signed b}/ representatives of both the Client and HoweCo to be effective. Itis further agreed by the
Client and HoweCo that supplemental agreements to resolve conflicts that arise during the design or construction of the
project, or following the completion of the project, must not only be signed by representatives of both the Client and
Hov(;/_e?o; but must specify, in writing, the method of dispute resolution which has been selected to replace nonbinding
mediation.

Item 17. Assignment. Neither party of this Agreement shall transfer, sublet or assign any rights under or interest in this
Agreement (including but not limited to monies that are due or monies that may be due) without the prior written consent
to the other party. Subcontrating to subconsultants normally contemplated by HoweCo shall not be considered an
assignment for purposes of this Agreement.

Item 18. Betterment. If a required item or component of the project should be omitted from construction documents,
HoweCo shall not be responsible for paying the cost required to add such item or component to the extent that such item
or component would have been required and included in the original construction documents. In no event will HoweCo be
responsible for any cost or expense that provides betterment or upgrades or enhances the value of the project.

Iltem 19. Construction Contingency. Client recognizes and expects that certain change orders may be required to be
issued as the result in whole or part om imprecision, incompleteness, errors, omissions, ambiguities, or inconsistencies in
the Drawings, Specifications, and other design documentation furnished by the E/A/S orin the other professional services
performed or furnished by the E/A/S under this Agreement (“Covered Change Orders”). Accordingly, Client agrees to
budget a minimum of five percent (5%) of the total client’s construction contractor’s bid amount(s) for contingencies

Terms and Conditions effective February 2019

139

#8.




City of Moberly Agenda Number: 49,

City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 6, 2020

Department: Public Works

Agenda Item:

A Resolution To Publish A Proposed Street Name Change Pursuant To
Section 36-40 Of The Moberly City Code.

Summary: A group (S.0.S.) is working to raise funds to construct a sidewalk along the
North side of KWIX and Pig-N-Bun roads. KWIX Road was named for the
Shepherd-family-owned radio station and Pig-N-Bun Road was named for the
restaurant that was formerly located on the street. Much of the property on
both sides of KWIX Road is owned by the Shepherd Family Trust, long-time
supporters of the community. Dan & David Shepherd have agreed to donate
$10,000 each towards the project and request that these roads be renamed to
Shepherd Boulevard to retain the Shepherd family connection to the area.
None of the Pig-N-Bun owners family remain in the Moberly area. They have
been contacted by the S.0.S. group and agree with the road name change, their
only request being that they be given the Pig-N-Bun street sign.
Recommended
Action: Approve this resolution
Fund Name: N/A
Account Number: N/A
Available Budget $: N/A
ATTACHMENTS: Roll Call Aye Nay
_____Memo ____ Council Minutes Mayor
__ Staff Report __ Proposed Ordinance M__ S__ Jeffrey _
_x_Correspondence _X__ Proposed Resolution
____ Bid Tabulation ___Attorney’s Report Council Member
__ PI/IC Recommendation __ Petition M__ S Brubaker o
____P/C Minutes ____ Contract M__ S___ Kimmons _
__ Application __ Budget Amendment M__ S__ Davis _
__ Citizen __ Legal Notice M__ S Kyser -
__ Consultant Report Other Passed Failed
140




BILL NO: RESOLUTION NO:

A RESOLUTION TO PUBLISH A PROPOSED STREET NAME CHANGE PURSUANT
TO SECTION 36-40 OF THE MOBERLY CITY CODE.

WHEREAS, the city council hereby deems it necessary to change the names of KWIX
Road from Quail Haven to S. Morley and Pig-N-Bun Road from S. Morley to the railroad tracks
to Shepherd Brothers Boulevard; and

WHEREAS, pursuant Section 36-40 of the City Code this Resolution must be published
at least one week in a local newspaper and after such publication resident property owners along
those described portions of KWIX Road and Pig-N-Bun Road have four (4) weeks to file with
the City Clerk their written protest against such a street name change; and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this Resolution in daily paper
printed and published in Moberly, Missouri for a period of one week.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Moberly, Missouri, City Council
hereby provides notice of the proposed street name change and the necessity of publishing said
notice.

#9.

Presiding Officer at Meeting

ATTEST:

City Clerk

141




#10.

City of MOberIy Agengfp':ftmﬁ? City Clerk
City Council Agenda Summary Date: January 6, 2020

Agenda Item: A Resolution appropriating money out of the Treasury of the City of Moberly,
Missouri.

Summary: Appropriation Resolution.

Recommended
Action: Please approve this Resolution.

Fund Name: N/A
Account Number: N/A

Available Budget $: N/A

ATTACHMENTS: Role Call Aye Nay

_ Memo __ Council Minutes Mayor

__ Staff Report __ Proposed Ordinance M__ S Jeffrey _

__ Correspondence _X_Proposed Resolution

____ Bid Tabulation __Attorney’s Report Council Member

__ PIC Recommendation __ Petition M__ S Brubaker o

____PIC Minutes ____ Contract M__ S___ Kimmons _

__ Application __ Budget Amendment M__ S Davis _

____ Citizen __ Legal Notice M__ S__ Kyser

__ Consultant Report Other Passed  Failed
142




BILL NO. RESOLUTION NO. #10.

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY OUT OF THE TREASURY OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY,
MISSOURI IN THE AMOUNT OF $793.693.48.

WHEREAS, the funds are to be disbursed as follows;
SECTION 1: There is hereby appropriated out of the General Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly, Missouri to pay
expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $225,214.01.
SECTION 2: There is hereby appropriated out of the Payroll Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly, Missouri to pay
expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $117,592.29.
SECTION 3: There is hereby appropriated out of the Solid Waste Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly, Missouri to
pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $31.38.
SECTION 4: There is hereby appropriated out of the Heritage Hills Golf Course Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $101,177.74.
SECTION 5: There is hereby appropriated out of the Parks and Recreation Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly,
Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $27,967.47.
SECTION 6: There is hereby appropriated out of the Airport Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly, Missouri to pay
expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $35,237.56.
SECTION 7: There is hereby appropriated out of the Veteran Memorial Flag Project Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $30.28.
SECTION 8: There is hereby appropriated out of the Utilities Collection Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly,
Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $3,092.38.
SECTION 9: There is hereby appropriated out of the Utilities OP & Maintenance Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $86,579.02.
SECTION 10: There is hereby appropriated out of the Utilities OP Reserve Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly,
Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $18,184.68.
SECTION 11: There is hereby appropriated out of the Capital Improvement Trust Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $4,522.50.
SECTION 12: There is hereby appropriated out of the Utilities Consumers Secur Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $893.69.
SECTION 13: There is hereby appropriated out of the 2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $37,898.57.
SECTION 14: There is hereby appropriated out of the 2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $26,842.53.
SECTION 15: There is hereby appropriated out of the 2004C SRF Bonds Debt Service Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $25,756.20.
SECTION 16: There is hereby appropriated out of the ESP Projects Debt Service Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $580.81.
SECTION 17: There is hereby appropriated out of the Emergency Telephone Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly,
Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $1,081.67.
SECTION 18: There is hereby appropriated out of the Transportation Trust Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly,
Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $45,730.20.
SECTION 19: There is hereby appropriated out of the Street Improvement Fund of the Treasury of the City of Moberly,
Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $18,221.42.
SECTION 20: There is hereby appropriated out of the Downtown CID Sales Tax Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $11,803.08.
SECTION 21: There is hereby appropriated out of the Downtown CID Property Tax Fund of the Treasury of the City of
Moberly, Missouri to pay expenses due January 6, 2020 in the amount of $5,256.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly City Council authorizes these expenditures.
RESOLVED this 6th day of January 2020 by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri.

ATTEST:

Presiding Officer

City Clerk
I hereby certify that there is sufficient money standing to the credit of the Gjty of Moberl3\Miss uri, unappropriated in the several funds

covered by this resolution to meet the requirements of this resolution.
)

Lty ’Measuﬂr, City of Mobgrly, Missouri
143




EXPENSES PAID DECEMBER 13, 2020 - JANUARY 3, 2019 FOR THE

FOLLOWING FUNDS ARE TO BE INCLUDED WITH THE

JANUARY 6, 2020 APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION TOTAL.

General Fund

Payroll Fund

Solid Waste Fund

Heritage Hills Golf Course Fund
Parks and Recreation Fund

Airport Fund

Veteran Memorial Flag Project Fund
Utilities Collection Fund

Utilities OP & Maintenance Fund
Utilities OP Reserve Fund

Capital Improvement Trust Fund
Utilities Consumers Secur Fund
2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service Fund
2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service Fund
2004C SRF Bonds Debt Service Fund
ESP Projects Debt Service Fund
Emergency Telephone Fund
Transportation Trust Fund

Street Improvement Fund

Downtown CID Sales Tax Fund
Downtown CID Property Tax Fund

Total

$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
>
5
$
$
$
$
>
$
$
$
$
$

225,214.01
117,592.29

31.38

101,177.74

27,967.47
35,237.56
30.28
3,092.38
86,579.02
18,184.68
4,522.50
893.69
37,898.57
26,842.53
25,756.20
580.81
1,081.67
45,730.20
18,221.42
11,803.08
5,256.00

793,693.48

| hereby certify that there is sufficient money standing to the credit of the
City of Moberly, Missouri, unappropriated to cover the above funds.

Cit{/Treé(surer, Cityvof Moberly, Missouri

144

\/3 [2s20

#10.

Date




Fri Jan 3, 2020 10:43 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page 1

#10.
BANK# BANK NAME
CHECK# DATE ACCOUNT# NAME CHECK AMOUNT CLEARED MANUAL VOID REASON FOR VOID
24 DISBURSEMENTS

82190 12/13/2019 2908 CUNNINGHAM VOGEL & ROST PC 7,881.39

82191 12/20/2019 5747 CORN, JOHN 700.00

82192 12/20/2019 2975 BRENNTAG MID SOUTH INC 22,198.93

82193 12/20/2019 194 DMC CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION 10,733.00

82194 12/20/2019 2839 FUSION TECHNOLOGY LLC 978.27

82195 12/20/2019 4347 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL .00 VOID:
8219 12/20/2019 4347 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL .00 VOID:
82197 12/20/2019 4347 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 3,069.02

82198 12/20/2019 1756 MIRMA 8,250.82

82199 12/20/2019 1849 SPRINT .00 VOID:
82200 12/20/2019 1849 SPRINT 2,587.97

82201 12/20/2019 4948 WARREN RICHARD 343.14

82202 12/20/2019 5878 WIEDEMAN DOZING LLC 2,000.00

82203 12/20/2019 5940 HERITAGE HILLS COLF COURSE LLC  100,000.00

82204 12/23/2019 5939 WILLIAMS RICK 1,338.00

82205 Thru 82213

82214 12/27/2019 2643 UNITED WAY 1,209.83

82215 12/27/2019 2646 VALIC 892.00

82216 12/30/2019 2839 FUSION TECHNOLOGY LLC .00 VOID:
82217 12/30/2019 2839 FUSION TECHNOLOGY LLC 4,966.70

82218 1/03/2020 5942 A ENCLKES & M DUVALL 125.00

82219 1/03/2020 2903 ABAN PEST CONTROL INC 180.00

82220 1/03/2020 4693 ADVANCED TURF SOLUTIONS 391.00

82221 1/03/2020 351 AGEE, CARL W 570.92

82222 1/03/2020 1 ALTORFER INC 478.26

82223 1/03/2020 5411 ARCHIVESOCTAL 4,788.00

82224 1/03/2020 790 ARISTA INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC 2,824.30

82225 1/03/2020 30 ARTDEP+BENTON 4,024.00

82226 1/03/2020 5941 ARTEAGA GERARDO 125.00

82227 1/03/2020 17 AT&T 5001 1,081.67

82228 1/03/2020 16 AUTOZONE INC 14.99

82229 1/03/2020 26 B & D LOCK & KEY 360.00

82230 1/03/2020 3625 BARR ENGINEERING COMPANY 4,522.50

82231 1/03/2020 4729 BARTLETT & WEST 1,627.36

82232 1/03/2020 2694 BOB'S BUTCHER SHOP 65.09

82233 1/03/2020 2885 BOTKINS TRUCKING LLC 4,830.72

82234 1/03/2020 5943 BRADDS VINCENT 60.00

82235 1/03/2020 5944 BRENDA CLAYTON 100.00

82236 1/03/2020 2975 BRENNTAG MID SOUTH INC 1,440.18

82237 1/03/2020 1837 BUTLER RAENENE 100.00

82238 1/03/2020 4941 CAPITAL PAVING & CONST LLS 34,997.20

82239 1/03/2020 578 CARTER MEMORIALS INC 180.00

82240 1/03/2020 104 CARTER-WATERS 77.92

82241 1/03/2020 591 CASON BUILDING MAINTENANCE INC 4,127.40

82242 1/03/2020 1279 CATER FUNERAL HOME 700.00

82243 1/03/2020 2301 CENTRAL MO CITY CLERKS FINANCE 30.00

82244 1/03/2020 1301 CINTAS CORPORATION 81.39

82245 1/03/2020 3137 CINTAS CORPORATION #379 54.58

82246 1/03/2020 3063 CONLEY FOREST DO 20.00

82247 1/03/2020 2645 CORE & MAIN LP 12,540.33

82248 1/03/2020 678 CROWN POWER & EQUIPMENT 100.00

145
OPER: SH

APCHCKRP 06.07.19

*** CITY OF MOBERLY ***



FriJan 3, 2020 10:43 AM

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER

Page 2

#10.
BANK# BANK NAME
CHECK# DATE ACCOUNT# NAME CHECK AMOUNT CLEARED MANUAL VOID REASON FOR VOID
82249 1/03/2020 2913 CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING 23.67
82250 1/03/2020 2971 DASH MEDICAL CLOVES INC 200.70
82251 1/03/2020 5945 DELFS BARBARA 60.00
82252 1/03/2020 5682 STEPHEN L POWELL 7,946.76
82253 1/03/2020 5946 DOOLEY TIFFANY 125.00
82254 1/03/2020 5744 ECONO SIGNS LLC 472.40
82255 1/03/2020 5754 FIRST STATE COMMUNITY BANK 580.81
82256 1/03/2020 704 GALLS LLC 152.66
82257 1/03/2020 5947 GEORGE TOM 100.00
82258 1/03/2020 407 COVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS 150.00
82259 1/03/2020 1226 GRAINGER 217.96
82260 1/03/2020 2956 GREEN HILLS VET CLINIC LLC 1,925.13
82261 1/03/2020 1338 HAWKINS INC 1,770.30
82262 1/03/2020 5952 HUNDA RANSOM & MARIA 38.69
82263 1/03/2020 1348 HUNTSVILLE MACHINE 9.56
82264 1/03/2020 5955 JKKJ PROPERTIES LLC 30,000.00
82265 1/03/2020 5630 THOMAS B JONES 450.00
82266 1/03/2020 89 KINDER MACHINE TOOL & DIE 142.50
82267 1/03/2020 5380 KING MAXWELL 500.00
82268 1/03/2020 2919 L & J DEVELOPMENT INC 144.00
82269 1/03/2020 5949 LAMONDA JESSE 100.00
82270 1/03/2020 1381 LEON UNIFORM COMPANY 1,133.66
82271 1/03/2020 5950 LEWIS LIEZA 60.00
82272 1/03/2020 1246 LOCHNER 33,711.49
82273 1/03/2020 4718 MACON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 20.00
82274 1/03/2020 801 BENN RYAN D 415.00
82275 1/03/2020 1514 MATTOX HARLEY 100.00
82276 1/03/2020 2974 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERV 112.88
82277 1/03/2020 1694 MFA AGRI SERVICE CENTER 20.70
82278 1/03/2020 1688 MFA OIL COMPANY 13,791.43
82279 1/03/2020 1136 MFA PROPANE 2,818.19
82280 1/03/2020 1756 MIRMA 533.07
82281 1/03/2020 1079 MISSION COMMUNICATIONS LLC 970.80
82282 1/03/2020 355 MISSOURT ASSOC OF FIRE CHIEFS 100.00
82283 1/03/2020 5239 MISSOURI DEPART OF REV 3375 3,092.38
82284 1/03/2020 394 MISSOURT DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL 45.00
82285 1/03/2020 195 MISSOURT WATER & WASTEWATER CO 35.00
82286 1/03/2020 360 MO DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOU -150.00
82287 1/03/2020 2771 MO POLICE CHIEFS ASSOCIATION 200.00
82288 1/03/2020 2740 MOBERLY AREA CHAMBER OF COMMER 2,760.07
82289 1/03/2020 1393 MOBERLY AREA TECHNICAL CENTER 128.87
82290 1/03/2020 1935 MOBERLY MONITOR INDEX 120.00
82291 1/03/2020 1954 MOBERLY MOTOR COMPANY 26,977.73
82292 1/03/2020 2907 MOBERLY READY MIX 6,805.20
82293 1/03/2020 4267 MOPERM 1,280.00
82294 1/03/2020 5951 MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS 7,914.58
82295 1/03/2020 1604 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF MOBERLY .00 VOID:
82296 1/03/2020 1604 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF MOBERLY 569.18
82297 1/03/2020 2734 NARTEC, INC 252.42
82298 1/03/2020 2865 NEWMAN SIGNS INC 154.50
82299 1/03/2020 865 NOLAND IR ELMER 5,061.00
82300 1/03/2020 5956 PANJADA DIANE 100.00
82301 1/03/2020 5727 PEST PRO SOLUTIONS INC 120.00
146
APCHCKRP 06.07.19 ** CITY OF MOBERLY *** OPER: SH




FriJan 3, 2020 10:43 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page 3
#10.
BANK# BANK NAME
CHECK# DATE ACCOUNT# NAME CHECK AMOUNT CLEARED MANUAL VOID REASON FOR VOID
82302 1/03/2020 2596 PLUMB SUPPLY COMPANY 39.42
82303 1/03/2020 5829 Q SECURITY SOLUTIONS 39.48
82304 1/03/2020 2590 RANDOLPH COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTM 65.00
82305 1/03/2020 5948 REINHART JOSEPH 28.50
82306 1/03/2020 5751 REMOLE COATINGS LLC 6,388.95
82307 1/03/2020 5656 RICHARD CAPLAN & ASSOCIATES 1,925.00
82308 1/03/2020 3014 SAM'S CLUB 286.34
82309 1/03/2020 617 SCHULTE SUPPLY INC 3,858.88
82310 1/03/2020 2394 SESAC 460.00
82311 1/03/2020 2684 SHERWOOD'S SIGNS LLC 225.00
82312 1/03/2020 2222 SMITH ELDON 5,000.00
82313 1/03/2020 2610 BRENDLINGER ENTERPRISES INC 2,387.85
82314 1/03/2020 615 SNAP-ON 109.95
82315 1/03/2020 5700 STAPLES .00 VOID:
82316 1/03/2020 5700 STAPLES 167.34
82317 1/03/2020 488 SUPERIOR ADVENTURE CENTER 136.9%4
82318 1/03/2020 4999 SWARTZ MADELINE 100.00
82319 1/03/2020 406 TERRACON CONSULTANTS INC 23,235.00
82320 1/03/2020 2640 THOMAS HILL PUBLIC WATER SUPPL 70.46
82321 1/03/2020 2641 THOMAS MOTORS INC 83.9%
82322 1/03/2020 5954 THOMPSON RANDALL 410.00
82323 1/03/2020 1562 UNITED FIRST AID & SAFETY 96.96
82324 1/03/2020 5308 UNITED WAY OF RANDOLPH COUNTY 485.00
82325 1/03/2020 2223 US CELLULAR 373.76
82326 1/03/2020 2644 USA BLUE BOOK 2,786.71
82327 1/03/2020 5575 UST INSURANCE SERVICE LLC 6,250.00
82328 1/03/2020 2467 VALENTINE INSURANCE AGENCY 1,518.00
82329 1/03/2020 5800 VERTZON CONNECT NWF INC 21.95
82330 1/03/2020 2742 WAL MART COMMUNITY .00 VOID:
82331 1/03/2020 2742 WAL MART COMMUNITY 3,700.83
82332 1/03/2020 5953 WHITE DANIEL 100.00
82333 1/03/2020 2657 WILLIAMS DANIEL J. 60.00
82334 1/03/2020 5908 WILLIAMS KEEPERS, LLC 3,330.00
82335 1/03/2020 2772 WIRELESS USA 671.26
82336 1/03/2020 5298 ZAMKUS AND ASSOCTATES LLC 1,000.00
20190751
20190752 12/16/2019 2591 MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPM 43,750.00 E-PAY  VOID: NOT DUE UNTIL JANUARY 2020
20190753 12/23/2019 5783 BANKCARD SERVICES 12,085.42 E-PAY
20190754 12/30/2019 6 AMEREN MISSOURI 48,367.43 E-PAY
20190755 12/24/2019 2708 UMB BANK 90,497.30 E-PAY  VOID: ACCOUNT CODING ERROR
20190756 12/24/2019 1800 MO LAGERS 57,745.23 E-PAY
20190757 12/24/2019 2708 UMB BANK 90,497.30 E-PAY
20190758 12/30/2019 1800 MO LAGERS 57,745.23 E-PAY  VOID: CROSSED FISCAL MONTHS
20190759 1/02/2020 2591 MOBERLY AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPM 43,750.00 E-PAY
20190760 1/02/2020 5898 MOBERLY SOLAR, LLC 15,660.16 E-PAY
20190761 1/02/2020 1800 MO LAGERS 57,745.23 E-PAY
147
OPER: SH

APCHCKRP 06.07.19

*** CITY OF MOBERLY ***




FriJan 3, 2020 10:43 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER Page 4
#10.
BANK# BANK NAME
CHECK# DATE ACCOUNT# NAME CHECK AMOUNT CLEARED MANUAL VOID REASON FOR VOID
* See Check Summary below for detail on gaps and checks from other modules.

BANK TOTALS:

OUTSTANDING 793,693.48

CLEARED .00

BANK 24 TOTAL 793,693.48

**OIDED** 191,992.53
FUND TOTAL OUTSTANDING CLEARED VOIDED
100 GENERAL FUND 225,214.01 225,214.01 .00 43,750.00
105 PAYROLL FUND 117,592.29 117,592.29 .00 57,745.23
110 SOLID WASTE FUND 31.38 31.38 .00 .00
114 HERITAGE HILLS GOLF CRSE 101,177.74 101,177.74 .00 .00
115 PARKS & RECREATION FUND 27,967.47 27,967.47 .00 .00
120 AIRPORT FUND 35,237.56 35,237.56 .00 .00
140 VETERAN MEMORIAL FLAG PRJ 30.28 30.28 .00 .00
300 UTILITIES COLLECTION FUND 3,092.38 3,092.38 .00 .00
301 UTILITIES OP & MAINT 86,579.02 86,579.02 .00 .00
303 UTILITIES OP RESERVE 18,184.68 18,184.68 .00 .00
304 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST 4,522.50 4,522.50 .00 .00
306 UTILITIES CONSUMERS SECUR 893.69 893.69 .00 .00
377 2004B SRF BONDS DEBT SERV 37,898.57 37,898.57 .00 37,898.57
378 2006A SRF BONDS DEBT SERV 26,842.53 26,842.53 .00 52,598.73
379 2004C BONDS DEBT SERVICE 25,756.20 25,756.20 .00 .00
381 ESP PROJECTS DEBT SERVICE 580.81 580.81 .00 .00
400 EMERGENCY TELEPHONE FUND 1,081.67 1,081.67 .00 .00
600 TRANSPORTATION TRUST FUND 45,730.20 45,730.20 .00 .00
601 STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND 18,221.42 18,221.42 .00 .00
911 DOWNTOWN CID SALES TAX 11,803.08 11,803.08 .00 .00
912 DOWNTOWN CID PROP TAX 5,256.00 5,256.00 .00 .00

148
OPER: SH

APCHCKRP 06.07.19

*** CITY OF MOBERLY ***




Fri Jan 3, 2020 10:43 AM

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECK REGISTER

Page 5

** CHECK SUMMARY ***
#10.
BANK# BANK NAME
CHECK# DESCRIPTION
24 DISBURSEMENTS
82190 Thru 82204 Accounts Payable Checks
82205 Thru 82213 Utility Billing Checks
82214 Thru 82336 Accounts Payable Checks
20190752 Thru 20190761 Accounts Payable E-Pay
149
OPER: SH

APCHCKRP 06.07.19 *** CITY OF MOBERLY ***



City of Moberly
City Council Agenda Summary

Agenda Number:

De

partment:
Date:

City Manager

#11.

January 6, 2020

Agenda Item:

Summary:

Recommended
Action:

Fund Name:
Account Number:

Available Budget $:

Appointment to the Downtown CID Board

At this time Christy Colston has resigned from the board, due to her
resignation we have one open board member position. Kelsey Jeffries has

submitted an application to be appointed to this board. The board is looking
to appoint someone to complete this term. Communication is being sent to
other individuals that might be interested in fulfilling this position or if City
Council has names to submit please let staff know and an application will be

forwarded to them.

Appoint one individual to this board

N/A

N/A

N/A

ATTACHMENTS:

__ Memo

__ Staff Report

__x Caorrespondence
____Bid Tabulation
_____PI/IC Recommendation
____P/C Minutes
___Application

____ Citizen

__ Consultant Report

_____Council Minutes
__ Proposed Ordinance
__ Proposed Resolution
__ Attorney’s Report
___ Petition
____ Contract
__ Budget Amendment
__ Legal Notice

Other

150

Mayor

M__

Council Member
_ S___

=L

Roll Call
S Jeffrey
Brubaker
S Kimmons
S Davis
S Kyser

Aye

Passed

Nay

Failed




City of

#11.

Board/Commission Application Form

Individuals serving on boards or commissions play an important role in advising the City Council
on matters of interest to our community and its future. For the most part, Board and Commission
members must be residents of City of Moberl%r. When a vacancy occurs, an announcement of that
vacancy will be posted. The City Council will review all applications. The appointment will be
made at a formal City Council meeting. Appointees serve as unpaid volunteers.

This application is a public document and as such it or the information it contains may be
reproduced and distributed. This application will remain active for two years and you will
automatically be considered for any vacancy occurring during that time.

Name of Board or Commission: ¢P Daig; 3550
Your Name: Kelsey Jeffrics Street Address: 1743 Corinth Dr.
Phone number(s): (evening) 660-998-1925 (day) 660-414-7424

Email: vintage424.moberly@gmail.com

Do you live within the corporate limits of City of Moberly? @/ No
How long have you been a resident of City of Moberly?_31 years
Occupation: retail business owner Employer: Vintage 424

Optional Questions (use back of application if necessary)
What experience and/or skills do you have that might especially qualify you to serve on this board or
commission?

I have previously served on a variety of boards and committees, including Moberly Area Council on the Arts, Light Up Moberly/Community Betterment,

Moberly Area Young Professionals, Main Street Moberly Design Committee. I have served as Vice President and President for Moberly Area Council

on the Arts.

What particular contributions do you feel you can make to this board or commission?

As a business owner in the CID, I feel I can contribute ideas and suggestions that come from practical experience. Additionally, [ am confident in my

skills and intelligence for design and acsthetic.

1 will attend meetings in accordance with the adopted policies of City of Moberly, Missouri. If at any
time my business or professional interests conflict with the interests of the Commission, I will not
participate in such deliberations. References may be secured from the following individuals:

1. Cassic Carpenter Bugalski Phone: 660-833-8225
2 Faye Lescoe Phone: 66-413-2273
3. Leslie Joseph Phone: 660-651-3096

4 Signatur of Xpp

[l ]
TEIY

* Additional Information may be attached to this forpa
Return to: City of Moberly, 101 West Reed Street, | 151 Jy, MO 65270




	Top
	1. Report from Williams Keepers on the City of Moberly Audit
	2. Ordinance approving a development agreement with Mashburn Development
	Mashburn development
	exhibit a
	ORDINANCE APPROVING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (v.3)
	purchase development agreement v4 12-31

	3. Ordinance approving agreement with the Moberly Area Chamber of Commerce
	chamber tourism 20202
	Tourism Cooperative Agree Ordinance
	2020 TOURISM PROMOTION SERVICES AGREEMENT
	2020 Tourism Budget
	2020 Work Plan

	4. Ordinance Approving A Change Order To The Willis Bros., Inc., Harrison Ave. And Garfield Ave. CDBG Infrastructure Project
	Stormwater Harrison-Garfield
	Fox Run Phase I II III ordinance
	Willis Change Order
	Tom& 39

	5. Ordinance ordering the Assessment Roll for a Public Hearing to the NID.
	NID assessment roll
	ORDINANCE ORDERING PREPARATION OF NID ASSESSMENT ROLL (2D NID ORDINANCE) (v.2)

	6. Resolution Retaining KIMHEC for Services Related to Pretreatment Program Assistance
	Summary Sheet, Reg Session, 12-16-2019, KimHEC contract
	KimHEC Resolution
	2019 Standard Terms and Conditions
	20191218MoberlyPretreatmentProgramAssistance

	7. Resolution approving agreement with J & M Display for 4th of July event
	Fireworks
	JM Display 2020
	City of Moberly FDA
	Moberly 2020 P

	8. Resolution approving an agreement with Howe Company LLC for professional services
	howe agreement professional
	Howe Company Resolution II
	howe  industrial park

	9. Resolution to publish proposed Street Name Change
	KWIX and Pig N Bun Name Change
	Street name change Resolution

	10. Appropriation Resolution
	Appropriation Resolution, 1-6-2020 Agenda Summary
	01-06-2020 Appropriation Resolution

	11. Appointment to the Downtown CID Board
	downtown cid board
	CID Board Application

	12. Consideration of a Motion to move the January 20, 2020 Council meeting to January 21, 2020
	13. Consideration of a Motion to move the February 17, 2020 Council meeting to February 18, 2020
	14. Work Session Followed by a Closed Session
	Bottom

